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At PAÏR, we see every day as an opportunity to explore new horizons, 
strategize for success and forge a prosperous path for our stakeholders in 
Pakistan and Iran. With the lifting of sanctions in Iran, there is now an 
increased scope for greater business opportunities; a chance to change 
perceptions and further benefit our customers through earnings on their 
investments. We are proud to say that together, we are stepping up our efforts 
to take PAÏR to new heights of success, and thank you for your commitment 
and belief in our abilities to serve you better.

FORGING THE PATH 
TO A PROSPEROUS FUTURE
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VISION
To be the Premier Development Finance Institution of Pakistan and 
contribute to the economic development of both the brotherly countries 
through investment and Pakistan-Iran trade flows.

MISSION
Our company is committed to developing the economic relationship 
between Pakistan and Iran through investment into projects in Pakistan and 
enhancing the two-way trade by providing the most professional and 
innovative services to our customers. We focus on providing a range of 
products and services to our customers (both Pakistani and Iranian) in a 
manner which creates value for them and promotes investment flows and 
trade between the two countries.

PAÏRABOUT
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Medium to Long-Term
AA (Double A)

This denotes a very low expectation of credit risk, indicating a very strong 
capacity for timely payment of financial commitments. This capacity is not 
significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events.

Short-Term
A1+ (A One Plus)

This denotes that obligations are supported by the highest capacity for 
timely repayments.

ENTITY RATING
Assigned by PACRA
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CORE VALUES

Our Clients Come First
Each and every client is different and so are their needs. Hence, we at PAÏR tend to our 
clients by tailoring our service in such a manner that our clients’ needs are satisfied and 
ultimately our success is guaranteed.

Our People and Culture
Our people are our greatest asset. We continuously strive to improve our working standards 
and ambiance in order to provide the best environment for our employees’ personal and 
professional growth.

Professional Quality of Work
We strive very hard to maintain our work quality and standards with those of internationally 
accepted professional levels by constantly improving our quality, timelines and results.

05 | PAÏR Investment Company Limited



Teamwork
We focus on being team players and working as a team in order to achieve individual, 
departmental and company growth, hence maximizing output and results.

Constant Upgrade and Development
We are constantly adapting the latest trends and technologies in all fields, from 
international standards of accounting and compliance to the latest technology in IT to 
professional development of our employees by conducting presentations and providing 
them with trainings on the latest implemented software usage or organizing staff training 
sessions, workshops and activities related to their respective fields.

Integrity, Confidentiality and Honesty
We maintain high ethical standards of integrity, confidentiality and honesty in everything 
we do, as that is what sets us apart from the crowd and gives us our own unique identity.
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CORPORATE
INFORMATION

Board of Directors
Mr. Zahoor Ahmed Chairman (Acting)
Mr. Hamid Eftekhari Kondelaji Managing Director / CEO
Mr. Aamer Mahmood Hussain  Director
Mr. Hemmat Jafari  Director
Mr. Seyed Ahmad Araghchi Director

Ms. Kauser Safdar Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Amir Aizaz Company Secretary

Audit Committee
Mr. Aamer Mahmood Hussain  Chairman
Mr. Hemmat Jafari Member
Mr. Zahoor Ahmed                       Member
Mr.  Amin Kazmi Secretary - Audit Committee

Risk Management Committee
Mr. Aamer Mahmood Hussain  Chairman
Mr. Hamid Eftekhari Kondelaji Managing Director / CEO
Mr. Hemmat Jafari Member
Syed Salman Raza   Secretary - Risk Management Committee

Human Resource Committee
Mr. Zahoor Ahmed             Chairman
Mr. Seyed Ahmad Araghchi Member
Mr. Hamid Eftekhari Kondelaji Managing Director / CEO
Ms. Saadia Shaikh Secretary - Human Resource Committee
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Board Strategic Investment Committee
MR. Seyed Ahmad Araghchi Chairman
Mr. Zahoor Ahmed Member
Mr. Hamid Eftekhari Kondelaji Managing Director / CEO
Mr. Ahmad Bilal Darr  Secretary – Board Strategic Investment Committee

Auditors
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisors
Mohsin Tayebaly & Co.
Corporate Legal Consultants

Bankers
Allied Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
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BOARD COMMITTEES
TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Board Risk Management Committee
The Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) is responsible to ensure a continuous Board-level formal oversight of 

the credit, market, liquidity and operational risks embedded in PAÏR’s operations. It assists the Board of Directors in 

determining PAÏR’s strategic direction by providing an overall risk perspective to the relevant business units and Risk 

Management Unit. It ensures implementation of risk-related policies, including the review and monitoring of the 

Company’s overall portfolio, and a review of the risk limits under the Company’s overall risk appetite, determined 

through risk assessment rating methodologies by keeping in view the nature, size and complexity of the transactions.

Board Audit Committee
The primary responsibilities of the Board Audit Committee (BAC) are to determine the appropriateness of the 

measures taken by the Management to safeguard the DFI’s assets, ensure integrity of the financial statements and 

recommend the appointment of the external auditors and ensure close coordination with them to fulfill statutory and 

Code of Corporate Governance requirements.

The BAC is inter alia responsible to ascertain the effectiveness of the Internal Control System, including financial and 

operational controls, ensuring adequate and effective accounting and reporting structures, and monitoring compliance 

with the best practices of the Corporate Governance and the applicable legal and regulatory requirements. The other 

function of BAC includes the assurance that an independent and effective internal audit function is in place.
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Human Resource & Compensation Committee
The main tasks of the Human Resource & Compensation Committee are to ensure the review of existing policies 

and revision in these policies as deemed necessary, development of in-house expertise, approval and revision of 

organizational set-up, set-up of the latest criterion for recruitment, training, disciplinary matters and 

performance appraisals.

Strategic Investment Committee
The main task of the Strategic Investment Committee is to review long-term strategic plans, operational plans and 

material strategic initiatives, including acquisitions, mergers, disposals, strategic projects/investments, joint ventures 

and any new business/expansion, recommending such to the Board for approval.
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TEN YEARS' VERTICAL ANALYSIS -
Statement Of Financial Position / Profit & Loss Account

For the Year Ended December 31
 
 2017  %  2016  %  2015  % 2014 %  
       
Assets        
Cash and balances with treasury banks  37,870   0.21   64,205   0.35   46,114   0.20   33,303   0.18 
Balances with other banks  91,727   0.52   432,783   2.33   215,426   0.93   261,059   1.39 
Lendings to financial institutions  970,000   5.48   -     -     -     -     -     -   
Investments  11,044,299   62.45   11,842,973   63.68   18,543,009   79.85   14,114,870   75.30 
Advances  4,652,932   26.31   5,424,351   29.17   3,502,948   15.09   3,592,178   19.16 
Operating fixed assets  198,003   1.12   176,982   0.95   191,311   0.82   210,352   1.12 
Deferred tax assets - net  260,554   1.47   238,128   1.28   259,691   1.12   272,920   1.46 
Other assets  430,280   2.43   419,049   2.25   462,778   1.99   259,534   1.38 
Total Assets  17,685,665   100.00   18,598,471   100.00   23,221,277   100.00   18,744,216   100.00 
        
Liabilities        
Borrowings from financial institutions  6,370,738   36.02   6,549,981   35.22   11,652,435   50.18   9,221,225   49.20 
Deposits and other accounts  1,814,001   10.26   2,079,728   11.18   1,890,502   8.14   386,060   2.06 
Other liabilities  245,594   1.39   518,803   2.79   484,862   2.09   344,186   1.84 
  8,430,333   47.67   9,148,512   49.19   14,027,799   60.41   9,951,471   53.09 
        
Net Assets  9,255,332   52.33   9,449,959   50.81   9,193,478   39.59   8,792,745   46.91 
        
Represented By:        

Share Capital  6,000,000   33.93   6,000,000   32.26   6,000,000   25.84   6,000,000   32.01 
Advance against share capital  -           -   
Reserves  840,066   4.75   794,107   4.27   673,449   2.90   553,966   2.96 
Unappropriated Profit  2,452,552   13.87   2,572,774   13.83   2,390,166   10.29   2,062,742   11.00 
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of assets - net of tax  (37,286)  (0.21)  83,078   0.45   129,863   0.56   176,037   0.94 
 Total Equity and Liabilities   9,255,332   52.33   9,449,959   50.81   9,193,478   39.59   8,792,745   46.91 
        
Profit and Loss Account        
        
Mark-up / return / interest earned  1,045,117   89.05   1,243,694   95.90   1,509,674   80.76   1,233,407   76.81 
Fee, commission and brokerage income  10,327   0.88   19,631   1.51   13,825   0.74   14,985   0.93 
Dividend income  39,683   3.38   30,205   2.33   30,260   1.62   27,125   1.69 
Gain on sale of securities - net  79,271   6.75   2,993   0.23   313,567   16.77   327,977   20.43 
Other income / charges  (771)  (0.07)  413   0.03   2,108   0.11   2,258   0.14 
Total Income  1,173,627   100.00   1,296,936   100.00   1,869,434   100.00   1,605,752   100.00 
        
Mark-up / return / interest expensed  387,358   33.01   533,274   41.12   627,125   33.55   508,046   31.64 
Provision and Impairment  66,591   5.67   (415,856)  (32.06)  16,949   0.91   350,559   21.83 
Total non mark-up / return / interest expenses  351,464   18.80   318,427   24.55   302,029   16.16   283,150   17.63 
Taxation - net  138,419   11.79   257,800   19.88   325,917   17.43   112,128   6.98 
Profit after taxation  229,795   19.58   603,291   46.52   597,414   31.96   351,869   21.91 
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(Rupees in '000) 
 2013  %  2012 %  2011  %  2010 % 2009 % 2008 %   
   (Restated)  (Restated)
        
 27,829   0.16   43,999   0.28   9,143   0.08   10,552   0.10   2,633   0.03 
  158,417   0.92   106,586   0.68   20,675   0.17   352,808   3.37   1,309,451   15.80 
  -     -     -     -     -     -     600,000   5.73   446,250   5.39 
 12,745,355   73.75   10,841,572   68.88   8,974,337   75.76   7,160,982   68.39   5,326,675   64.29 
  3,678,206   21.28   4,325,337   27.49   2,475,156   20.89   2,103,430   20.09   945,387   11.41 
  196,201   1.14   56,047   0.36   48,060   0.41   44,762   0.43   26,071   0.31 
  204,896   1.19   110,582   0.70   80,756   0.68   21,661   0.21   109,799   1.33 
  270,782   1.57   253,291   1.61   237,980   2.01   176,414   1.68   119,188   1.44 
  17,281,686   100.00   15,737,414   100.00   11,846,107   100.00   10,470,609   100.00   8,285,454   100.00 
         
         
  8,489,171   49.12   6,721,178   42.71   3,695,484   31.20   2,863,481   27.35   1,857,327   22.42 
  25,080   0.15   545,080   3.46   260,000   2.19   -     -     -     -   
  326,705   1.89   273,446   1.74   161,760   1.37   172,683   1.65   134,609   1.62 
  8,840,956   51.16   7,539,704   47.91   4,117,244   34.73   3,036,164   29.00   1,991,936   24.04 
         
  8,440,730   48.84   8,197,710   52.09   7,728,863   65.27   7,434,445   71.00   6,293,518   75.96 
         

  6,000,000   34.72   6,000,000   38.13   6,000,000   50.65   6,000,000   57.30   5,000,000   60.35 
  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     490,825   5.92 
  483,592   2.80   415,746   2.64   327,714   2.77   279,204   2.67   163,533   1.97 
  1,781,247   10.31   1,611,197   10.24   1,309,028   11.05   1,116,823   10.66   654,137   7.90 
  175,891   1.02   170,767   1.09   92,121   0.78   38,418   0.37   (14,977)  (0.18)
  8,440,730   48.84   8,197,710   52.09   7,728,863   65.27   7,434,445   71.00   6,293,518   75.96 
         
         
         
  1,153,996   80.12   1,487,341   89.63   1,323,067   95.78   1,030,191   85.75   809,863   83.19 
  18,210   1.26   23,359   1.41   12,797   0.93   7,185   0.60   17,906   1.84 
  22,765   1.58   18,093   1.09   20,492   1.48   22,564   1.88   17,924   1.84 
  246,533   17.12   128,809   7.76   31,468   2.28   134,480   11.19   126,684   13.01 
  (1,089)  (0.08)  1,830   0.11   (6,417)  (0.47)  6,942   0.58   1,185   0.12 
  1,440,415   100.00   1,659,432   100.00   1,381,407   100.00   1,201,362   100.00   973,562   100.00 
         
  488,889   33.94   678,102   40.86   402,712   29.15   193,494   16.11   124,744   12.81 
  274,562   19.06   106,953   6.45   324,136   23.46   (79,955)  (6.66)  255,745   26.27 
  220,483   15.31   238,798   14.39   167,757   12.14   209,239   17.42   110,083   11.31 
  117,251   8.14   195,417   11.78   244,253   17.68   300,227   24.99   111,573   11.46 
  339,230   23.55   440,162   26.52   242,549   17.56   578,357   48.14   371,417   38.15 
         

  506,887   8.72 
  1,816,376   31.23 
  611,000   10.51 
  2,477,998   42.60 
  327,318   5.63 
  21,478   0.37 
  7,283   0.13 
  47,126   0.81 
  5,815,466   100.00 
 
 
  459,957   7.91 
  -     -   
  32,523   0.56 
  492,480   8.47 
 
  5,322,986   91.53 
 
 
  
 5,000,000   85.98 
  -     -   
  89,250   1.53 
  357,003   6.14 
  (123,267)  (2.12)
  5,322,986   91.53 
 
 
  
  527,054   84.76 
  3,621   0.58 
  60,266   9.69 
  -     -   
  30,875   4.97 
  621,816   100.00 
 
  31,898   5.13 
  37,500   6.03 
  82,513   13.27 
  151,759   24.41 
  318,146   51.16 



TEN YEARS' HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS -
Statement Of Financial Position / Profit & Loss Account

For the Year Ended December 31
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  2017  %   2016   %   2015  % 2014  %  
         
Assets        
Cash and balances with treasury banks  37,870   (41.02)  64,205   39.23   46,114   38.47   33,303   19.67 
Balances with other banks  91,727   (78.81)  432,783   100.90   215,426   (17.48)  261,059   64.79 
Lendings to financial institutions  970,000    100.00   -     -     -     -     -     -   
Investments  11,044,299   (6.74)  11,842,973   (36.13)  18,543,009   31.37   14,114,870   10.75 
Advances  4,652,932   (14.22)  5,424,351   54.85   3,502,948   (2.48)  3,592,178   (2.34)
Operating fixed assets  198,003   11.88   176,982   (7.49)  191,311   (9.05)  210,352   7.21 
Deferred tax assets - net  260,554   9.42   238,128   (8.30)  259,691   (4.85)  272,920   33.20 
Other assets  430,280   2.68   419,049   (9.45)  462,778   78.31   259,534   (4.15)
Total Assets  17,685,665   (4.91)  18,598,471   (19.91)  23,221,277   23.89   18,744,216   8.46 
        
Total Equity  9,255,332   (2.06)  9,449,959   2.79   9,193,478   4.56   8,792,745   4.17 
Borrowings from financial institutions  6,370,738   (2.74)  6,549,981   (43.79)  11,652,435   26.37   9,221,225   8.62 
Deposits and other accounts  1,814,001   (12.78)  2,079,728   10.01   1,890,502   389.69   386,060   1,439.31 
Other liabilities  245,594   (52.66)  518,803   7.00   484,862   40.87   344,186   5.35 
Total Equity and Liabilities  17,685,665   (4.91)  18,598,471   (19.91)  23,221,277   23.89   18,744,216   8.46 
        
        
Profit and Loss Account        
Mark-up / return / interest earned  1,045,117   (15.97)  1,243,694   (17.62)  1,509,674   22.40   1,233,407   6.88 
Mark-up / return / interest expensed  387,358   (27.36)  533,274   (14.97)  627,125   23.44   508,046   3.92 
Net mark-up / interest income  657,759   (7.41)  710,420   (19.50)  882,549   21.67   725,361   9.06 
        
Net mark-up / interest income after provision  591,168   (47.51)  1,126,276   30.12   865,600   130.95   374,802   (4.03)
        
Non Markup / Interest Income        
Fee, commission and brokerage income  10,327   (47.39)  19,631   42.00   13,825   (7.74)  14,985   (17.71)
Dividend income  39,683   31.38   30,205   (0.18)  30,260   11.56   27,125   19.15 
Income from dealing in foreign currencies  (771)  (288.97)  408   (24.72)  542   181.02  (669)  (200.75)
Gain on sale of securities - net  69,591   2,225.13  4,913   (99.05)  313,567   (4.39)  327,977   33.04 
Unrealised (loss) / Gain on revaluation of 
  investments classified as held for trading  9,680   (604.17)  (1,920)  (360.16)  738   (22.96)  958   (122.10)
Other income / charges  -     (100.00)  5   (99.40)  828   (57.95)  1,969   (23.71)
Total non mark-up / return / interest income  128,510   150.40   53,242   (85.73)  359,760   (3.38)  372,345   30.00 
        
Total non mark-up / interest expenses  351,464   10.38   318,427   5.43   302,029   6.67   283,150   28.42 
        
Profit before tax  368,214   (57.14)   861,071   (6.95)  923,331   99.00   463,997   1.65 
Taxation - net  138,419   (46.31)  257,800   (20.90)  325,917   190.67   112,128   (4.37)
Profit after taxation  229,795   (61.79)  603,291   0.66   597,414   69.78   351,869   3.73 
        
Basic and diluted earnings per share  0.38   (62.38)   1.01   1.00   1.00   69.49   0.59   3.51 
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(Rupees in '000) 

  2013   %   2012   %   2011   %   2010   %   2009   %  2008   % 
   (Restated)  (Restated)           
  
 27,829   (36.75)  43,999   381.23   9,143   (13.35)  10,552   300.76   2,633   (99.48)
  158,417   48.63   106,586   415.53   20,675   (94.14)  352,808   (73.06)  1,309,451   (27.91)
  -     -     -     -     -     (100.00)  600,000   34.45   446,250   (26.96)
  12,745,355   17.56   10,841,572   20.81   8,974,337   25.32   7,160,982   34.44   5,326,675   114.96 
  3,678,206   (14.96)  4,325,337   74.75   2,475,156   17.67   2,103,430   122.49   945,387   188.83 
  196,201   250.07   56,047   16.62   48,060   7.37   44,762   71.69   26,071   21.38 
  204,896   85.29   110,582   36.93   80,756   272.82   21,661   (80.27)  109,799   1,407.61 
  270,782   6.91   253,291   6.43   237,980   34.90   176,414   48.01   119,188   152.91 
  17,281,686   9.81   15,737,414   32.85   11,846,107   13.14   10,470,609   26.37   8,285,454   42.47 
         
  8,440,730   2.96   8,197,710   6.07   7,728,863   3.96   7,434,445   18.13   6,293,518   18.23 
  8,489,171   26.30   6,721,178   81.88   3,695,484   29.06   2,863,481   54.17   1,857,327   303.80 
  25,080   (95.40)  545,080   109.65   260,000   100.00   -     -     -     -   
  326,705   19.48   273,446   69.04   161,760   (6.33)  172,683   28.28   134,609   313.89 
  17,281,686   9.81   15,737,414   32.85   11,846,107   13.14   10,470,609   26.37   8,285,454   42.47 
         
         
         
  1,153,996   (22.41)  1,487,341   12.42   1,323,067   28.43   1,030,191   27.21   809,863   53.66 
 488,889   (27.90)  678,102   68.38   402,712   108.13   193,494   55.11   124,744   291.07 
  665,107   (17.81)  809,239   (12.07)  920,355   10.00   836,697   22.12   685,119   38.36 
         
  390,545   (44.39)  702,286   17.79   596,219   (34.96)  916,652   113.49   429,374   (6.18)
         
         
  18,210   (22.04)  23,359   82.54   12,797   78.11   7,185   (59.87)  17,906   394.50 
  22,765   25.83   18,093   (11.71)  20,492   (9.18)  22,564   25.89   17,924   (70.26)
  664   (10.90)  745   2,158.15   33   100.00   -     -     -     -   
  246,533   91.39   128,809   309.33   31,468   (76.60)  134,480   6.15   126,684   310.31 
 
  (4,334)  (812.57)  608   (107.53)  (8,080)  (212.21)  7,201   (1,248.48)  (627)  (100.00)
  2,581   441.09   477   (70.74)  1,630  (729)  (259) (114)   1,812  100 
  286,419   66.43   172,091   194.98   58,340   (65.92)  171,171   4.56   163,699   72.75 
         
  220,483   (7.67)  238,798   42.35   167,757   (19.83)  209,239   90.07   110,083   33.41 
         
  456,481   (28.18)  635,579   30.56   486,802   (44.59)  878,584   81.91   482,990   2.78 
  117,251   (40.00)  195,417   (19.99)  244,253   (18.64)  300,227   169.09   111,573   (26.48)
  339,230   (22.93)  440,162   81.47   242,549   (58.06)  578,357   55.72   371,417   16.74 
         
  0.57   (21.92)  0.73   82.50   0.40   (59.18)  0.98   32.10   32.43   -   

  506,887   2,526.09 
  1,816,376   (35.33)
  611,000   1.83 
  2,477,998   246.70 
  327,318   100.00 
  21,478   50.09 
  7,283   100.00 
  47,126   30.35 
  5,815,466   38.69 
 
  5,322,986   28.97 
  459,957   100.00 
  -     (100.00)
  32,523   (49.36)
  5,815,466   38.69 
 
 
 
  527,054   123.84 
  31,898   100.00 
  495,156   110.29 
 
  457,656   100.00 
 
 
  3,621   100.00 
  60,266   100.00 
  -     -   
  30,875   6,626.58 

  -     -   
  -     -   
  94,762   20,545.32 
 
  82,513   111.15 
 
  469,905   138.72 
  151,759   120.79 
  318,146   148.34 
  
 0.74   45.10 



CASH FLOW SUMMARY
For the Year Ended December 31

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
For the Year Ended December 31

 (Rupees in '000) 
 
 2017 2016   2015   2014   2013   2012   2011   2010
      (Restated)    

Cash flows from operating activities  (213,566)  (725,103)  4,181,808   1,601,343   (3,888,232)  1,963,372   1,708,563   448,811 

Cash flows from investing activities  446,175   1,110,551   (4,139,630)  (1,493,227)  3,973,893   (1,817,605)  (2,042,105)  (1,906,710)

Cash flows from financing activities  (600,000)  (150,000)  (75,000)  -     (50,000)  (25,000)  -     509,175 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  496,988   261,540   294,362   186,246   150,585   29,818   363,360   1,312,084 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  129,597   496,988   261,540   294,362   186,246   150,585   29,818   363,360 

 2017 2016  2015   2014   2013   2012   2011   2010  
Profitability Ratios (%)      (Restated)  
Gross Profit Margin 62.94 57.12 58.46 58.81 57.64 54.41 69.56 81.22
Operating Margin  31.37   66.34   49.39   28.90   31.69   38.30   35.24   73.13 
Net Profit Margin  19.58   46.44   31.96   21.91   23.55   26.52   17.56   48.14 
Yield on Investment  6.73   6.23   9.13   9.13   8.26   12.15   12.87   13.60 
Yield on Advances  7.17   7.35   10.28   10.28   10.96   12.26   13.44   11.20 
Debt Equity Ratio  88.43   91.32   147.31   109.26   100.87   88.64   51.18   38.52 
        
Return to Share Holders (%)        
Return on Average Assets (ROA)  2.03   4.11   4.40   2.58   2.76   4.61   4.36   9.37 
Return on Average Equity  (ROE)  3.94   9.22   10.27   5.38   5.49   7.98   6.42   12.80 
Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)  1.32   3.33   2.63   1.91   2.00   2.85   2.08   5.62 
Earning per Share  0.38   1.00   1.00   0.59   0.57   0.73   0.40   0.98 
Earning Growth  0.91   0.69   1.16   1.11   0.87   1.20   1.15   1.23 
Profit Growth  0.43   0.93   1.99   1.02   0.72   1.31   0.55   1.82 
Breakup Value per Share  15.43   15.75   15.32   14.65   14.07   13.66   12.88   12.57 
        
        
Performance / Liquidity (%)        
Total Assets Turnover  6.47   6.19   8.91   8.91   8.72   12.03   12.38   12.81 
Total Liabilities / Equity  91.09   96.81   152.58   113.18   104.74   91.97   53.27   40.84 
Paid-up Capital / Total Assets  33.93   32.26   25.84   32.01   34.72   38.13   50.65   57.30 
Equity / Total Assets  52.33   50.81   39.59   46.91   48.84   52.09   65.24   71.00
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For the Year Ended December 31

STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED

 (Rupees in '000) 
 
 2017 2016   2015   2014   2013   2012   2011   2010
      (Restated)    

Cash flows from operating activities  (213,566)  (725,103)  4,181,808   1,601,343   (3,888,232)  1,963,372   1,708,563   448,811 

Cash flows from investing activities  446,175   1,110,551   (4,139,630)  (1,493,227)  3,973,893   (1,817,605)  (2,042,105)  (1,906,710)

Cash flows from financing activities  (600,000)  (150,000)  (75,000)  -     (50,000)  (25,000)  -     509,175 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  496,988   261,540   294,362   186,246   150,585   29,818   363,360   1,312,084 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  129,597   496,988   261,540   294,362   186,246   150,585   29,818   363,360 
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            Rupees in '000  

WEALTH GENERATED 2017  2016  2015  2014  2013  2012 
            
Financial & Other Income  1,173,627  1,296,936  1,869,434  1,605,752  1,440,415  1,659,432 
Financial & Other Expenses  604,858  215,231  730,728  951,456  797,052  875,557 
 568,769  1,081,705  1,138,706  654,296  643,363  783,875 

            
WEALTH DISTRIBUTED  2017 % 2016 % 2015 % 2014 % 2013 % 2012 % 
           
To Employees            
Salaries, benefits and 
related costs  186,462 33% 205,369 19% 193,626 17% 168,485 26% 157,420 24% 124,931 16%
            
To Government            
Income Tax  138,419 24% 257,800 24% 325,917 29% 112,128 17% 117,251 18% 195,343 25%
            
To Shareholders            
Cash dividend   150,000  26%  300,000  28%  300,000  26%  150,000  23%  100,000  16%  50,000  6%
Stock dividend   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
            
Retained for reinvestment 
& future growth            
Depreciation, Amortisation            
 and retained Profit  93,888 17% 318,536 29% 319,163 28% 223,683 34% 268,692 42% 413,601 53%
 568,769 100% 1,081,705 100% 1,138,706 100% 654,296 100% 643,363 100% 783,875 100%







The overall improvement in business sentiments along with 
supportive policies (historically low interest rate, high 
infrastructure spending and better law and order) has encouraged 
a number of companies to pursue expansion plans. This was 
reflected in a significant surge in private sector credit off-take 
during FY17, with a sizable share of fixed investment loans. As per 
State Bank of Pakistan, the private sector credit off-take stood at 
PKR 5,501 billion at the end of FY17 which used to be PKR 4,037 
billion at the end of FY14. Large Scale Manufacturing (“LSM”) 
sector picked up gradually and clocked in at highest for the nine 
years. This is an encouraging economic sign as one of the major 
drivers of pickup in LSM activity has been the increase in 
manufacturing of iron and steel products that is being used in the 
ongoing construction and infrastructure development projects. This would eventually help increase the country’s 
economic output in the medium to long term. The LSM growth is expected to stay strong going forward as construction 
and other infrastructure activities pick up in the months leading to elections. Decade low interest rates coupled with soft 
inflation will continue to boost local demand, as evident in the trend in private credit off-take has recorded the strongest 
expansion in over a decade.

CPI inflation remained quite stable in the first two quarters of FY17, but picked up gradually in the third & fourth quarter. 
The average inflation for FY17 was 4.0 percent, compared to 2.6 percent in the same period last year. However, it still 
remained significantly lower than the annual target of 6.0 percent. The average CPI inflation is expected to be well within 
control in the near term, whereby it is expected that the average CPI is going to pick up some momentum in the months 
to come largely due to base effect and can potentially go up to 5.3-5.4% range over the next 3-4 months. The 
commodity prices (oil mainly) coupled with exchange rate changes will also be playing their roles.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the Financial Statements of PAΪR Investment Company 
Limited (PAΪR) for the year ended December 31, 2017. These Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance 
with the requirements of BSD Circular No. 11 dated August 04, 2004 and BSD Circular No. 14 of September 24, 2004.

Economic Overview
Economic performance in 2017 remained strong. Real GDP growth maintained its upward trajectory and increased to 
a decade-high of 5.3 percent. The other macroeconomic indicators, such as subdued inflation, investment growth, 
and rising private sector credit showed an encouraging picture. However, decline in exports is overshadowing the 
otherwise reviving economic activity. According to the State Bank of Pakistan’s recent report on economy, the revival 
in agriculture during FY17 is notable which is supported by favorable policy measures, including subsidy on fertilizer, 
reduction in sales tax on tractors, and increased access to finance. Better agriculture had, in turn, positive spillover for 
trade and manufacturing sectors. Further, Public Sector Development Programme (PSDP) and China-Pakistan 
Economic Corridor (CPEC) related activities also continued to boost construction-related industries, such as cement 
and steel. At the same time, a hefty increase in machinery imports was also noted.

The GDP growth hit multi-year highs and reached 4.7%. The commodity producing sector has performed a little less 
than the last year, however, the industrial sector which contributed 21.02% in GDP recorded a growth of 6.80% as 
compared to 4.81% last year. The industrial sector performance shows that it has surpassed the targeted growth of 
6.4%, which is an indicator that industrial revival is taking place on the fast track. Improved gas supplies to industries 
will enable the industrial sector to continue to perform better in a more cost-effective manner.  
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The currency devaluation would help in arresting pressure off the external account to an extent. However, sharp rise in 
inflation is not expected amid currency adjustment as most of the commodity prices in the domestic market are already 
at a higher level than that of international markets.  

The KSE-100 index generated a positive return of 2.5% during the last week of FY17 to close at 40,471 points, ironically 
marking a sweet end to a rather troublesome year. Appointment of Mr. Miftah Ismail as Adviser to the PM on Finance, 
Revenue and Economic Affairs and his pro-business plans alongside diluting political noise, charged the market bulls at 
the start of FY18. While in the view of some experts, the market is set to achieve over 47,000 points by the end of next 
year, certain challenges need to be addressed in the interim, including peaceful and timely elections in 2018, contained 
external account pressures, stable currency etc. 

Financial Highlights 
The Company earned gross markup income of PKR 1045.12 million and non-markup income of PKR 128.51 million.  
The total assets were maintained at PKR 17.68 billion as against PKR 18.5 billion as at December 31, 2016. The decline 
includes decrease in long-term government securities, some of which matured; some were sold to realize the capital 
gains & decrease in advances where the lag between the disbursement and repayments of the loans remained unmet. 
Further Advances also decreased due to reclassification of PKR 761.295 million to investments in the form of Term 
Finance Certificates portfolio, thus closing at PKR 4.46 billion as compared to PKR 5.4 billion as at the close of the 
year ended December 31, 2016. 

The streak of control over non-performing loans continued and there was no new addition in the non-performing 
portfolio. The Management has made vigorous efforts for settlement of non-performing loans; as a result, reversals 
of PKR 45.99 million could be materialized. P&L charge of PKR 42.36 million was taken as Provision against 
non-performing loans during the year due to reduction in the Forced Sales Value benefit available under the 
Prudential Regulations on the legacy portfolio. Sharp decline in the share market prices has taken a toll on the 
Company’s portfolio and a P&L charge of PKR 70.69 million is taken as Provision for diminution in value of 
investments. During the year, a charge of PKR 55.091 million was taken in the administrative expenses in respect of 
Workers Welfare Fund (“WWF”). It includes the charge for the prior year too.  Excluding the charge for WWF, the 
admin expenses for FY17 stood at PKR 296.32 million, which is 6.86% less than the admin expenses of FY16, which 
were PKR 318.14 million.

Credit Rating
Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has reaffirmed entity rating Long-Term Entity Rating ‘AA’ (Double A) 
and a Short-Term Entity Rating of ‘A1+’ (A One Plus). These ratings indicate a very low expectation of credit risk 
emanating very strong capacity for timely payment of financial commitments. The ratings of PAÏR primarily reflect 
the joint sovereign ownership of Pakistan and Iran. 

Statement of Internal Controls
The Board is pleased to endorse the statement made by the Management relating to internal controls, including the 
Management’s evaluation of ICFR. The Management’s statement on Internal Controls is included in the Annual Report.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
The Board of Directors of PAΪR, for the purpose of establishing a framework of good corporate governance has 
implemented the relevant provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance for the year ended December 31, 2017. 
Review report on the Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance from the external auditors is 
annexed with this report. As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors states that:
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• The financial statements prepared by the Management of PAΪR present fairly its state of affairs, the results of its 
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

• Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and 
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

• International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of the financial 
statements and any departure therefrom has been adequately disclosed.

• As a continuous process, efforts have been made to effectively implement the internal control system. An 
effective and sound system of internal control is in the process of being designed in accordance with the 
requirements of the regulatory authorities.

• There is no doubt regarding PAΪR’s ability to continue as a going concern.

• There has been no material departure from the best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance.

• Key operating and financial data for the years 2008-2017 in summarized form is included in the annual report.

• Tax outstanding amount and reason thereon are properly disclosed in the attached financial statements.

Risk Management Framework
Taking cognizance of various types of business risks, an effective risk management framework is embedded in PAÏR`s 
strategy and organization structure. An independent Credit and Risk Management Department (CRMD) is working as 
a core function to strengthen Company-wide Risk Management activities by adopting Basel II/III Framework. PAΪR is 
fully compliant with the Capital Adequacy Requirements of the State Bank of Pakistan under the Standardized 
Approach for Credit and Market Risk and Basic Indicator Approach for Operational Risk. 

The prevailing economic situation has led the Company to set its focus towards deployment of stringent risk 
management polices to assess, mitigate and monitor major risks associated with business operations of the 
Company. Accordingly, the Company has established a set of activities and created core functions to administer, 
manage and report in order to complement its core business objectives and to remain abreast with latest 
developments & challenges to safeguard Shareholders’ interests / enhance Shareholders’ wealth.

The Company has implemented a robust Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) to establish more 
Risk Sensitive Assessment, capital planning, formalization of Company-wide Risk Appetite, and to remain abreast 
with the internal and external risks that may impact future operations of the Company. The deployment of this 
process allowed an adequate management of capital as the Capital Adequacy Ratio stood at 60.16% against the 
regulatory requirement of 10% plus Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) of 1.275%. This contributed to the 
development of risk appetite and concentrations levels with respect to the transaction level risk profiling as well as 
integrated portfolio management.  

PAÏR also periodically evaluates the organic strength of business by conducting Stress Testing of overall risk exposure. 
It helps to ensure the smooth operations of business under hypothetically stressed circumstances. For this, CRMD 
applies shocks on different risk factors including interest rate, credit, equity price, and liquidity. Results of latest stress 
testing exercise depict solid and resilient financial position of the organization. The stress testing methodology 
implemented by PAÏR is in adherence of SBP guidelines. 

The Credit & Risk Management Department is also involved in the development of entity-wide policies, procedures, 
systems and reporting mechanism to achieve and maintain entity-wide best rating status and adaption of risk 
management principles in true letter and spirit. Further, Board Risk Management Committee and Board of Directors 
of the organization oversee the strategy related to risk management. In addition, the Internal Audit department 
conducts independent, risk-based review and verification of major functions throughout the year for evaluation of 
control systems supplemented by Internal Control and Compliance Divisions.
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Events after the Date of Statement of Financial Position
There have not been any material events that occurred subsequent to the date of the statement of the financial 
position that require adjustments to the enclosed financial statements, except those which have already been made 
or disclosed.

Corporate Social Responsibility 
The Company firmly believes in being a responsible corporate citizen and plays an integral role in our long-term 
success, and strives to incorporate the approach into every aspect of its work culture. In addition to our priority of 
operating profitability, the Company is aware of its responsibilities that go beyond its business, particularly its 
commitment towards employees, society and the environment. In FY17, we have extended our support to the 
following organizations engaged in various philanthropic activities:    

• National Institute of Child Health 
• Al Umeed Rehabilitation Association
• Patient Aid Foundation
• The Kidney Center

The Company will continue to encourage community growth and development, thereby contributing in building a 
sustainable future in FY18 and beyond. Being a joint venture between the two brotherly countries, inclusion of the 
charitable organizations from Iran will also be ensured, subject to the regulatory approvals for the latter.

PAÏR Investment also, on an annual basis, sponsors one of its staff members to perform Hajj, through a transparent 
balloting mechanism. 

Board of Directors and their Meetings
Four (4) Board Meetings were held during the year 2017. The director(s) who were not able to attend any of the meeting(s) 
were duly granted leave of absence by the Board. The directors of the Company attended the meetings, as under:
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Name of Director  Representing  Meetings Attended

Seyed Ahmad Araghchi - Chairman  IFIC - Iran 4

Nadeem Karamat - MD/CEO* MOF - Pakistan  2

Hamid Eftekhari Kondelaji - Director** IFIC - Iran 4

Aamer Mahmood Hussain - Director MOF - Pakistan  4

Hemmat Jafari - Director IFIC - Iran 4

Zahoor Ahmed - Director*** MOF - Pakistan  4

*Mr. Nadeem Karamat completed his three years tenure as MD/CEO on May 15, 2017.

** Mr. Hamid Eftekhari Kondelaji was appointed as MD/CEO in place of Mr. Nadeem Karamat and attended his 
first board meeting as MD/CEO on 04 August, 2017.

***Under the bylaws of the Company, with the appointment of Mr. Hamid Eftekhari Kondelaji being the nominee 
of Iranian shareholders, the position of Chairman of the Board of Directors is vacant since August 2017. The 
appointment of Chairman of the Board of Directors is awaited from the Ministry of Finance, Government of 
Pakistan. The Board members with mutual consent have selected Mr. Zahoor Ahmed, who also is a nominee of 
MOF, to act as Chairman of the Board of Directors for the interim period. 



Size: 8 x 11 Inch

Board Committees and their Meetings
Four (4) meetings of Board Audit Committee (BAC) and Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC), Three (3) 
meetings of Board Human Resource Compensation Committee (BHRCC) and Board Strategic Investment 
Committee (BSIC) were held during 2017.

The member(s) who were not able to attend any of the meeting(s) were duly granted leave of absence by the 
committee. The details of the meetings attended by each committee member are as under:

Name of Director  Representing Designation and BAC BRMC BHRCC BSIC
  Name of the
  Committee 

Member BHRCC
Chairman BSIC

3
3

IFIC - Iran

MOF - Pakistan

IFIC - Iran

MOF - Pakistan

IFIC - Iran

Seyed Ahmad 
Araghchi

Nadeem Karamat

Hamid Eftekhari 
Kondelaji

Aamer Mahmood 
Hussain

Zahoor Ahmed

Hemmat Jafari

Member BRMC
Member BHRCC
Member BSIC

2
1

2

MOF - Pakistan
Chairman BAC
Chairman BRMC
Member BRMC

4
2
2

Member BAC
Chairman BRMC
Member BRMC
Member BHRCC
Member BSIC

Member BAC
Chairman BHRCC
Chairman BSIC

2
2
2

1
3

2

1
3

Member BAC
Member BRMC

4
4
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Staff End-of-Service Benefits
The Bank operates two post-retirement funds, Provident Fund & Gratuity Fund. The carrying value of investments 
and bank balance based on the last un-audited financial statements of the respective funds as at December 31st 
2017, were:

Earnings Per Share
Basic and Diluted earnings per share have been disclosed in note 29 of the financial statements.

 Value of Investments  Provident Fund Gratuity
 and Bank Balances  
 

 2017 55,699  34,152

 2016 59,052 32,219

------------PKR ‘000------------ 



Pattern of Shareholding

Appointment of Auditors
The present auditors M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Company, Chartered Accountants, retired and being eligible, offer 
themselves for re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Therefore, on the suggestion of the Audit 
Committee, the Board of Directors recommends the Shareholders to appoint M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Company, 
Chartered Accountants as the statutory auditor of the Company for the financial year ending December 31, 2018. 

Future Outlook

FY18 being the election year, poses uncertainties in terms of political and economic challenges. However, the future 
outlook for Pakistan is positive. With the highest GDP growth in a decade, the country is showing signs of sustainable 
economic growth. The industrial growth has and will accelerate on the back of higher activity in large-scale 
manufacturing and construction, the latter being driven primarily by initiation of China-Pakistan Economic Corridor 
(CPEC) infrastructure and energy projects.

PAÏR investment sees a wide scope of business for itself in the year 2018, however, it takes full cognizance of the 
challenges in terms of high cost of funds and shrinking spread of the financial industry. Therefore, it will be focusing 
on raising low funds from non-conventional sources for a DFI and will be expanding its customer base through its 
diversified product portfolio.   
 
Appreciation and Acknowledgement
  
We would like to thank our customers and business partners for the trust they have placed in us. We offer sincere 
appreciation to the Iran Foreign Investment Company, Ministry of Finance - Government of Pakistan, State Bank of 
Pakistan and Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan for their guidance and cooperation extended to our 
Company. Finally, we are also thankful to our associates, staff and colleagues for their commitment and their 
contribution to the progress of our business.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Karachi, Zahoor Ahmed
Date: March 04, 2018 Chairman of the Board of Directors

Shareholders Shareholding

Government of Pakistan through Ministry of Finance 50%

Government of Iran through Iran Foreign Investment Company 50%

Total 100%
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45.99

42.36 (legacy)

P&L 70.69 (Provision) P&L

("WWF") 55.091 (Provision)

318.14 6.86% 296.32 WWF

2017 31

2017 2008

(CRMD)

(Standarized Approach BASEL II/III

Basic Indicator Approach for Operational Risk for Credit & Market Risk)

(ICAAP)

(Integrated Portfolio 10.25% 69.5%

(Concentration Level) Management)

CRMD
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STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROLS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

This statement is being issued in compliance with the Guidelines on Internal Controls, issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) 
vide BSD Circular No. 7 dated May 27, 2004. Paragraph 7a of the SBP guidelines on Internal Controls requires all Banks and DFIs 
to assess their internal controls and their effectiveness. 

 Evaluation of Internal Control Systems by Management  
The Management of PAÏR Investment is responsible for (i) preparing the DFI’s annual financial statements in accordance with the 
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and (ii) establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control 
structure and procedures for financial reporting. 

The Management of PAÏR Investment maintains an effective organization structure and institutes appropriate control 
procedures and monitors the adequacy / effectiveness of internal control systems. The Board of Directors is ultimately 
responsible for ensuring that an adequate and effective System of Internal Controls is established and efforts are made to 
implement sound control procedures and to maintain a suitable control environment.

The Management of PAÏR Investment has adapted the internationally accepted COSO Integrated Framework, in accordance 
with the guidelines on Internal Controls from the State Bank of Pakistan and has completed all stages of Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting (ICFR). In addition, DFI has formulated comprehensive guidelines for adherence to the COSO Framework on 
continuing basis. 

Because of its inherent limitations, Internal Control over Financial Reporting may not prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness of future periods are subject to the risk that controls may 
become inadequate because of changes, or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate. 

At the management level, the Internal Control Monitoring Committee (ICMC) is responsible for monitoring the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Internal Control System including ICFR, by periodically reviewing the internal control systems and 
implementation of the internal control gaps /deficiencies identified by the respective departments as a result of self-assessment, 
internal auditors, external auditors and regulators reviews. The gap / recommendation report is then submitted to ICMC, which 
decides on priority and implements initiatives which require taking into account the nature and size of the business and cost 
benefit analysis of the proposed controls. 

Furthermore, it also oversees the implementation of the internal controls framework and monitors the progress. Significant 
findings of testing are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

As required by the SBP, Long Form Report (LFR) on the assessment of DFI’s ICFR for the year 2016 was issued by the statutory 
auditors and has been submitted to SBP. None of the deficiencies identified are expected to have a material impact on Financial 
Reporting. Respective departments have carried out testing of the effectiveness of ICFR prevalent throughout the DFI for the 
year 2017. Statutory auditors were engaged to prepare a Long Form Report on ICFR as of December 31, 2017.

The DFI is continuously making efforts to ensure that an effective and efficient Internal Control System remains active & 
implemented through consistent & continuous monitoring that would help in further improving the overall control environment.  

Based upon the results achieved from reviews and audits conducted during the year, the Management considers that the existing 
Internal Control System is adequate and has been effectively implemented and monitored, though room for improvement 
always exists.

Date: March 04, 2018

Chief Executive &
Managing Director

Head of Internal AuditChief Financial Officer
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AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBER
ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate 
Governance (“the Code”) prepared by the Board of Directors of PAÏR Investment Company Limited (“the 
Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 to comply with the Regulation G-1 of the Prudential Regulations 
for Corporate/Commercial Banking issued by the State Bank of Pakistan.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility 
is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance 
reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to 
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and 
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to 
consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls, or to form an 
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval of related party transactions 
distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions 
and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price and recording proper justification for using such 
alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of 
the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were 
undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance 
does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained 
in the Code as applicable to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Date: 4 Mach 2018 Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi  Muhammad Taufiq
 Engagement Partner
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THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
WITH THE BEST PRACTICES OF THE CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance. The code, as framed by the 
SECP, is applicable to the PAÏR Investment Company Limited through regulation G-1 of the prudential regulation for 
corporate /commercial banks issued by the State bank of Pakistan.   
   
The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in following manner: 

1. As per the joint venture arrangement between the Government of Pakistan and the Government of Iran, the 
Company’s Board of Directors comprises of six directors and all directors are nominated by both the 
Shareholders. The Company encourages representation of non-executive directors on its Board of Directors (the 
Board). At present, the Board includes:  

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 
including this Company. 

3. All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment 
of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared 
as a defaulter by that stock exchange. 

4. One casual vacancy occurred on the Board during the year: it was duly filled within the prescribed time.

5. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures. 

6. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were 
approved or amended has been maintained.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including the 
appointment and the determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief 
Executive Officer and non-executive directors have been taken by the Board. 

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and the Board met at least once in every quarter. 
Written notices of the board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven 
days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

9. Directors’ training has already been performed by two director‘s the other three will attend the directors’ 
training program this year. 

Mr. Zahoor Ahmed 
Mr. Aamer Mahmood Hussain
Mr. Seyed Ahmad Araghchi  
Mr. Hemmat Jafari 

Category Names

Executive Directors 

Non-Executive Directors 

Mr. Hamid Eftekhari Kondelaji
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 PAΪR Investment Company Limited, "the Company" is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 January 
2007 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company has been notified as a Development Financial Institution by the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

 The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment Company which is owned by 
the Government of Iran. The Company's objectives interalia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects, capital and 
money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registered and principal office is situated at ICCI Building, 
Clifton, Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 17 February 2006. Furthermore, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 
2018 has notified a new format of financial statements effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2018. The new 
format would result in additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements presentation.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
The amounts are rounded to nearest thousand rupees.

2.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives of SBP or SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements 
of the said directives shall prevail.

 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017. SECP vide its Circular No. 
23 of 2017 has clarified that all those companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

 - The SBP through its BSD Circular letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in 
Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1)/2008. 
Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), have not been considered in preparation of 
these financial statements.

 - IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Company's accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2009. All banking 
companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD 
Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, 'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended 
31 December 2006. 

 - The management of the Company believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorisation in the above mentioned 
circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in 
these financial statements is based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

 -  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain 
types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net 
of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new 

10. The Board had approved the appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including 
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment.  

11. The Directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the CCG and fully 
describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.  

12. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the CEO and CFO before approval of the Board.  

13. The Directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that 
disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.  

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the CCG.  

15. The Board has formed an Audit Committee which comprises of 2 members, including the Chairman, representing 
the Ministry of Finance - Government of Pakistan. All the members of the committee are non-executive 
directors. 

16. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final 
results of the Company and as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the committee have been formed 
and advised to the committee for compliance.  

17. The Board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of 3 members, of whom 2 are 
non-executive directors and the Chairman of the committee is a non-executive director representing the 
Ministry of Finance.  

18. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function, which is considered suitably qualified and experienced 
for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company. 

19. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 
quality control review program of the ICAP, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor 
children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with 
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on the code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.  

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 
except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard.  

21. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with. 

 
 Mr. Zahoor Ahmed
Date: 4 March 2018 Chairman
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requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.

 -  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate 
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity 
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency 
is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain 
the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in 
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the 
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the 
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is 
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Bank is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition 
policies on adoption of the standard. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in revenue 
recognition policies on adoption of the standard and considers that the impact would not be significant. 

 -  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively).  IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The 
Company is currently awaiting instructions from SBP as applicability of IAS 39 (as explained in note 2.2) was deferred by SBP till 
further instructions. 

 -  Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities 
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and 
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 
accounting standards:

 -  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a 
company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held 
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

 
 -  IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

 -  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally 
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances 
with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

4.2 Sale and re-purchase agreements

 The Company enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are 
recorded as under: 

 Sale under re-purchase obligations

 Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the counter 
party liability is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase value is accrued over the period of the agreement and 
recorded as an expense. 

 Securities purchased under agreement to re-sale (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions. The differential 
between the contracted price and re-sale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income.

4.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following: 

 - Classification and valuation of investments and impairment (Note 4.4)
 -   Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease (Note 4.5)
 -   Provision against off - balance sheet obligations (Note 4.18)
 -   Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (Note 4.22)
 -   Useful life of operating assets and methods of depreciation and amortization (Note 4.6)
 -   Taxation - Current (Note 4.7)
 -   Taxation - Deferred (Note 4.7)
 -   Staff retirement benefit and compensated absences (Notes 4.20 & 4.21)

4.4 Investments

 The Company classifies its investments as follows:

 Held for trading 

 These are securities, which are  acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market/ interest rate 
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis.  These securities are 
required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in 
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

 Held to maturity

 These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity.

 Available for sale

 Investments that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to maturity categories' are classified as 'available for sale'.

 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention 
are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

 Initial Recognition

 Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

 Subsequent Measurement

 Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and 'available for sale' are valued at 

rates quoted on PKRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSE) as at the date of statement of financial position respectively. Any surplus 
or deficit arising as a result of revaluation of securities categorised as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account ant that of 
'available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown below equity in accordance with the requirements of 
State Bank of Pakistan.

 Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions and 
information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matter of 
judgement (e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are stated at their amortized cost less impairment In value, if any.

 Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of 
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited 
financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries and associates if any (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting 
Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till 
maturity using effective interest method.

 Impairment

 Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates) and held to maturity recognised 
based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an investment below its cost 
is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provisions for diminution in the value of  debt securities is made as per the 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss 
that has been recognised below equity is removed and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to 
maturity, the impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

4.5 Advances including net investment in finance lease

 Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of 
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account. These 
regulations prescribe an age based criteria (as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non - 
performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.

 Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessees 
are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance lease”.

 The Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances and provision required there against on a 
regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the 
borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

4.6 Operating fixed assets

 Tangible assets

 Operating fixed assets except capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic 
lives at the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking 
into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are available for use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. 

 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in operating fixed assets.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / useful 
life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on depreciation charge and 
impairment.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of an 
intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to the Company. 
The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become 
available for use.

4.7 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax 
credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, 
which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax 
rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax laws 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which it 
can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that related tax benefits 
will be realised.

4.8 Borrowings and deposits

 Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit 
and loss account on a time proportion basis.

4.9 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

 Translation gains and losses

 Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

4.10 Revenue recognition

 Mark-up / return / interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account effective yield on the asset, except 
where recovery is considered doubtful, the income is recognised on receipt basis.  Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / 
restructured advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

 A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

 The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss account. 

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account over the 
remaining period through effective interest method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income is recognised as the services are rendered.

4.11 Impairment

 The carrying amount of the Company’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. 



AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
We have audited the annexed statement of financial position of PAÏR Investment Company Limited (“the Company”) 
as at 31 December 2017 and the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow 
statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and 
we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s Management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare 
and present the abovesaid statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the 
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the abovesaid statements are free of any 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the abovesaid statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the abovesaid statements. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

a) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the repealed Companies 
Ordinance, 1984;

b) in our opinion:

i) the statement of financial position and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn 
up in conformity with the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account 
and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with 
the objects of the Company;

c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of 
financial position, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement 
of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required by the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner 
so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2017 and 
of the profit, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d) in our opinion, no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 were audited by another firm of chartered 
accountants who had expressed an unmodified opinion thereon dated 17 February 2017.

 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Date: 4 March 2018  Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi Muhammad Taufiq
 Engagement Partner
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 PAΪR Investment Company Limited, "the Company" is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 January 
2007 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company has been notified as a Development Financial Institution by the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

 The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment Company which is owned by 
the Government of Iran. The Company's objectives interalia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects, capital and 
money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registered and principal office is situated at ICCI Building, 
Clifton, Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 17 February 2006. Furthermore, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 
2018 has notified a new format of financial statements effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2018. The new 
format would result in additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements presentation.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
The amounts are rounded to nearest thousand rupees.

2.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives of SBP or SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements 
of the said directives shall prevail.

 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017. SECP vide its Circular No. 
23 of 2017 has clarified that all those companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

 - The SBP through its BSD Circular letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in 
Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1)/2008. 
Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), have not been considered in preparation of 
these financial statements.

 - IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Company's accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2009. All banking 
companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD 
Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, 'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended 
31 December 2006. 

 - The management of the Company believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorisation in the above mentioned 
circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in 
these financial statements is based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

 -  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain 
types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net 
of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new 

requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.

 -  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate 
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity 
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency 
is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain 
the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in 
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the 
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the 
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is 
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Bank is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition 
policies on adoption of the standard. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in revenue 
recognition policies on adoption of the standard and considers that the impact would not be significant. 

 -  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively).  IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The 
Company is currently awaiting instructions from SBP as applicability of IAS 39 (as explained in note 2.2) was deferred by SBP till 
further instructions. 

 -  Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities 
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and 
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 
accounting standards:

 -  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a 
company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held 
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

 
 -  IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

 -  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally 
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances 
with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

4.2 Sale and re-purchase agreements

 The Company enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are 
recorded as under: 

 Sale under re-purchase obligations

 Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the counter 
party liability is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase value is accrued over the period of the agreement and 
recorded as an expense. 

 Securities purchased under agreement to re-sale (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions. The differential 
between the contracted price and re-sale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income.

4.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following: 

 - Classification and valuation of investments and impairment (Note 4.4)
 -   Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease (Note 4.5)
 -   Provision against off - balance sheet obligations (Note 4.18)
 -   Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (Note 4.22)
 -   Useful life of operating assets and methods of depreciation and amortization (Note 4.6)
 -   Taxation - Current (Note 4.7)
 -   Taxation - Deferred (Note 4.7)
 -   Staff retirement benefit and compensated absences (Notes 4.20 & 4.21)

4.4 Investments

 The Company classifies its investments as follows:

 Held for trading 

 These are securities, which are  acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market/ interest rate 
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis.  These securities are 
required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in 
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

 Held to maturity

 These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity.

 Available for sale

 Investments that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to maturity categories' are classified as 'available for sale'.

 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention 
are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

 Initial Recognition

 Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

 Subsequent Measurement

 Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and 'available for sale' are valued at 

rates quoted on PKRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSE) as at the date of statement of financial position respectively. Any surplus 
or deficit arising as a result of revaluation of securities categorised as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account ant that of 
'available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown below equity in accordance with the requirements of 
State Bank of Pakistan.

 Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions and 
information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matter of 
judgement (e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are stated at their amortized cost less impairment In value, if any.

 Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of 
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited 
financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries and associates if any (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting 
Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till 
maturity using effective interest method.

 Impairment

 Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates) and held to maturity recognised 
based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an investment below its cost 
is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provisions for diminution in the value of  debt securities is made as per the 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss 
that has been recognised below equity is removed and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to 
maturity, the impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

4.5 Advances including net investment in finance lease

 Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of 
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account. These 
regulations prescribe an age based criteria (as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non - 
performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.

 Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessees 
are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance lease”.

 The Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances and provision required there against on a 
regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the 
borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

4.6 Operating fixed assets

 Tangible assets

 Operating fixed assets except capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic 
lives at the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking 
into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are available for use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. 

 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in operating fixed assets.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / useful 
life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on depreciation charge and 
impairment.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of an 
intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to the Company. 
The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become 
available for use.

4.7 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax 
credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, 
which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax 
rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax laws 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which it 
can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that related tax benefits 
will be realised.

4.8 Borrowings and deposits

 Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit 
and loss account on a time proportion basis.

4.9 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

 Translation gains and losses

 Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

4.10 Revenue recognition

 Mark-up / return / interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account effective yield on the asset, except 
where recovery is considered doubtful, the income is recognised on receipt basis.  Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / 
restructured advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

 A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

 The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss account. 

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account over the 
remaining period through effective interest method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income is recognised as the services are rendered.

4.11 Impairment

 The carrying amount of the Company’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. 



1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 PAΪR Investment Company Limited, "the Company" is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 January 
2007 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company has been notified as a Development Financial Institution by the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

 The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment Company which is owned by 
the Government of Iran. The Company's objectives interalia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects, capital and 
money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registered and principal office is situated at ICCI Building, 
Clifton, Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 17 February 2006. Furthermore, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 
2018 has notified a new format of financial statements effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2018. The new 
format would result in additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements presentation.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
The amounts are rounded to nearest thousand rupees.

2.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives of SBP or SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements 
of the said directives shall prevail.

 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017. SECP vide its Circular No. 
23 of 2017 has clarified that all those companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

 - The SBP through its BSD Circular letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in 
Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1)/2008. 
Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), have not been considered in preparation of 
these financial statements.

 - IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Company's accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2009. All banking 
companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD 
Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, 'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended 
31 December 2006. 

 - The management of the Company believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorisation in the above mentioned 
circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in 
these financial statements is based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

 -  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain 
types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net 
of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new 

requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.

 -  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate 
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity 
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency 
is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain 
the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in 
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the 
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the 
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is 
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Bank is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition 
policies on adoption of the standard. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in revenue 
recognition policies on adoption of the standard and considers that the impact would not be significant. 

 -  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively).  IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The 
Company is currently awaiting instructions from SBP as applicability of IAS 39 (as explained in note 2.2) was deferred by SBP till 
further instructions. 

 -  Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities 
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and 
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 
accounting standards:

 -  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a 
company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held 
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

 
 -  IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

 -  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally 
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances 
with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

4.2 Sale and re-purchase agreements

 The Company enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are 
recorded as under: 

 Sale under re-purchase obligations

 Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the counter 
party liability is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase value is accrued over the period of the agreement and 
recorded as an expense. 

 Securities purchased under agreement to re-sale (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions. The differential 
between the contracted price and re-sale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income.

4.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following: 

 - Classification and valuation of investments and impairment (Note 4.4)
 -   Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease (Note 4.5)
 -   Provision against off - balance sheet obligations (Note 4.18)
 -   Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (Note 4.22)
 -   Useful life of operating assets and methods of depreciation and amortization (Note 4.6)
 -   Taxation - Current (Note 4.7)
 -   Taxation - Deferred (Note 4.7)
 -   Staff retirement benefit and compensated absences (Notes 4.20 & 4.21)

4.4 Investments

 The Company classifies its investments as follows:

 Held for trading 

 These are securities, which are  acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market/ interest rate 
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis.  These securities are 
required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in 
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

 Held to maturity

 These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity.

 Available for sale

 Investments that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to maturity categories' are classified as 'available for sale'.

 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention 
are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

 Initial Recognition

 Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

 Subsequent Measurement

 Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and 'available for sale' are valued at 

rates quoted on PKRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSE) as at the date of statement of financial position respectively. Any surplus 
or deficit arising as a result of revaluation of securities categorised as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account ant that of 
'available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown below equity in accordance with the requirements of 
State Bank of Pakistan.

 Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions and 
information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matter of 
judgement (e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are stated at their amortized cost less impairment In value, if any.

 Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of 
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited 
financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries and associates if any (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting 
Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till 
maturity using effective interest method.

 Impairment

 Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates) and held to maturity recognised 
based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an investment below its cost 
is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provisions for diminution in the value of  debt securities is made as per the 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss 
that has been recognised below equity is removed and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to 
maturity, the impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

4.5 Advances including net investment in finance lease

 Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of 
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account. These 
regulations prescribe an age based criteria (as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non - 
performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.

 Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessees 
are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance lease”.

 The Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances and provision required there against on a 
regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the 
borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

4.6 Operating fixed assets

 Tangible assets

 Operating fixed assets except capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic 
lives at the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking 
into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are available for use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. 

 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in operating fixed assets.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / useful 
life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on depreciation charge and 
impairment.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of an 
intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to the Company. 
The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become 
available for use.

4.7 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax 
credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, 
which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax 
rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax laws 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which it 
can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that related tax benefits 
will be realised.

4.8 Borrowings and deposits

 Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit 
and loss account on a time proportion basis.

4.9 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

 Translation gains and losses

 Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

4.10 Revenue recognition

 Mark-up / return / interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account effective yield on the asset, except 
where recovery is considered doubtful, the income is recognised on receipt basis.  Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / 
restructured advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

 A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

 The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss account. 

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account over the 
remaining period through effective interest method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income is recognised as the services are rendered.

4.11 Impairment

 The carrying amount of the Company’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. 



1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 PAΪR Investment Company Limited, "the Company" is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 January 
2007 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company has been notified as a Development Financial Institution by the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

 The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment Company which is owned by 
the Government of Iran. The Company's objectives interalia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects, capital and 
money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registered and principal office is situated at ICCI Building, 
Clifton, Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 17 February 2006. Furthermore, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 
2018 has notified a new format of financial statements effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2018. The new 
format would result in additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements presentation.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
The amounts are rounded to nearest thousand rupees.

2.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives of SBP or SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements 
of the said directives shall prevail.

 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017. SECP vide its Circular No. 
23 of 2017 has clarified that all those companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

 - The SBP through its BSD Circular letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in 
Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1)/2008. 
Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), have not been considered in preparation of 
these financial statements.

 - IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Company's accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2009. All banking 
companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD 
Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, 'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended 
31 December 2006. 

 - The management of the Company believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorisation in the above mentioned 
circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in 
these financial statements is based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

 -  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain 
types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net 
of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new 
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requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.

 -  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate 
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity 
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency 
is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain 
the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in 
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the 
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the 
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is 
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Bank is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition 
policies on adoption of the standard. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in revenue 
recognition policies on adoption of the standard and considers that the impact would not be significant. 

 -  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively).  IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The 
Company is currently awaiting instructions from SBP as applicability of IAS 39 (as explained in note 2.2) was deferred by SBP till 
further instructions. 

 -  Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities 
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and 
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 
accounting standards:

 -  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a 
company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held 
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

 
 -  IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

 -  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally 
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances 
with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

4.2 Sale and re-purchase agreements

 The Company enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are 
recorded as under: 

 Sale under re-purchase obligations

 Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the counter 
party liability is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase value is accrued over the period of the agreement and 
recorded as an expense. 

 Securities purchased under agreement to re-sale (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions. The differential 
between the contracted price and re-sale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income.

4.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following: 

 - Classification and valuation of investments and impairment (Note 4.4)
 -   Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease (Note 4.5)
 -   Provision against off - balance sheet obligations (Note 4.18)
 -   Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (Note 4.22)
 -   Useful life of operating assets and methods of depreciation and amortization (Note 4.6)
 -   Taxation - Current (Note 4.7)
 -   Taxation - Deferred (Note 4.7)
 -   Staff retirement benefit and compensated absences (Notes 4.20 & 4.21)

4.4 Investments

 The Company classifies its investments as follows:

 Held for trading 

 These are securities, which are  acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market/ interest rate 
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis.  These securities are 
required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in 
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

 Held to maturity

 These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity.

 Available for sale

 Investments that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to maturity categories' are classified as 'available for sale'.

 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention 
are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

 Initial Recognition

 Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

 Subsequent Measurement

 Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and 'available for sale' are valued at 

rates quoted on PKRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSE) as at the date of statement of financial position respectively. Any surplus 
or deficit arising as a result of revaluation of securities categorised as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account ant that of 
'available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown below equity in accordance with the requirements of 
State Bank of Pakistan.

 Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions and 
information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matter of 
judgement (e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are stated at their amortized cost less impairment In value, if any.

 Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of 
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited 
financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries and associates if any (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting 
Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till 
maturity using effective interest method.

 Impairment

 Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates) and held to maturity recognised 
based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an investment below its cost 
is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provisions for diminution in the value of  debt securities is made as per the 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss 
that has been recognised below equity is removed and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to 
maturity, the impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

4.5 Advances including net investment in finance lease

 Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of 
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account. These 
regulations prescribe an age based criteria (as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non - 
performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.

 Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessees 
are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance lease”.

 The Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances and provision required there against on a 
regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the 
borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

4.6 Operating fixed assets

 Tangible assets

 Operating fixed assets except capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic 
lives at the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking 
into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are available for use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. 

 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in operating fixed assets.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / useful 
life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on depreciation charge and 
impairment.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of an 
intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to the Company. 
The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become 
available for use.

4.7 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax 
credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, 
which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax 
rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax laws 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which it 
can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that related tax benefits 
will be realised.

4.8 Borrowings and deposits

 Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit 
and loss account on a time proportion basis.

4.9 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

 Translation gains and losses

 Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

4.10 Revenue recognition

 Mark-up / return / interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account effective yield on the asset, except 
where recovery is considered doubtful, the income is recognised on receipt basis.  Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / 
restructured advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

 A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

 The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss account. 

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account over the 
remaining period through effective interest method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income is recognised as the services are rendered.

4.11 Impairment

 The carrying amount of the Company’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2017

PAΪR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

Chairman Chief Executive &
Managing Director

DirectorDirector

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks  5 37,870 64,205 

Balances with other banks  6  91,727 432,783 

Lendings to financial institutions  7 970,000   -   

Investments  8   11,044,299 11,842,973 

Advances  9  4,652,932  5,424,351 

Operating fixed assets 10  198,003 176,982 

Deferred tax asset - net 11  260,554 238,128 

Other assets 12  430,280 419,049 

   17,685,665 18,598,471 

LIABILITIES 

Bills payable    -     -   

Borrowings 13  6,370,738 6,549,981 

Deposits and other accounts  14  1,814,001 2,079,728  

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease    -     -   

Sub-ordinated loans  -    -   

Deferred tax liabilities  -       -   

Other liabilities 15  245,594  518,803 

   8,430,333 9,148,512 

NET ASSETS    9,255,332 9,449,959 

REPRESENTED BY 

Share capital 16  6,000,000 6,000,000 

Reserves  17  840,066 794,107 

Unappropriated profit     2,452,552 2,572,774 

   9,292,618 9,366,881 

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of assets 18  (37,286) 83,078 

   9,255,332 9,449,959 
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The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.



1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 PAΪR Investment Company Limited, "the Company" is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 January 
2007 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company has been notified as a Development Financial Institution by the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

 The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment Company which is owned by 
the Government of Iran. The Company's objectives interalia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects, capital and 
money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registered and principal office is situated at ICCI Building, 
Clifton, Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 17 February 2006. Furthermore, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 
2018 has notified a new format of financial statements effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2018. The new 
format would result in additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements presentation.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
The amounts are rounded to nearest thousand rupees.

2.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives of SBP or SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements 
of the said directives shall prevail.

 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017. SECP vide its Circular No. 
23 of 2017 has clarified that all those companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

 - The SBP through its BSD Circular letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in 
Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1)/2008. 
Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), have not been considered in preparation of 
these financial statements.

 - IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Company's accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2009. All banking 
companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD 
Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, 'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended 
31 December 2006. 

 - The management of the Company believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorisation in the above mentioned 
circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in 
these financial statements is based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

 -  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain 
types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net 
of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new 

Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
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Mark-up / return / interest earned  22  1,045,117   1,243,694 
Mark-up / return / interest expensed  23  387,358   533,274 
Net mark-up / interest income    657,759   710,420 
Reversal for non-performing loans and advances  9.5  (3,635)  (49,647)
Provision / (reversal) of provision for diminution in the value of investments 8.3  70,226   (366,209)
  66,591   (415,856)

Net mark-up / interest income after provisions   591,168   1,126,276 

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME 

Fee, commission and brokerage income   10,327   19,631 

Dividend income    39,683   30,205 

(Loss) / gain from dealing in foreign currencies   (771)  408 

Gain on sale of securities - net 24  69,591   4,913 

Unrealised gain / (loss) on revaluation of  

investments classified as held for trading-net 8.10  9,680   (1,920)

Other income  25  -     5 

Total non mark-up / interest income   128,510   53,242 
 
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES  
Administrative expenses  26  351,414   318,148 
Other charges  27  50   279 
Total non mark-up / interest expenses    351,464   318,427 
   368,214   861,091 
Extra ordinary / unusual items    -     -    
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION    368,214   861,091 
Taxation 
   - current   120,909   214,558 
   - prior years    -     10,984 
   - deferred    17,510   32,258 
 28  138,419   257,800 
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION    229,795   603,291 
 
Basic and diluted earnings per share - (Rupees) 29  0.38   1.01 
 
The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.

 -  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate 
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity 
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency 
is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain 
the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in 
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the 
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the 
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is 
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Bank is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition 
policies on adoption of the standard. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in revenue 
recognition policies on adoption of the standard and considers that the impact would not be significant. 

 -  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively).  IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The 
Company is currently awaiting instructions from SBP as applicability of IAS 39 (as explained in note 2.2) was deferred by SBP till 
further instructions. 

 -  Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities 
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and 
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 
accounting standards:

 -  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a 
company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held 
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

 
 -  IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

 -  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally 
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances 
with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

4.2 Sale and re-purchase agreements

 The Company enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are 
recorded as under: 

 Sale under re-purchase obligations

 Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the counter 
party liability is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase value is accrued over the period of the agreement and 
recorded as an expense. 

 Securities purchased under agreement to re-sale (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions. The differential 
between the contracted price and re-sale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income.

4.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following: 

 - Classification and valuation of investments and impairment (Note 4.4)
 -   Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease (Note 4.5)
 -   Provision against off - balance sheet obligations (Note 4.18)
 -   Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (Note 4.22)
 -   Useful life of operating assets and methods of depreciation and amortization (Note 4.6)
 -   Taxation - Current (Note 4.7)
 -   Taxation - Deferred (Note 4.7)
 -   Staff retirement benefit and compensated absences (Notes 4.20 & 4.21)

4.4 Investments

 The Company classifies its investments as follows:

 Held for trading 

 These are securities, which are  acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market/ interest rate 
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis.  These securities are 
required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in 
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

 Held to maturity

 These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity.

 Available for sale

 Investments that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to maturity categories' are classified as 'available for sale'.

 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention 
are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

 Initial Recognition

 Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

 Subsequent Measurement

 Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and 'available for sale' are valued at 

rates quoted on PKRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSE) as at the date of statement of financial position respectively. Any surplus 
or deficit arising as a result of revaluation of securities categorised as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account ant that of 
'available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown below equity in accordance with the requirements of 
State Bank of Pakistan.

 Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions and 
information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matter of 
judgement (e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are stated at their amortized cost less impairment In value, if any.

 Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of 
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited 
financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries and associates if any (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting 
Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till 
maturity using effective interest method.

 Impairment

 Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates) and held to maturity recognised 
based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an investment below its cost 
is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provisions for diminution in the value of  debt securities is made as per the 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss 
that has been recognised below equity is removed and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to 
maturity, the impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

4.5 Advances including net investment in finance lease

 Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of 
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account. These 
regulations prescribe an age based criteria (as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non - 
performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.

 Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessees 
are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance lease”.

 The Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances and provision required there against on a 
regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the 
borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

4.6 Operating fixed assets

 Tangible assets

 Operating fixed assets except capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic 
lives at the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking 
into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are available for use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. 

 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in operating fixed assets.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / useful 
life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on depreciation charge and 
impairment.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of an 
intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to the Company. 
The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become 
available for use.

4.7 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax 
credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, 
which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax 
rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax laws 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which it 
can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that related tax benefits 
will be realised.

4.8 Borrowings and deposits

 Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit 
and loss account on a time proportion basis.

4.9 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

 Translation gains and losses

 Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

4.10 Revenue recognition

 Mark-up / return / interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account effective yield on the asset, except 
where recovery is considered doubtful, the income is recognised on receipt basis.  Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / 
restructured advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

 A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

 The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss account. 

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account over the 
remaining period through effective interest method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income is recognised as the services are rendered.

4.11 Impairment

 The carrying amount of the Company’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. 



1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 PAΪR Investment Company Limited, "the Company" is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 January 
2007 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company has been notified as a Development Financial Institution by the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

 The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment Company which is owned by 
the Government of Iran. The Company's objectives interalia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects, capital and 
money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registered and principal office is situated at ICCI Building, 
Clifton, Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 17 February 2006. Furthermore, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 
2018 has notified a new format of financial statements effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2018. The new 
format would result in additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements presentation.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
The amounts are rounded to nearest thousand rupees.

2.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives of SBP or SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements 
of the said directives shall prevail.

 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017. SECP vide its Circular No. 
23 of 2017 has clarified that all those companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

 - The SBP through its BSD Circular letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in 
Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1)/2008. 
Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), have not been considered in preparation of 
these financial statements.

 - IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Company's accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2009. All banking 
companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD 
Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, 'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended 
31 December 2006. 

 - The management of the Company believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorisation in the above mentioned 
circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in 
these financial statements is based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

 -  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain 
types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net 
of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new 

Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

Profit after taxation    229,795   603,291 

 

Other comprehensive income 

 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 

account in subsequent periods: 

 

Actuarial (loss) on re-measurement of defined 

   benefit obligation 32.9  (5,797)  (36)

Related deferred tax    1,739   11 

    (4,058)  (25)

Comprehensive income transferred to equity   225,737   603,266 
 

Components of comprehensive income not 

reflected in equity 

 

(Deficit) on revaluation of available for sale securities - net   (158,561)  (57,469)

Deferred tax on revaluation 11.1  38,197   10,684 
                

    (120,364)  (46,785)
 

Total comprehensive income   105,373   556,481 

 

 

The surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of ''Available-for-Sale'' securities is presented under a separate head below equity as ''surplus / 

(deficit) on revaluation of assets'' in accordance with the requirements specified by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and the State Bank 

of Pakistan vide its BSD Circular no. 20 dated 4 August 2000 and BSD Circular no 10 dated 13 July 2004. 

 

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.

 -  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate 
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity 
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency 
is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain 
the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in 
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the 
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the 
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is 
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Bank is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition 
policies on adoption of the standard. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in revenue 
recognition policies on adoption of the standard and considers that the impact would not be significant. 

 -  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively).  IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The 
Company is currently awaiting instructions from SBP as applicability of IAS 39 (as explained in note 2.2) was deferred by SBP till 
further instructions. 

 -  Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities 
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and 
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 
accounting standards:

 -  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a 
company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held 
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

 
 -  IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

 -  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally 
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances 
with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

4.2 Sale and re-purchase agreements

 The Company enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are 
recorded as under: 

 Sale under re-purchase obligations

 Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the counter 
party liability is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase value is accrued over the period of the agreement and 
recorded as an expense. 

 Securities purchased under agreement to re-sale (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions. The differential 
between the contracted price and re-sale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income.

4.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following: 

 - Classification and valuation of investments and impairment (Note 4.4)
 -   Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease (Note 4.5)
 -   Provision against off - balance sheet obligations (Note 4.18)
 -   Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (Note 4.22)
 -   Useful life of operating assets and methods of depreciation and amortization (Note 4.6)
 -   Taxation - Current (Note 4.7)
 -   Taxation - Deferred (Note 4.7)
 -   Staff retirement benefit and compensated absences (Notes 4.20 & 4.21)

4.4 Investments

 The Company classifies its investments as follows:

 Held for trading 

 These are securities, which are  acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market/ interest rate 
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis.  These securities are 
required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in 
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

 Held to maturity

 These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity.

 Available for sale

 Investments that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to maturity categories' are classified as 'available for sale'.

 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention 
are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

 Initial Recognition

 Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

 Subsequent Measurement

 Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and 'available for sale' are valued at 

rates quoted on PKRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSE) as at the date of statement of financial position respectively. Any surplus 
or deficit arising as a result of revaluation of securities categorised as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account ant that of 
'available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown below equity in accordance with the requirements of 
State Bank of Pakistan.

 Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions and 
information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matter of 
judgement (e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are stated at their amortized cost less impairment In value, if any.

 Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of 
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited 
financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries and associates if any (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting 
Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till 
maturity using effective interest method.

 Impairment

 Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates) and held to maturity recognised 
based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an investment below its cost 
is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provisions for diminution in the value of  debt securities is made as per the 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss 
that has been recognised below equity is removed and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to 
maturity, the impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

4.5 Advances including net investment in finance lease

 Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of 
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account. These 
regulations prescribe an age based criteria (as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non - 
performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.

 Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessees 
are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance lease”.

 The Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances and provision required there against on a 
regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the 
borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

4.6 Operating fixed assets

 Tangible assets

 Operating fixed assets except capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic 
lives at the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking 
into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are available for use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. 

 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in operating fixed assets.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / useful 
life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on depreciation charge and 
impairment.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of an 
intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to the Company. 
The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become 
available for use.

4.7 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax 
credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, 
which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax 
rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax laws 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which it 
can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that related tax benefits 
will be realised.

4.8 Borrowings and deposits

 Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit 
and loss account on a time proportion basis.

4.9 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

 Translation gains and losses

 Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

4.10 Revenue recognition

 Mark-up / return / interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account effective yield on the asset, except 
where recovery is considered doubtful, the income is recognised on receipt basis.  Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / 
restructured advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

 A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

 The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss account. 

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account over the 
remaining period through effective interest method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income is recognised as the services are rendered.

4.11 Impairment

 The carrying amount of the Company’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. 



1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 PAΪR Investment Company Limited, "the Company" is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 January 
2007 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company has been notified as a Development Financial Institution by the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

 The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment Company which is owned by 
the Government of Iran. The Company's objectives interalia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects, capital and 
money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registered and principal office is situated at ICCI Building, 
Clifton, Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 17 February 2006. Furthermore, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 
2018 has notified a new format of financial statements effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2018. The new 
format would result in additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements presentation.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
The amounts are rounded to nearest thousand rupees.

2.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives of SBP or SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements 
of the said directives shall prevail.

 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017. SECP vide its Circular No. 
23 of 2017 has clarified that all those companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

 - The SBP through its BSD Circular letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in 
Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1)/2008. 
Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), have not been considered in preparation of 
these financial statements.

 - IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Company's accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2009. All banking 
companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD 
Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, 'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended 
31 December 2006. 

 - The management of the Company believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorisation in the above mentioned 
circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in 
these financial statements is based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

 -  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain 
types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net 
of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new Chairman DirectorDirector
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Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Profit before taxation   368,214   861,091 
Less: Dividend income    (39,683)  (30,205)
   328,531   830,886 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation 10.2  13,755   14,957 
Amortisation 10.3  338   288 
Reversal against non-performing loans and advances  9.5  (3,635)  (49,647)
Provision / (Reversal) of provision for diminution in the value of investments  8.3  70,226   (366,209)
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 25  -     (5)
Charge for defined benefit plan 26  8,090   8,499 
Unrealised (gain) / loss on revaluation of held for trading investments 8.10  (9,680)  1,920 
   79,094   (390,197)
   407,625   440,689 
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets 
Held-for-trading securities   180,956   5,924,979 
Lendings to financial institutions   (970,000)  -   
Advances   775,054   (1,871,756)
Others assets   (16,029)  45,334 
   (30,019)  4,098,557 
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities 
Borrowings   (179,243)  (5,102,454)
Deposits and other accounts   (265,727)  189,226 
Other liabilities (excluding provision for taxation - net)   111,689   (95,940)
   (333,281)  (5,009,168)
   44,325   (469,922)
Income tax paid   (250,793)  (244,354)
Defined benefits paid   (7,098)  (10,827)
Net cash flows used in operating activities   (213,566)  (725,103)
 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Net investments in available for sale securities   589,868   938,544 
Net investments in held to maturity securities   (153,060)  143,333 
Dividend income received   39,208   29,586 
Investment in operating fixed assets   (41,854)  (1,000)
Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets disposed off   12,013   88 
Net cash flows from investing activities   446,175   1,110,551 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Dividend paid   (600,000)  (150,000)
Net cash flows used in financing activities   (600,000)  (150,000)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents   (367,391)  235,448 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 30  496,988   261,540 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 30  129,597   496,988 
 
The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.

 -  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate 
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity 
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency 
is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain 
the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in 
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the 
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the 
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is 
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Bank is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition 
policies on adoption of the standard. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in revenue 
recognition policies on adoption of the standard and considers that the impact would not be significant. 

 -  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively).  IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The 
Company is currently awaiting instructions from SBP as applicability of IAS 39 (as explained in note 2.2) was deferred by SBP till 
further instructions. 

 -  Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities 
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and 
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 
accounting standards:

 -  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a 
company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held 
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

 
 -  IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

 -  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally 
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances 
with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

4.2 Sale and re-purchase agreements

 The Company enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are 
recorded as under: 

 Sale under re-purchase obligations

 Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the counter 
party liability is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase value is accrued over the period of the agreement and 
recorded as an expense. 

 Securities purchased under agreement to re-sale (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions. The differential 
between the contracted price and re-sale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income.

4.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following: 

 - Classification and valuation of investments and impairment (Note 4.4)
 -   Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease (Note 4.5)
 -   Provision against off - balance sheet obligations (Note 4.18)
 -   Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (Note 4.22)
 -   Useful life of operating assets and methods of depreciation and amortization (Note 4.6)
 -   Taxation - Current (Note 4.7)
 -   Taxation - Deferred (Note 4.7)
 -   Staff retirement benefit and compensated absences (Notes 4.20 & 4.21)

4.4 Investments

 The Company classifies its investments as follows:

 Held for trading 

 These are securities, which are  acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market/ interest rate 
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis.  These securities are 
required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in 
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

 Held to maturity

 These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity.

 Available for sale

 Investments that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to maturity categories' are classified as 'available for sale'.

 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention 
are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

 Initial Recognition

 Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

 Subsequent Measurement

 Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and 'available for sale' are valued at 

rates quoted on PKRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSE) as at the date of statement of financial position respectively. Any surplus 
or deficit arising as a result of revaluation of securities categorised as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account ant that of 
'available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown below equity in accordance with the requirements of 
State Bank of Pakistan.

 Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions and 
information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matter of 
judgement (e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are stated at their amortized cost less impairment In value, if any.

 Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of 
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited 
financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries and associates if any (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting 
Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till 
maturity using effective interest method.

 Impairment

 Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates) and held to maturity recognised 
based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an investment below its cost 
is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provisions for diminution in the value of  debt securities is made as per the 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss 
that has been recognised below equity is removed and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to 
maturity, the impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

4.5 Advances including net investment in finance lease

 Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of 
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account. These 
regulations prescribe an age based criteria (as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non - 
performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.

 Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessees 
are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance lease”.

 The Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances and provision required there against on a 
regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the 
borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

4.6 Operating fixed assets

 Tangible assets

 Operating fixed assets except capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic 
lives at the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking 
into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are available for use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. 

 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in operating fixed assets.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / useful 
life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on depreciation charge and 
impairment.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of an 
intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to the Company. 
The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become 
available for use.

4.7 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax 
credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, 
which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax 
rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax laws 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which it 
can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that related tax benefits 
will be realised.

4.8 Borrowings and deposits

 Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit 
and loss account on a time proportion basis.

4.9 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

 Translation gains and losses

 Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

4.10 Revenue recognition

 Mark-up / return / interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account effective yield on the asset, except 
where recovery is considered doubtful, the income is recognised on receipt basis.  Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / 
restructured advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

 A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

 The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss account. 

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account over the 
remaining period through effective interest method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income is recognised as the services are rendered.

4.11 Impairment

 The carrying amount of the Company’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. 



1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 PAΪR Investment Company Limited, "the Company" is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 January 
2007 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company has been notified as a Development Financial Institution by the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

 The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment Company which is owned by 
the Government of Iran. The Company's objectives interalia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects, capital and 
money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registered and principal office is situated at ICCI Building, 
Clifton, Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 17 February 2006. Furthermore, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 
2018 has notified a new format of financial statements effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2018. The new 
format would result in additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements presentation.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
The amounts are rounded to nearest thousand rupees.

2.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives of SBP or SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements 
of the said directives shall prevail.

 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017. SECP vide its Circular No. 
23 of 2017 has clarified that all those companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

 - The SBP through its BSD Circular letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in 
Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1)/2008. 
Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), have not been considered in preparation of 
these financial statements.

 - IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Company's accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2009. All banking 
companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD 
Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, 'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended 
31 December 2006. 

 - The management of the Company believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorisation in the above mentioned 
circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in 
these financial statements is based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

 -  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain 
types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net 
of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new 
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Total 
Note

Issued, 
subscribed and 
paid-up capital

Reserves
Statutory 
reserve

Unappropriated 
profit 

(Rupees in '000)

Balance as at 31 December 2015   6,000,000   673,449   2,390,166   9,063,615 
 
Total comprehensive income for the year 

 
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2016   -     -     603,291   603,291 
Other comprehensive income   -     -     (25)  (25)
 
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 
31 December 2016   -     -     603,266   603,266 
 
Transfer to statutory reserve  17  -     120,658   (120,658)  -   
 
Transactions with owners recognised  
directly in equity  
Final cash dividend - 31 December 2015 declared 
  subsequent to the year end   -     -     (300,000)  (300,000)
 
Balance as at 31 December 2016   6,000,000   794,107   2,572,774   9,366,881 
 
Total comprehensive income for the year 
 
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2017   -     -     229,795   229,795 
Other comprehensive income   -     -     (4,058)  (4,058)
 
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 
31 December 2017   -     -     225,737   225,737 
 
Transfer to statutory reserve 17  -     45,959   (45,959)  -   
 
Transactions with owners recognised  
directly in equity 
 
Final cash dividend - 31 December 2016 declared 
subsequent to the year end   -     -     (300,000)  (300,000)
 
Balance as at 31 December 2017   6,000,000   840,066   2,452,552   9,292,618 
 
 
The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.

 -  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate 
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity 
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency 
is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain 
the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in 
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the 
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the 
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is 
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Bank is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition 
policies on adoption of the standard. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in revenue 
recognition policies on adoption of the standard and considers that the impact would not be significant. 

 -  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively).  IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The 
Company is currently awaiting instructions from SBP as applicability of IAS 39 (as explained in note 2.2) was deferred by SBP till 
further instructions. 

 -  Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities 
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and 
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 
accounting standards:

 -  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a 
company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held 
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

 
 -  IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

 -  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally 
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances 
with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

4.2 Sale and re-purchase agreements

 The Company enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are 
recorded as under: 

 Sale under re-purchase obligations

 Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the counter 
party liability is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase value is accrued over the period of the agreement and 
recorded as an expense. 

 Securities purchased under agreement to re-sale (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions. The differential 
between the contracted price and re-sale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income.

4.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following: 

 - Classification and valuation of investments and impairment (Note 4.4)
 -   Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease (Note 4.5)
 -   Provision against off - balance sheet obligations (Note 4.18)
 -   Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (Note 4.22)
 -   Useful life of operating assets and methods of depreciation and amortization (Note 4.6)
 -   Taxation - Current (Note 4.7)
 -   Taxation - Deferred (Note 4.7)
 -   Staff retirement benefit and compensated absences (Notes 4.20 & 4.21)

4.4 Investments

 The Company classifies its investments as follows:

 Held for trading 

 These are securities, which are  acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market/ interest rate 
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis.  These securities are 
required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in 
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

 Held to maturity

 These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity.

 Available for sale

 Investments that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to maturity categories' are classified as 'available for sale'.

 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention 
are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

 Initial Recognition

 Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

 Subsequent Measurement

 Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and 'available for sale' are valued at 

rates quoted on PKRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSE) as at the date of statement of financial position respectively. Any surplus 
or deficit arising as a result of revaluation of securities categorised as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account ant that of 
'available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown below equity in accordance with the requirements of 
State Bank of Pakistan.

 Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions and 
information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matter of 
judgement (e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are stated at their amortized cost less impairment In value, if any.

 Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of 
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited 
financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries and associates if any (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting 
Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till 
maturity using effective interest method.

 Impairment

 Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates) and held to maturity recognised 
based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an investment below its cost 
is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provisions for diminution in the value of  debt securities is made as per the 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss 
that has been recognised below equity is removed and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to 
maturity, the impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

4.5 Advances including net investment in finance lease

 Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of 
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account. These 
regulations prescribe an age based criteria (as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non - 
performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.

 Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessees 
are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance lease”.

 The Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances and provision required there against on a 
regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the 
borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

4.6 Operating fixed assets

 Tangible assets

 Operating fixed assets except capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic 
lives at the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking 
into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are available for use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. 

 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in operating fixed assets.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / useful 
life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on depreciation charge and 
impairment.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of an 
intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to the Company. 
The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become 
available for use.

4.7 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax 
credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, 
which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax 
rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax laws 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which it 
can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that related tax benefits 
will be realised.

4.8 Borrowings and deposits

 Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit 
and loss account on a time proportion basis.

4.9 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

 Translation gains and losses

 Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

4.10 Revenue recognition

 Mark-up / return / interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account effective yield on the asset, except 
where recovery is considered doubtful, the income is recognised on receipt basis.  Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / 
restructured advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

 A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

 The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss account. 

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account over the 
remaining period through effective interest method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income is recognised as the services are rendered.

4.11 Impairment

 The carrying amount of the Company’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2017

PAΪR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 PAΪR Investment Company Limited, "the Company" is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 January 
2007 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company has been notified as a Development Financial Institution by the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

 The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment Company which is owned by 
the Government of Iran. The Company's objectives interalia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects, capital and 
money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registered and principal office is situated at ICCI Building, 
Clifton, Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 17 February 2006. Furthermore, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 
2018 has notified a new format of financial statements effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2018. The new 
format would result in additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements presentation.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
The amounts are rounded to nearest thousand rupees.

2.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives of SBP or SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements 
of the said directives shall prevail.

 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017. SECP vide its Circular No. 
23 of 2017 has clarified that all those companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

 - The SBP through its BSD Circular letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in 
Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1)/2008. 
Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), have not been considered in preparation of 
these financial statements.

 - IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Company's accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2009. All banking 
companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD 
Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, 'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended 
31 December 2006. 

 - The management of the Company believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorisation in the above mentioned 
circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in 
these financial statements is based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

 -  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain 
types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net 
of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new 
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requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.

 -  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate 
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity 
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency 
is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain 
the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in 
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the 
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the 
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is 
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Bank is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition 
policies on adoption of the standard. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in revenue 
recognition policies on adoption of the standard and considers that the impact would not be significant. 

 -  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively).  IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The 
Company is currently awaiting instructions from SBP as applicability of IAS 39 (as explained in note 2.2) was deferred by SBP till 
further instructions. 

 -  Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities 
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and 
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 
accounting standards:

 -  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a 
company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held 
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

 
 -  IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

 -  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally 
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances 
with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

4.2 Sale and re-purchase agreements

 The Company enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are 
recorded as under: 

 Sale under re-purchase obligations

 Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the counter 
party liability is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase value is accrued over the period of the agreement and 
recorded as an expense. 

 Securities purchased under agreement to re-sale (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions. The differential 
between the contracted price and re-sale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income.

4.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following: 

 - Classification and valuation of investments and impairment (Note 4.4)
 -   Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease (Note 4.5)
 -   Provision against off - balance sheet obligations (Note 4.18)
 -   Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (Note 4.22)
 -   Useful life of operating assets and methods of depreciation and amortization (Note 4.6)
 -   Taxation - Current (Note 4.7)
 -   Taxation - Deferred (Note 4.7)
 -   Staff retirement benefit and compensated absences (Notes 4.20 & 4.21)

4.4 Investments

 The Company classifies its investments as follows:

 Held for trading 

 These are securities, which are  acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market/ interest rate 
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis.  These securities are 
required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in 
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

 Held to maturity

 These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity.

 Available for sale

 Investments that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to maturity categories' are classified as 'available for sale'.

 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention 
are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

 Initial Recognition

 Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

 Subsequent Measurement

 Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and 'available for sale' are valued at 

rates quoted on PKRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSE) as at the date of statement of financial position respectively. Any surplus 
or deficit arising as a result of revaluation of securities categorised as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account ant that of 
'available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown below equity in accordance with the requirements of 
State Bank of Pakistan.

 Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions and 
information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matter of 
judgement (e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are stated at their amortized cost less impairment In value, if any.

 Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of 
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited 
financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries and associates if any (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting 
Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till 
maturity using effective interest method.

 Impairment

 Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates) and held to maturity recognised 
based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an investment below its cost 
is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provisions for diminution in the value of  debt securities is made as per the 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss 
that has been recognised below equity is removed and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to 
maturity, the impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

4.5 Advances including net investment in finance lease

 Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of 
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account. These 
regulations prescribe an age based criteria (as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non - 
performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.

 Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessees 
are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance lease”.

 The Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances and provision required there against on a 
regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the 
borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

4.6 Operating fixed assets

 Tangible assets

 Operating fixed assets except capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic 
lives at the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking 
into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are available for use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. 

 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in operating fixed assets.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / useful 
life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on depreciation charge and 
impairment.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of an 
intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to the Company. 
The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become 
available for use.

4.7 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax 
credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, 
which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax 
rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax laws 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which it 
can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that related tax benefits 
will be realised.

4.8 Borrowings and deposits

 Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit 
and loss account on a time proportion basis.

4.9 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

 Translation gains and losses

 Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

4.10 Revenue recognition

 Mark-up / return / interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account effective yield on the asset, except 
where recovery is considered doubtful, the income is recognised on receipt basis.  Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / 
restructured advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

 A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

 The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss account. 

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account over the 
remaining period through effective interest method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income is recognised as the services are rendered.

4.11 Impairment

 The carrying amount of the Company’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. 



1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 PAΪR Investment Company Limited, "the Company" is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 January 
2007 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company has been notified as a Development Financial Institution by the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

 The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment Company which is owned by 
the Government of Iran. The Company's objectives interalia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects, capital and 
money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registered and principal office is situated at ICCI Building, 
Clifton, Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 17 February 2006. Furthermore, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 
2018 has notified a new format of financial statements effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2018. The new 
format would result in additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements presentation.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
The amounts are rounded to nearest thousand rupees.

2.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives of SBP or SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements 
of the said directives shall prevail.

 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017. SECP vide its Circular No. 
23 of 2017 has clarified that all those companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

 - The SBP through its BSD Circular letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in 
Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1)/2008. 
Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), have not been considered in preparation of 
these financial statements.

 - IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Company's accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2009. All banking 
companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD 
Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, 'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended 
31 December 2006. 

 - The management of the Company believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorisation in the above mentioned 
circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in 
these financial statements is based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

 -  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain 
types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net 
of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new 
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requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.

 -  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate 
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity 
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency 
is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain 
the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in 
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the 
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the 
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is 
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Bank is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition 
policies on adoption of the standard. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in revenue 
recognition policies on adoption of the standard and considers that the impact would not be significant. 

 -  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively).  IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The 
Company is currently awaiting instructions from SBP as applicability of IAS 39 (as explained in note 2.2) was deferred by SBP till 
further instructions. 

 -  Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities 
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and 
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 
accounting standards:

 -  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a 
company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held 
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

 
 -  IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

 -  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally 
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances 
with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

4.2 Sale and re-purchase agreements

 The Company enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are 
recorded as under: 

 Sale under re-purchase obligations

 Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the counter 
party liability is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase value is accrued over the period of the agreement and 
recorded as an expense. 

 Securities purchased under agreement to re-sale (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions. The differential 
between the contracted price and re-sale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income.

4.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following: 

 - Classification and valuation of investments and impairment (Note 4.4)
 -   Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease (Note 4.5)
 -   Provision against off - balance sheet obligations (Note 4.18)
 -   Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (Note 4.22)
 -   Useful life of operating assets and methods of depreciation and amortization (Note 4.6)
 -   Taxation - Current (Note 4.7)
 -   Taxation - Deferred (Note 4.7)
 -   Staff retirement benefit and compensated absences (Notes 4.20 & 4.21)

4.4 Investments

 The Company classifies its investments as follows:

 Held for trading 

 These are securities, which are  acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market/ interest rate 
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis.  These securities are 
required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in 
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

 Held to maturity

 These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity.

 Available for sale

 Investments that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to maturity categories' are classified as 'available for sale'.

 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention 
are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

 Initial Recognition

 Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

 Subsequent Measurement

 Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and 'available for sale' are valued at 

rates quoted on PKRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSE) as at the date of statement of financial position respectively. Any surplus 
or deficit arising as a result of revaluation of securities categorised as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account ant that of 
'available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown below equity in accordance with the requirements of 
State Bank of Pakistan.

 Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions and 
information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matter of 
judgement (e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are stated at their amortized cost less impairment In value, if any.

 Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of 
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited 
financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries and associates if any (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting 
Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till 
maturity using effective interest method.

 Impairment

 Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates) and held to maturity recognised 
based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an investment below its cost 
is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provisions for diminution in the value of  debt securities is made as per the 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss 
that has been recognised below equity is removed and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to 
maturity, the impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

4.5 Advances including net investment in finance lease

 Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of 
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account. These 
regulations prescribe an age based criteria (as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non - 
performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.

 Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessees 
are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance lease”.

 The Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances and provision required there against on a 
regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the 
borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

4.6 Operating fixed assets

 Tangible assets

 Operating fixed assets except capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic 
lives at the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking 
into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are available for use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. 

 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in operating fixed assets.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / useful 
life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on depreciation charge and 
impairment.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of an 
intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to the Company. 
The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become 
available for use.

4.7 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax 
credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, 
which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax 
rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax laws 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which it 
can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that related tax benefits 
will be realised.

4.8 Borrowings and deposits

 Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit 
and loss account on a time proportion basis.

4.9 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

 Translation gains and losses

 Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

4.10 Revenue recognition

 Mark-up / return / interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account effective yield on the asset, except 
where recovery is considered doubtful, the income is recognised on receipt basis.  Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / 
restructured advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

 A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

 The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss account. 

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account over the 
remaining period through effective interest method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income is recognised as the services are rendered.

4.11 Impairment

 The carrying amount of the Company’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. 



1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 PAΪR Investment Company Limited, "the Company" is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 January 
2007 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company has been notified as a Development Financial Institution by the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

 The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment Company which is owned by 
the Government of Iran. The Company's objectives interalia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects, capital and 
money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registered and principal office is situated at ICCI Building, 
Clifton, Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 17 February 2006. Furthermore, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 
2018 has notified a new format of financial statements effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2018. The new 
format would result in additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements presentation.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
The amounts are rounded to nearest thousand rupees.

2.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives of SBP or SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements 
of the said directives shall prevail.

 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017. SECP vide its Circular No. 
23 of 2017 has clarified that all those companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

 - The SBP through its BSD Circular letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in 
Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1)/2008. 
Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), have not been considered in preparation of 
these financial statements.

 - IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Company's accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2009. All banking 
companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD 
Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, 'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended 
31 December 2006. 

 - The management of the Company believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorisation in the above mentioned 
circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in 
these financial statements is based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

 -  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain 
types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net 
of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new 
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requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.

 -  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate 
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity 
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency 
is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain 
the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in 
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the 
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the 
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is 
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Bank is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition 
policies on adoption of the standard. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in revenue 
recognition policies on adoption of the standard and considers that the impact would not be significant. 

 -  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively).  IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The 
Company is currently awaiting instructions from SBP as applicability of IAS 39 (as explained in note 2.2) was deferred by SBP till 
further instructions. 

 -  Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities 
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and 
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 
accounting standards:

 -  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a 
company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held 
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

 
 -  IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

 -  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally 
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances 
with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

4.2 Sale and re-purchase agreements

 The Company enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are 
recorded as under: 

 Sale under re-purchase obligations

 Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the counter 
party liability is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase value is accrued over the period of the agreement and 
recorded as an expense. 

 Securities purchased under agreement to re-sale (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions. The differential 
between the contracted price and re-sale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income.

4.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following: 

 - Classification and valuation of investments and impairment (Note 4.4)
 -   Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease (Note 4.5)
 -   Provision against off - balance sheet obligations (Note 4.18)
 -   Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (Note 4.22)
 -   Useful life of operating assets and methods of depreciation and amortization (Note 4.6)
 -   Taxation - Current (Note 4.7)
 -   Taxation - Deferred (Note 4.7)
 -   Staff retirement benefit and compensated absences (Notes 4.20 & 4.21)

4.4 Investments

 The Company classifies its investments as follows:

 Held for trading 

 These are securities, which are  acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market/ interest rate 
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis.  These securities are 
required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in 
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

 Held to maturity

 These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity.

 Available for sale

 Investments that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to maturity categories' are classified as 'available for sale'.

 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention 
are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

 Initial Recognition

 Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

 Subsequent Measurement

 Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and 'available for sale' are valued at 

rates quoted on PKRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSE) as at the date of statement of financial position respectively. Any surplus 
or deficit arising as a result of revaluation of securities categorised as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account ant that of 
'available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown below equity in accordance with the requirements of 
State Bank of Pakistan.

 Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions and 
information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matter of 
judgement (e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are stated at their amortized cost less impairment In value, if any.

 Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of 
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited 
financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries and associates if any (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting 
Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till 
maturity using effective interest method.

 Impairment

 Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates) and held to maturity recognised 
based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an investment below its cost 
is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provisions for diminution in the value of  debt securities is made as per the 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss 
that has been recognised below equity is removed and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to 
maturity, the impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

4.5 Advances including net investment in finance lease

 Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of 
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account. These 
regulations prescribe an age based criteria (as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non - 
performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.

 Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessees 
are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance lease”.

 The Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances and provision required there against on a 
regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the 
borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

4.6 Operating fixed assets

 Tangible assets

 Operating fixed assets except capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic 
lives at the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking 
into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are available for use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. 

 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in operating fixed assets.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / useful 
life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on depreciation charge and 
impairment.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of an 
intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to the Company. 
The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become 
available for use.

4.7 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax 
credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, 
which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax 
rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax laws 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which it 
can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that related tax benefits 
will be realised.

4.8 Borrowings and deposits

 Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit 
and loss account on a time proportion basis.

4.9 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

 Translation gains and losses

 Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

4.10 Revenue recognition

 Mark-up / return / interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account effective yield on the asset, except 
where recovery is considered doubtful, the income is recognised on receipt basis.  Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / 
restructured advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

 A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

 The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss account. 

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account over the 
remaining period through effective interest method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income is recognised as the services are rendered.

4.11 Impairment

 The carrying amount of the Company’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. 



1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 PAΪR Investment Company Limited, "the Company" is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 January 
2007 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company has been notified as a Development Financial Institution by the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

 The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment Company which is owned by 
the Government of Iran. The Company's objectives interalia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects, capital and 
money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registered and principal office is situated at ICCI Building, 
Clifton, Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 17 February 2006. Furthermore, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 
2018 has notified a new format of financial statements effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2018. The new 
format would result in additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements presentation.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
The amounts are rounded to nearest thousand rupees.

2.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives of SBP or SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements 
of the said directives shall prevail.

 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017. SECP vide its Circular No. 
23 of 2017 has clarified that all those companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

 - The SBP through its BSD Circular letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in 
Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1)/2008. 
Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), have not been considered in preparation of 
these financial statements.

 - IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Company's accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2009. All banking 
companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD 
Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, 'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended 
31 December 2006. 

 - The management of the Company believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorisation in the above mentioned 
circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in 
these financial statements is based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

 -  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain 
types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net 
of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new 
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requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.

 -  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate 
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity 
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency 
is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain 
the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in 
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the 
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the 
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is 
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Bank is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition 
policies on adoption of the standard. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in revenue 
recognition policies on adoption of the standard and considers that the impact would not be significant. 

 -  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively).  IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The 
Company is currently awaiting instructions from SBP as applicability of IAS 39 (as explained in note 2.2) was deferred by SBP till 
further instructions. 

 -  Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities 
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and 
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 
accounting standards:

 -  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a 
company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held 
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

 
 -  IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

 -  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally 
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances 
with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

4.2 Sale and re-purchase agreements

 The Company enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are 
recorded as under: 

 Sale under re-purchase obligations

 Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the counter 
party liability is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase value is accrued over the period of the agreement and 
recorded as an expense. 

 Securities purchased under agreement to re-sale (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions. The differential 
between the contracted price and re-sale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income.

4.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following: 

 - Classification and valuation of investments and impairment (Note 4.4)
 -   Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease (Note 4.5)
 -   Provision against off - balance sheet obligations (Note 4.18)
 -   Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (Note 4.22)
 -   Useful life of operating assets and methods of depreciation and amortization (Note 4.6)
 -   Taxation - Current (Note 4.7)
 -   Taxation - Deferred (Note 4.7)
 -   Staff retirement benefit and compensated absences (Notes 4.20 & 4.21)

4.4 Investments

 The Company classifies its investments as follows:

 Held for trading 

 These are securities, which are  acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market/ interest rate 
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis.  These securities are 
required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in 
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

 Held to maturity

 These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity.

 Available for sale

 Investments that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to maturity categories' are classified as 'available for sale'.

 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention 
are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

 Initial Recognition

 Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

 Subsequent Measurement

 Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and 'available for sale' are valued at 

rates quoted on PKRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSE) as at the date of statement of financial position respectively. Any surplus 
or deficit arising as a result of revaluation of securities categorised as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account ant that of 
'available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown below equity in accordance with the requirements of 
State Bank of Pakistan.

 Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions and 
information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matter of 
judgement (e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are stated at their amortized cost less impairment In value, if any.

 Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of 
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited 
financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries and associates if any (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting 
Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till 
maturity using effective interest method.

 Impairment

 Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates) and held to maturity recognised 
based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an investment below its cost 
is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provisions for diminution in the value of  debt securities is made as per the 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss 
that has been recognised below equity is removed and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to 
maturity, the impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

4.5 Advances including net investment in finance lease

 Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of 
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account. These 
regulations prescribe an age based criteria (as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non - 
performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.

 Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessees 
are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance lease”.

 The Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances and provision required there against on a 
regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the 
borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

4.6 Operating fixed assets

 Tangible assets

 Operating fixed assets except capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic 
lives at the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking 
into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are available for use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. 

 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in operating fixed assets.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / useful 
life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on depreciation charge and 
impairment.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of an 
intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to the Company. 
The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become 
available for use.

4.7 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax 
credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, 
which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax 
rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax laws 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which it 
can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that related tax benefits 
will be realised.

4.8 Borrowings and deposits

 Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit 
and loss account on a time proportion basis.

4.9 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

 Translation gains and losses

 Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

4.10 Revenue recognition

 Mark-up / return / interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account effective yield on the asset, except 
where recovery is considered doubtful, the income is recognised on receipt basis.  Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / 
restructured advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

 A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

 The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss account. 

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account over the 
remaining period through effective interest method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income is recognised as the services are rendered.

4.11 Impairment

 The carrying amount of the Company’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. 



1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 PAΪR Investment Company Limited, "the Company" is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 January 
2007 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company has been notified as a Development Financial Institution by the Ministry 
of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

 The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment Company which is owned by 
the Government of Iran. The Company's objectives interalia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects, capital and 
money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registered and principal office is situated at ICCI Building, 
Clifton, Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 17 February 2006. Furthermore, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 
2018 has notified a new format of financial statements effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2018. The new 
format would result in additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements presentation.

 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
The amounts are rounded to nearest thousand rupees.

2.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives of SBP or SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements 
of the said directives shall prevail.

 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed by enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017. SECP vide its Circular No. 
23 of 2017 has clarified that all those companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare financial 
statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

 - The SBP through its BSD Circular letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in 
Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1)/2008. 
Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), have not been considered in preparation of 
these financial statements.

 - IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Company's accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2009. All banking 
companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD 
Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, 'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended 
31 December 2006. 

 - The management of the Company believes that as the SBP has defined the segment categorisation in the above mentioned 
circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in 
these financial statements is based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

 -  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain 
types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net 
of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new 
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requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.

 -  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate 
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity 
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency 
is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain 
the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in 
advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the 
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the 
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is 
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

 -  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Bank is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition 
policies on adoption of the standard. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in revenue 
recognition policies on adoption of the standard and considers that the impact would not be significant. 

 -  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively).  IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The 
Company is currently awaiting instructions from SBP as applicability of IAS 39 (as explained in note 2.2) was deferred by SBP till 
further instructions. 

 -  Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities 
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and 
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 
accounting standards:

 -  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a 
company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held 
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

 
 -  IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

 -  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally 
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances 
with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

4.2 Sale and re-purchase agreements

 The Company enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are 
recorded as under: 

 Sale under re-purchase obligations

 Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the counter 
party liability is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase value is accrued over the period of the agreement and 
recorded as an expense. 

 Securities purchased under agreement to re-sale (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions. The differential 
between the contracted price and re-sale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income.

4.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following: 

 - Classification and valuation of investments and impairment (Note 4.4)
 -   Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease (Note 4.5)
 -   Provision against off - balance sheet obligations (Note 4.18)
 -   Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (Note 4.22)
 -   Useful life of operating assets and methods of depreciation and amortization (Note 4.6)
 -   Taxation - Current (Note 4.7)
 -   Taxation - Deferred (Note 4.7)
 -   Staff retirement benefit and compensated absences (Notes 4.20 & 4.21)

4.4 Investments

 The Company classifies its investments as follows:

 Held for trading 

 These are securities, which are  acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market/ interest rate 
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis.  These securities are 
required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in 
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

 Held to maturity

 These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity.

 Available for sale

 Investments that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to maturity categories' are classified as 'available for sale'.

 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention 
are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

 Initial Recognition

 Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

 Subsequent Measurement

 Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and 'available for sale' are valued at 

rates quoted on PKRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSE) as at the date of statement of financial position respectively. Any surplus 
or deficit arising as a result of revaluation of securities categorised as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account ant that of 
'available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown below equity in accordance with the requirements of 
State Bank of Pakistan.

 Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions and 
information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matter of 
judgement (e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.) and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 

 Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are stated at their amortized cost less impairment In value, if any.

 Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of 
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited 
financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries and associates if any (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting 
Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till 
maturity using effective interest method.

 Impairment

 Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates) and held to maturity recognised 
based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an investment below its cost 
is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provisions for diminution in the value of  debt securities is made as per the 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss 
that has been recognised below equity is removed and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to 
maturity, the impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

4.5 Advances including net investment in finance lease

 Advances are stated net of specific and general provisions. Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of 
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account. These 
regulations prescribe an age based criteria (as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non - 
performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.

 Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessees 
are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance lease”.

 The Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances and provision required there against on a 
regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the 
borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

4.6 Operating fixed assets

 Tangible assets

 Operating fixed assets except capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets over their expected economic 
lives at the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking 
into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are available for use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. 

 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in operating fixed assets.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / useful 
life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on depreciation charge and 
impairment.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of an 
intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to the Company. 
The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become 
available for use.

4.7 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax 
credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, 
which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax 
rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments to tax payable relating to prior years.

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax laws 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which it 
can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that related tax benefits 
will be realised.

4.8 Borrowings and deposits

 Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit 
and loss account on a time proportion basis.

4.9 Foreign currencies

 Foreign currency transactions

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

 Translation gains and losses

 Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

4.10 Revenue recognition

 Mark-up / return / interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account effective yield on the asset, except 
where recovery is considered doubtful, the income is recognised on receipt basis.  Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / 
restructured advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

 A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

 The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss account. 

 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account over the 
remaining period through effective interest method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income is recognised as the services are rendered.

4.11 Impairment

 The carrying amount of the Company’s assets (other than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. 



4.12 Off setting

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a 
legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 
assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.13 Other provisions

 Other provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable 
that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits would be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the 
amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

4.14 Financial assets and liabilities

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provision 
of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual right future cash flows from the asset expires or is 
transferred along with the risk and reward of the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when obligation specific in the contract 
discharge, cancel or expire. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial asset and liability is recognised in the profit or loss 
account of the current period.

4.15 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves, except appropriation which is required by the law after the balance sheet date, is recognised 
as liability in the Company's financial statements in the period in which these are approved.

4.16 Derivative financial instruments

 Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at their fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is entered into 
and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. All derivative financial instruments are carried as asset when fair value is positive and 
liabilities when fair value is negative. Any change in the value of derivative financial instruments is taken to the profit and loss account.

4.17 Earnings per share

 The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable 
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

4.18 Provisions against off - balance sheet obligations

 The Company, in the ordinary course of business, issues guarantees. The commission against such contracts is recognised in the profit 
and loss account under "fees, commission and brokerage income" over the period of contracts. The Company's liability under such 
contracts is measured at the higher of the amount representing unearned commission income at the reporting date and the best 
estimate of the amount expected to settle any financial obligation arising under such contracts. 

4.19 Segment information

 A segment is distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing products or services (business segment), or in 
providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and 
rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Company's primary format of reporting is based on business segments.

4.19.1 Business segments

 Following are the main segments of the Company:

 Corporate finance and It includes loans, advances, leases and other transactions with corporate customers. Further, it undertakes 
 commercial banking  advisory services including mergers and acquisitions, listed debt syndication, trustee activities and other 
  investment banking activities

 Trading & Sales (other  Undertakes Company's fund management activities through leveraging and investing in liquid assets 
 than Capital Market) such as short term placements, government securities and reverse repo activities. It carries out spread
  based activities in the inter bank market and manages the interest rate risk exposure of the Company.

 Capital Market  Includes trading in listed securities with a view to trade and earn the benefit of market fluctuations and 
  to hold securities for dividend income and capital gains.

4.19.2 Geographical segments

 The Company operate only in Pakistan.

4.20 Staff retirement benefit

 Defined benefit plan

 The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees who have completed the qualifying 
period under the scheme. The scheme is administered by a Board of Trustees and contributions therein are made in accordance with 
the actuarial recommendations. The valuation in this regard is carried out at each balance sheet date, using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method for the valuation of the scheme.

 Gratuity is payable to staff on completion of two years of service.
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 Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from a plan amendment or curtailment. 
The Company recognises past service cost as an expense at the earlier of the following dates: 

 (a) when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; or 
 (b) and when the Company recognises related restructuring costs or termination benefits. 

 The Company has adopted certain actuarial assumptions as disclosed in the note 32.2 for valuation of defined benefit obligation and 
fair value of plan assets, based on actuarial advice. 

 Defined contribution plan 

 The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme for its employees. Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the 
Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 10% of the basic salary.  

4.21 Employees' compensated absences 

 Employees' entitlement to annual leave is recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for estimated liability for 
annual leave as a result of services rendered by the employee against un-availed leaves upto the balance sheet date.

4.22 Non - banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 

 Non - banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are initially measured at settlement amount and upon revaluation, are carried 
at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. These assets are revalued as per SBP's requirement by 
independent professionally qualified valuers to ensure that their net carrying value does not differ materially from their fair value. A 
surplus arising on revaluation of property is credited to the 'surplus on revaluation of fixed assets' account and any deficit arising on 
revaluation is taken to profit and loss account directly. Legal fees, transfer costs and direct costs of acquiring title of property is 
charged to profit and loss account and not capitalised.
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Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)5. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS   

 In hand 

 Local currency   70   70 

 Foreign currencies   1,221   642 

    1,291   712 
 With State Bank of Pakistan in  
 Local currency current account 5.1  36,028   62,960 
 
 With National Bank of Pakistan in 

 Local currency current account   8   8 
 Local currency deposit account 5.2  543   525 

    551   533 

    37,870   64,205 
 

5.1 This represents current account maintained for minimum cash reserve required to be maintained with the State Bank of Pakistan in 
accordance with its requirements. 

5.2 This carries mark-up at the rate 3.75% per annum (2016: 3.75%). 

6. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS 
 

 In Pakistan   
 In current accounts   44,920   4,509 
 In deposits accounts 6.1  46,807   428,274 

    91,727   432,783  

6.1 These deposit accounts carry annual mark-up rate of 3.75% (2016: 3.75% to 4%).

7. LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 
 
 Call money lendings 7.2  170,000   -   
 Certificate of Investment 7.3  800,000   -   
    970,000   -   
7.1 Particulars of lendings 
 
 In local currency   970,000   -   
 

7.2 This carry mark-up rate of 5.90% (2016: nil) per annum, with maturity at 02 January 2018 (2016: Nil). 

7.3 These carry mark-up rates upto 7.50% (2016: nil) per annum, with maturity upto 23 May 2018 (2016: Nil). 



  Note  2017   2016
   Held by the Given as  Held by the Given as
   Company collateral  Company collateral
                       (Rupees in '000)

Total Total

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2017

PAÏR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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8. INVESTMENTS 

8.1 Investments by type

 
 Held for trading securities      
 Pakistan Investment Bonds   -     -     -     322,815   -     322,815 
 Shares in listed companies   155,754   -     155,754   4,215   -     4,215 
    155,754   -     155,754   327,030   -     327,030 
      
 
 Available for sale securities      
 
 Market treasury bills   1,489,208   3,445,717   4,934,925   1,744,779   3,696,579   5,441,358 
 Pakistan Investment Bonds   -     836,532   836,532   463,663   1,568,555   2,032,218 
 Units of mutual funds   274,119   -     274,119   800,000   -     800,000 
 Shares in listed companies   645,047   -     645,047   250,022   10,822   260,844 
 Shares in unlisted companies   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Sukuk bonds   373,171   -     373,171   255,468   -     255,468 
 Term finance certificates - Listed   1,334,272   160,369   1,494,641   339,371   659,869   999,240 
 Term finance certificates - Unlisted   1,794,531   499,500   2,294,031   1,626,609   -     1,626,609 
    5,910,348   4,942,118   10,852,466   5,479,912   5,935,825   11,415,737 
      
 Held to maturity securities      
 
 Commercial papers   153,060   -     153,060   -     -     -   
    153,060   -     153,060   -     -     -   
      
 Investments at cost   6,219,162   4,942,118   11,161,280   5,806,942   5,935,825   11,742,767 
      
 Provision for diminution in value       
 of investments 8.3  (82,797)  -     (82,797)  (12,571)  -     (12,571)
      
 Investments - net of provisions   6,136,365   4,942,118   11,078,483   5,794,371   5,935,825   11,730,196 
      
  Surplus / (Deficit) on revaluation       
 of held for trading securities 8.10  9,680   -     9,680   (1,920)  -     (1,920)
      
 (Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of       
 available for sale securities 18  (73,087)  29,223   (43,864)  48,191   66,506   114,697 
      
 Total investments at market value   6,072,958   4,971,341   11,044,299   5,840,642   6,002,331   11,842,973 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2017

PAÏR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

  Note 2017 2016
    (Rupees in '000)           

8.2 Investments by segment

 Federal Government securities 
 - Market treasury bills 8.4  4,934,925   5,441,358 
 - Pakistan Investment Bonds 8.5  836,532   2,355,033 
 
 Units in mutual funds   274,119   800,000 
 
 Fully paid up ordinary shares 
 -  Listed companies   800,801   265,059 
 
 Sukuk bonds   373,171   255,468 
 
 Term finance certificates 
 - Listed   1,494,641   999,240 
 - Unlisted   2,294,031   1,626,609 
    3,788,672   2,625,849 
 
 Commercial papers   153,060   -   
 
 Total investments at cost   11,161,280   11,742,767 
 
 Provision for diminution in value of investments 8.3  (82,797)  (12,571)
 
 Investments - net of provisions   11,078,483   11,730,196 
 
 Surplus / (Deficit) on revaluation of held for trading securities 8.10  9,680   (1,920)
 
 (Deficit) / Surplus on revaluation of available for sale securities 18  (43,864)  114,697 
 
 Total investments at market value   11,044,299   11,842,973 
 
8.3 Particulars of provision held for diminution in the value of investments   
 
 Opening balance   12,571   378,780 
 
 Charge for the year   70,697   -   
 Reversals   (471)  (366,209)
    70,226   (366,209)
 Closing balance   82,797   12,571 
 
 Particulars of provision in respect of types and segments 
 
 Available for sale securities 
 Shares in listed companies   69,841   -   
 Shares in unlisted companies   -     -   
 Sukuk bonds   1,711   1,326 
 Term finance certificates - Unlisted   11,245   11,245 
    82,797   12,571 
 
8.4 Market treasury bills carry yield ranging from 6.01% (2016: 5.83% to 5.96%) per annum with maturities upto 07 June 2018 (2016: 20 July 2017). 
 
8.5 The investments in Pakistan investment bonds are maturing upto 17 July 2019 (2016: 17 July 2019) and the effective yield ranges from 6.57% to 

9.35% (2016: 6.57% to 12.58%) per annum. 
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Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

9.2 These include personal loans and house loans advanced to employees in accordance with their terms of employment. These 
personal loans and house loans carry mark-up at the rates of 3% and 5% (2016: 3% and 5%) respectively.

9.3 Net investment in finance lease

 

9.3.1 The Company’s implicit rate of return on leases ranges between 7.67% and 15.94% (2016: 8.39% and 13.37%) per annum. These 
are secured against leased assets and security deposits generally upto 27% (2016: 20%) of the cost of leased assets.

Not later
than one

year

 Later than  
 one and 
 less than 
 five years 

 Later than  
 five 

years 

Total Not later
than one

year

 Later than  
 one and 
 less than 
 five years 

 Later than  
 five 
years 

Total

(Rupees in '000)

2017 2016

8.10 Unrealised gain / (loss) on revaluation of   

 investments classified as held for trading - net   
 

 Market treasury bills   -     -   

 Pakistan investment bonds   -    (1,918)

 Shares of listed companies  9,680  (2)

   9,680  (1,920)

9. ADVANCES 
 

 In Pakistan

 Loans, cash credits, finances etc. 9.2  5,057,393   6,127,766 

 Net investment in finance lease 9.3  414,785   129,748 

    5,472,178  6,257,514 

 Bill discounted and purchased (excluding treasury bills)  35,000   24,718 

 Advances - gross   5,507,178   6,282,232 

 Provision against non-performing loans and advances 9.4  (854,246)  (857,881)

 Advances - net of provision   4,652,932   5,424,351 

9.1 Particulars of advances - gross

 In local currency  9.1.1   5,507,178   6,282,232 

 In foreign currencies   -     -   

    5,507,178   6,282,232 

9.1.1 Short-term (upto one year)   2,311,286   2,235,625 

 Long-term (over one year)   3,195,892   4,046,607 

    5,507,178   6,282,232 

Description

 Lease rentals receivable  137,428  252,218   -     389,646   41,431  91,036   -     132,467 
 Guaranteed residual value  3,469   78,250    81,719   -     19,839    19,839 
 Minimum lease payments  140,897   330,468   -     471,365   41,431   110,875   -     152,306 
 
 Finance charge for future periods  (29,268)  (27,312)  -     (56,580)  (10,383)  (12,175)  -    (22,558)
 Present value of minimum    111,629   303,156   -     414,785   31,048   98,700   -     129,748 
 lease payments
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Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total

2017
Non-performing advances Provision required and held

(Rupees in '000)

Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total

2016
Non-performing advances Provision required and held

(Rupees in '000)

Specific General Total Specific General Total
2017 2016

 (Rupees in '000) 

Specific General Total Specific General Total
2017 2016

 (Rupees in '000) 

9.4 Advances include Rs. 958.25 million (2016: Rs. 1,168.33 million), which have been placed under a non-performing status as 
 detailed below: 
  
   
   

 Category of classification  
 Other assets especially mentioned  -          -    -         -          -    -        
 Substandard -         -    -          -           -      -        
 Doubtful -          -    -         -           -      -        
 Loss  958,250   -    958,250   (854,246)   -      (854,246)

   958,250   -    958,250   (854,246)   -      (854,246)

 
 

 Category of classification
 Other assets especially mentioned -          -   -         -           -     -        
 Substandard  204,672   -     204,672   35,289    -      35,289 
 Doubtful  -          -    -         -           -      -        
 Loss  963,666   -     963,666   822,592    -      822,592 
   1,168,338   -     1,168,338   857,881    -      857,881 

 
9.5 Particulars of provision against non-performing advances - in local currency 

   
 
Opening balance  857,881   -     857,881   907,528    -      907,528 
Charge for the year  42,362   -     42,362   58,235    -      58,235 
Reversals  (45,997)  -     (45,997)  (107,882)   -      (107,882)
   (3,635)  -     (3,635)  (49,647)   -      (49,647)
Amounts written off -          -     -         -           -      -        
Closing balance  854,246   -     854,246   857,881    -      857,881
 
9.5.1 Particulars of provision against non-performing advances

   
 
 In local currency   854,246   -     854,246   857,881    -      857,881 

9.3.2 Lease rentals received during the year aggregate to Rs. 87.633 million (2016: Rs. 22.648 million).



Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

9.6 In accordance with BSD Circular No. 1 dated 21 October 2011 issued by the SBP, the Company has availed the benefit of 

Forced Sales Value (FSV) against the non-performing advances. Had this benefit of FSV not been taken by the Company, 

the specific provision against non-performing advances would have been higher by Rs. 104 million (2016: Rs. 156.95 

million). Further, this amount arising from availing the benefit of FSV is not available for distribution amongst the 

shareholders either in the form of cash or stock dividend.    

  

9.7 Particulars of loans and advances to directors, executives, associated companies etc.  

 Debts due by executives or officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other persons.  

 Balance at beginning of the year     44,618   43,904 

 Loans granted during the year    14,520     5,718 

 Repayments during the year     (15,012)  (5,004)

 Balance at end of the year    44,126   44,618 

 

10 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS  

 

 Capital work-in-progress  10.1  183,091    154,343 

 Property and equipment  10.2    14,507    22,365 

 Intangible assets 10.3   405    274   

     198,003    176,982 

 

10.1 This represents office building and related parking space situated at The Ocean Mall, Clifton, Karachi purchased by the Company 

to transfer its registered and principal office.     
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2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

Balance at
1 January,

2017

Recognized
in profit
and loss

Recognized
in equity

Balance at
31 December,

2017

(Rupees in '000)

Balance at
1 January,

2016

Recognized
in profit
and loss

Recognized
in equity

Balance at
31 December,

2016

11. DEFERRED TAX ASSET - NET
 
 Deferred tax asset - net   260,554   238,128 
  
 The balance of deferred taxation comprises  
  
 Debit / (credit) balances arising on account of:  
  
 Surplus/deficit on revaluation of assets    6,578   (31,024)
 Accelerated tax depreciation allowance   (20,216)  (381)
 Provision for gratuity, LFA and leave encashment    5,007   (306)
 Provision against non-performing loans    256,274   265,942 
 Provision against investments    12,911   3,897 
     260,554    238,128 
 
11.1 Movement in temporary differences during the year    

 
Debit / (Credit) balances arising on account of: 
Surplus /(deficit) on revaluation of assets  (31,024)  (595)  38,197   6,578 
Accelerated tax depreciation allowance  (381)  (19,835)  -     (20,216)
Provision for gratuity, LFA & leave encashment  (306)  3,574   1,739   5,007 
Provision against non performing loans  265,942   (9,668)  -     256,274 
Provision against investments  3,897   9,014   -     12,911 
   238,128   (17,510)  39,936   260,554 
 
 

 
Debit / (Credit) balances arising on account of: 
(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of assets  (42,301)  593   10,684   (31,024)
Accelerated tax depreciation allowance  (6,945)  6,564   -     (381)
Provision for gratuity, LFA & leave encashment  632   (949)  11   (306)
Provision against non performing loans  290,008   (24,066)  -     265,942 
Provision against investments  18,297   (14,400)  -     3,897 
   259,691   (32,258)  10,695   238,128
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11. DEFERRED TAX ASSET - NET
 
 Deferred tax asset - net   260,554   238,128 
  
 The balance of deferred taxation comprises  
  
 Debit / (credit) balances arising on account of:  
  
 Surplus/deficit on revaluation of assets    6,578   (31,024)
 Accelerated tax depreciation allowance   (20,216)  (381)
 Provision for gratuity, LFA and leave encashment    5,007   (306)
 Provision against non-performing loans    256,274   265,942 
 Provision against investments    12,911   3,897 
     260,554    238,128 
 
11.1 Movement in temporary differences during the year    

2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

12. OTHER ASSETS
 Income / mark-up accrued in local currency   254,543   281,187 
 Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments    66,300   23,141 
 Dividend receivable   1,529   1,054 
 Receivable from defined benefit plan   -     986 
 Security deposits   7,731   7,231 
 Non-banking asset acquired in satisfaction of claims 12.1  100,177   105,450 
   430,280   419,049 

12.1 Market value of Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims   119,750   99,675 
 
13. BORROWINGS 
 
 In Pakistan (local currency) 13.1  6,370,738   6,549,981 
 
13.1 Details of borrowings secured / unsecured 
 Secured  
 Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan- Under financing facility 
   -for Storage of Agricultural Produce (FFSAP) 13.2  3,294   9,870 
   -for Imported & Locally Manufactured Plant & Machinery (LTFF) 13.3  694,163   273,150 
 Repurchase agreement borrowings 13.4  4,235,781   5,187,461 
 Term borrowings 13.5  1,187,500   562,500 

    6,120,738   6,032,981 
 Unsecured 
 Call borrowings   250,000   517,000 
    6,370,738   6,549,981 
 
13.2 The Company has entered into agreement with the SBP for extending Financing Facility for Storage of Agricultural Produce 

(FFSAP). The borrowing carries mark-up rate of 2% (2016: 2.5%). The borrowing will mature in November 2019. 

13.3 The Company has entered into agreement with the SBP for extending Long Term Financing Facility (LTFF) for Imported & Locally 
Manufactured Plant & Machinery. The borrowing carries mark-up rate of 2.0% per annum (2016: 2.0%). The borrowing will mature 
in April 2027.   

13.4 These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 6.00% to 6.05% per annum (2016: 5.90% to 6.2%) and are secured against 
government securities having carrying amount of Rs. 4.282 billion (2016: Rs. 5.26 billion). These borrowings will mature up to 
February 2018 (2016: January 2017).   

13.5 These represent finances obtained from Allied Bank Limited to finance regular business operations of the Company. These finances 
are secured by pledge of listed and unlisted Term finance certificates. It carries mark up at the rate of 6 months KIBOR + 0.5% per 
annum. These are repayable in semi annual installments and shall be repaid by 2021. 

 
14. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

 Customers   
 Term Deposits - Remunerative 14.2   1,079,932   1,254,468  
 Term Deposits - Non-Remunerative 14.2   260    260  
    
 Financial Institutions  
 Term Deposits - Remunerative 14.4   733,809     825,000   
     1,814,001     2,079,728  

14.1 Particulars of deposits  
 In local currency    1,814,001     2,079,728  

     1,814,001    2,079,728  

Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)



2017 2016
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2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

16.3 Major shareholders (holding more than 5% of total paid-up capital)  

      
     
 Name of shareholder    
 Government of Pakistan *   300,000,000 50%   300,000,000 50%
 Iran Foreign Investment Company *   300,000,000 50%  300,000,000 50%
    600,000,000 100%  600,000,000 100% 
   
 * This includes nominal shares allotted to the nominee Directors of the Company nominated by Government of Pakistan and 
 Iran Foreign Investment Company.

17. RESERVES
 Statutory reserve 
     Opening balance    794,107   673,449 
     Transfer during the year     45,959   120,658 
     Closing balance    840,066   794,107 
 
17.1 According to BPD Circular No. 15 dated 31 May 2004 issued by SBP, an amount not less than 20% of the after tax profits shall 

be transferred to create a reserve fund till such time the reserve fund equals the amount of the paid-up capital and after that a 
sum not less than 5% of profit after tax shall be credited to the statutory reserve.

2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

2017 2016
(Number of shares)

2017
Number of
shares held

Percentage of  
shareholding

2016
Number of  shares 

held
Percentage of  
shareholding

15. OTHER LIABILITIES  
 
 Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency   39,556   40,966 
 Accrued expenses    18,335   8,932 
 Provision for taxation - net    561   89,387 
 Dividend payable    -     300,000 
 Payable Brokerage / NCCPL    5,924   179 
 Payable to defined benefit plan    4,064   -   
 Payable to an associated undertaking   5,279   4,900 
 Government levies payable    7,332   3,243 
 Provision for compensated absences    4,773   -   
 Provision for audit fee    1,436   1,495 
 Advance insurance premium on lease   469   265 
 Security deposits against finance lease   81,719   23,102 
 Provision for staff rewards    21,055   46,334 
 Provision for WWF    55,091   -   
     245,594   518,803 
16. SHARE CAPITAL  
16.1 Authorized capital
 

 
 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each   10,000,000     10,000,000  
 
16.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 
 
 600,000,000  600,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each  6,000,000   6,000,000 

 600,000,000  600,000,000  Fully paid in cash  6,000,000   6,000,000 

14.2 The mark-up rates on these certificate of investments (COI) range between 6.15% to 6.6% per annum (2016: 6.2% to 7% per 
annum). These COIs will mature up to December 2018 (2016: December 2017).    

14.3 These include non-interest bearing certificate of investments (COI) issued to employees of the Company maturing up to 
November 2018 (2016: December 2017).    
    

14.4 The mark-up rates on these certificate of investments (COI) is 6.2%  per annum (2016: 6.25% to 6.4% per annum). These COIs 
will mature up to March 2018 (2016: December 2017).

(Rupees in '000)
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16.3 Major shareholders (holding more than 5% of total paid-up capital)  

      
     
 Name of shareholder    
 Government of Pakistan *   300,000,000 50%   300,000,000 50%
 Iran Foreign Investment Company *   300,000,000 50%  300,000,000 50%
    600,000,000 100%  600,000,000 100% 
   
 * This includes nominal shares allotted to the nominee Directors of the Company nominated by Government of Pakistan and 
 Iran Foreign Investment Company.

17. RESERVES
 Statutory reserve 
     Opening balance    794,107   673,449 
     Transfer during the year     45,959   120,658 
     Closing balance    840,066   794,107 
 
17.1 According to BPD Circular No. 15 dated 31 May 2004 issued by SBP, an amount not less than 20% of the after tax profits shall 

be transferred to create a reserve fund till such time the reserve fund equals the amount of the paid-up capital and after that a 
sum not less than 5% of profit after tax shall be credited to the statutory reserve.

14.2 The mark-up rates on these certificate of investments (COI) range between 6.15% to 6.6% per annum (2016: 6.2% to 7% per 
annum). These COIs will mature up to December 2018 (2016: December 2017).    

14.3 These include non-interest bearing certificate of investments (COI) issued to employees of the Company maturing up to 
November 2018 (2016: December 2017).    
    

14.4 The mark-up rates on these certificate of investments (COI) is 6.2%  per annum (2016: 6.25% to 6.4% per annum). These COIs 
will mature up to March 2018 (2016: December 2017).

Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

18. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF DEFERRED TAX    
 
 On revaluation of available-for-sale securities- net of deferred tax 
 
 (Deficit) / surplus arising on revaluation of quoted equity shares   (16,727)  18,232 
 (Deficit) / surplus arising on revaluation of mutual funds   (57,836)  3,048 
 (Deficit) arising on revaluation of market treasury bills   (695)  (2,355)
 Surplus arising on revaluation of term finance certificate   7,672   19,645 
 Surplus arising on revaluation of sukuks   1,364   -   
 Surplus arising on revaluation of Pakistan investment bond   22,358   76,127 
    (43,864)  114,697 

 Related deferred tax asset / (liability)   6,578   (31,619)
    (37,286)  83,078 
19. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

19.1 The income years 2013 to 2015 are under scrutiny. For Tax year 2013, the income tax department has amended the assessments the 
company has paid the additional demand created by the department under protest. While making amended assessment certain errors 
were made in the revised order with the effect amounting to PKR 5.5 million. The company has filed a rectification application for the 
same in addition to filing an appeal before ATIR against the amended order issued by CIRA which is pending for hearing.

 
 In respect of tax years 2014 & 2015 ATIR deleted the demand on ground of allocation of mark-up expenses to capital gain and dividend 

income and directed the department to work out the liability of WWF in the light of Supreme Court's order.  It has also remanded back 
the issue of taxing amortization of TFCs and preference shares and taxing of capital gain on sale of TFCs and T bills under the head 
business income instead of capital gain for re-adjudication. The department may file reference before High Court on allocation of 
expenses, where any adverse decision may increase the liability of the company by approximately PKR 54.71 Million & PKR 93.93 million 
respectively.   

 For tax years 2016 to 2017, Return filed under Universal Self-Assessment Scheme (USAS) is treated as deemed assessment under section 
120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

  
19.2 Commitments in respect of repo transactions  
  

19.3 Direct credit substitutes   148,810   222,392 
  
19.4 Commitments to extend credit 
  
 The Company makes commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but these being revocable commitments do not 

attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn. 
  
20. OFF BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
  
 Off balance sheet financial instruments referred to as derivatives, contracts the characteristics of which are derived from those of 

underlying assets. These include forwards and swaps in money and foreign exchange markets. The Company's exposure in these 
instruments represents equity futures. The Company also enters into repo transactions against government securities carrying fixed 
interest rates and having fixed contractual maturities. The credit risk associated with repo transactions is secured through underlying 
government securities. 

  
21. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS  
  
 The Company at present does not offer structured derivative products such as interest rate swaps, forward rate swaps, forward rate 

agreements or forward exchange options. However, the Company treasury and investment group buy and sell derivative instruments 
such as equity futures.

 
21.1 Equity futures 
  
 An equity futures contract is a standardized contract, traded on a futures counter of the stock exchange, to buy or sell a certain underlying 

scrip at a certain date in the future, at a specified price.
 
 The Company uses equity futures as a hedging instrument to hedge its equity portfolio against equity price risk. Only selected shares are 

allowed to be traded on futures exchange. Equity futures give flexibility to the Company either to take delivery on the future settlement 
date or to settle it by adjusting the notional value of the contract based on the current market rates. 

  
 Maximum exposure limit to the equity futures is 10% of tier 1 capital of the Company, based on prevailing SBP regulations.
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18. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF DEFERRED TAX    
 
 On revaluation of available-for-sale securities- net of deferred tax 
 
 (Deficit) / surplus arising on revaluation of quoted equity shares   (16,727)  18,232 
 (Deficit) / surplus arising on revaluation of mutual funds   (57,836)  3,048 
 (Deficit) arising on revaluation of market treasury bills   (695)  (2,355)
 Surplus arising on revaluation of term finance certificate   7,672   19,645 
 Surplus arising on revaluation of sukuks   1,364   -   
 Surplus arising on revaluation of Pakistan investment bond   22,358   76,127 
    (43,864)  114,697 

 Related deferred tax asset / (liability)   6,578   (31,619)
    (37,286)  83,078 
19. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

19.1 The income years 2013 to 2015 are under scrutiny. For Tax year 2013, the income tax department has amended the assessments the 
company has paid the additional demand created by the department under protest. While making amended assessment certain errors 
were made in the revised order with the effect amounting to PKR 5.5 million. The company has filed a rectification application for the 
same in addition to filing an appeal before ATIR against the amended order issued by CIRA which is pending for hearing.

 
 In respect of tax years 2014 & 2015 ATIR deleted the demand on ground of allocation of mark-up expenses to capital gain and dividend 

income and directed the department to work out the liability of WWF in the light of Supreme Court's order.  It has also remanded back 
the issue of taxing amortization of TFCs and preference shares and taxing of capital gain on sale of TFCs and T bills under the head 
business income instead of capital gain for re-adjudication. The department may file reference before High Court on allocation of 
expenses, where any adverse decision may increase the liability of the company by approximately PKR 54.71 Million & PKR 93.93 million 
respectively.   

 For tax years 2016 to 2017, Return filed under Universal Self-Assessment Scheme (USAS) is treated as deemed assessment under section 
120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

  
19.2 Commitments in respect of repo transactions  
  

19.3 Direct credit substitutes   148,810   222,392 
  
19.4 Commitments to extend credit 
  
 The Company makes commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but these being revocable commitments do not 

attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn. 
  
20. OFF BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
  
 Off balance sheet financial instruments referred to as derivatives, contracts the characteristics of which are derived from those of 

underlying assets. These include forwards and swaps in money and foreign exchange markets. The Company's exposure in these 
instruments represents equity futures. The Company also enters into repo transactions against government securities carrying fixed 
interest rates and having fixed contractual maturities. The credit risk associated with repo transactions is secured through underlying 
government securities. 

  
21. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS  
  
 The Company at present does not offer structured derivative products such as interest rate swaps, forward rate swaps, forward rate 

agreements or forward exchange options. However, the Company treasury and investment group buy and sell derivative instruments 
such as equity futures.

 
21.1 Equity futures 
  
 An equity futures contract is a standardized contract, traded on a futures counter of the stock exchange, to buy or sell a certain underlying 

scrip at a certain date in the future, at a specified price.
 
 The Company uses equity futures as a hedging instrument to hedge its equity portfolio against equity price risk. Only selected shares are 

allowed to be traded on futures exchange. Equity futures give flexibility to the Company either to take delivery on the future settlement 
date or to settle it by adjusting the notional value of the contract based on the current market rates. 

  
 Maximum exposure limit to the equity futures is 10% of tier 1 capital of the Company, based on prevailing SBP regulations.

Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)22. MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED 

 On loans and advances to  
   - customers   359,276   325,972 
   - employees   2,120   2,082 
 On investments in 
   - held-for-trading securities   46,964   59,819 
   - available-for-sale securities   591,694   832,484 
   - held-to-maturity securities   3,623   3,067 
 On deposits with financial institutions   5,504   11,839 
 On placements   35,936   8,431 
     1,045,117   1,243,694  
23. MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EXPENSED 
 Deposits and other accounts   91,800   104,276 
 Securities sold under repurchase agreements   228,618   363,959 
 On borrowing from State Bank of Pakistan- Under financing facility 
  -for Storage of Agricultural Produce (FFSAP)   227   557 
  -for Imported & Locally Manufactured Plant & Machinery (LTFF)   10,685   5,493 
 Other short-term borrowings   30,073   7,996 
 Long term borrowings   25,955   50,993 
     387,358   533,274 
 
24. GAIN ON SALE OF SECURITIES - NET 
 Market treasury bills   -     1,126 
 Ordinary shares in companies   23,315   (196,919)
 Units of mutual funds  20,027  33,504 
 Term finance certificates   -   370 
 Pakistan investment bonds   26,249   166,832 
     69,591   4,913 
 
25. OTHER INCOME      
 This represents gain on sale of operating fixed assets amounting to Nil (2016: Rs. 0.005 million). 

26. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  
 
 Salaries, allowances and benefits   170,587   187,654 
 Charge for defined benefit plan   8,090   8,499 
 Contribution to defined contribution plan   7,785   9,216 
 Non-executive Directors' fee   2,342   2,182 
 Rent and utilities   25,201   26,473 
 Repairs and maintenance   9,136   7,089 
 Insurance   4,089   4,703 
 Communication   5,255   3,764 
 Advertisement   443   468 
 Depreciation 10.2  13,755   14,957 
 Amortisation 10.3  338   288 
 Printing and stationery    1,594   1,706 
 Legal and professional charges   2,821   12,167 
 Travelling, conveyance and entertainment   26,086   22,176 
 Brokerage and commissions    3,609   3,223 
 Bank charges   838   452 
 Fee and subscriptions   8,584   8,275 
 Auditors' remuneration 26.1  1,436   1,436 
 Donations and charity  26.2  780   774 
 WWF Charges   55,091   -   
 Others   3,554   2,646 
     351,414   318,148 
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Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

26.1 Auditors' remuneration 
 
 Audit fee   518   518 
 Half yearly review   204   204 
 Special certifications and others   583   583 
 Out of pocket expenses   131   131 
     1,436   1,436  
26.2 Donations and charity  
 
 None of the directors, executives or their spouses had any interest in the donee. Detail of donations made during the year is as follows:  

National Institute Of Child Health    200   -   
 Al Umeed Rehabilitation Association   180   -   
 Rotary Club   -     150 
 Special Olympics   -     200 
 Patient Aid Foundation   100   100 
 Inner Wheel Club   -     24 
 Kidney Center   300   300 
     780   774  
27. OTHER CHARGES / (REVERSALS) - NET 
 This represents penalties imposed by State Bank of Pakistan amounting to Rs. 0.05 million (2016: Rs. 0.279 million).

28. TAXATION  
 
 Current    120,909   214,558 
 Prior year   -     10,984 
 Deferred    17,510   32,258 
     138,419  257,800  
28.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit 
 
 Profit before tax   368,214   861,091 
 
 Tax on income @ 30% (2016: 31%)   110,464   266,938 
 Net tax effect on income taxed at reduced rates   9,745   (19,182)
 Net tax effect on income subject to FTR   (21,584)  (9,318)
 Net tax effect of income / expenses not subject to tax    (6,461)  (19,825)
 Tax effect of expenses that are not    -    -   
 deductible in determining taxable profit   41,016   13,211 
 Effect of change in rate of tax   7,681   10,984 
 Prior years charge  -   6,722 
 Others   (2,442)  8,270 
 Tax charge   138,419   257,800 
 

29. BASIC / DILUTED EARNINGS 
 Profit after taxation for the year   229,795   603,291 
 

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 
     600,000   600,000  
  (Rupees per share)   

 Basic / diluted earnings  0.38 1.01

(Number of shares in '000)

 (Rupees per share)

(Rupees in '000)30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
 
 Cash and balances with treasury banks 5  37,870   64,205
 Balances with other banks 6 91,727   432,783
    129,597  496,988
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2017 2016
Number of employees

2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

31. STAFF STRENGTH
 
 Permanent   43   45 
 Contractual    7   2 
 Company's own staff strength at the end of the year   50   47 
 
 Outsourced   –   7 
 Total staff strength   50  54 
 
32. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN 
 
32.1 General description 
 
 As mentioned in note 4.20, the Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. The 

benefits under the gratuity scheme are payable on retirement at the age of 60 or earlier cessation of service, in lump sum. The 
benefit is equal to one month's last drawn salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof, subject to a minimum of two years 
of service.  

32.2 Principal actuarial assumptions 
 
 The actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2017 using the "Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method". The 

information provided in notes 32.3 to 32.12 has been obtained from the actuarial valuation carried out as at 31 December 2017.
 
32.3 Actuarial Assumptions
 
 Financial Assumptions 
      Discount rate  9.50% 8.00%
      Expected rate of increase in salaries   9.50% 7.00%
 
 Demographic Assumptions 
      Mortality rates (for death in service)        SLIC (2001-05)-1
      Rates of employee turnover  ‘’Moderate’’ ‘’Moderate’’

  
32.4 Reconciliation of amount payable to defined benefit obligation 
 
 Present value of defined benefit obligation   38,046  31,920
 Fair value of any assets   (33,982)  (32,906)
 (Surplus) / deficit   4,064     (986)
 
32.5 Movement in (receivable) / payable to defined benefit plan 
 
 Balance Sheet accrued as at the beginning of the year   (986)  1,307 
 Expense charged in the current period   8,090   8,499 
 Company's contribution to gratuity fund   (8,837)  (10,600)
 Benefits paid to outgoing members by the company   -     (228)
 Remeasurements recognized in OCI during the year   5,797   36 
 Balance Sheet (prepaid)/accrued as at the end of the year   4,064   (986)
 

2017 2016
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2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)32.6 Charge for defined benefit plan 

 Cost recognized in profit and loss account for the year 
 
 Current service cost   8,166 8,386 
 Net interest cost 
 - Interest cost on defined benefit obligation  2,815   2,595  
 - Interest income on plan assets   (2,891)  (2,482)
      (76)  113 
     8,090   8,499
 Re-measurements recognized in OCI during the year 
 
 Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation  4,841   (708)
 Actuarial loss on assets  956   744 
     5,797   36 
 Total defined benefit cost recognized in profit and loss 
 and OCI    13,887   8,535 
 
32.7 Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation 
 
 Opening balance of defined benefit obligation   31,920   25,727 
 Current service cost   8,166   8,386 
 Interest cost   2,815   2,595 
 Benefits paid during the year to outgoing members by the Company   -     (228)
 Benefits paid during the year to outgoing members by the fund   (9,696)  (3,852)
 Remeasurements: Actuarial (gain) / during the year   4,841   (708)
 Closing balance of defined benefit obligation   38,046   31,920

 Actual return on plan assets is 5.48% as at 31 December 2017. 
 
32.8 Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets 
 
 Opening fair value of plan assets   32,906   24,420 
 Expected return on plan assets during the year   2,891   2,482 
 Actual contribution made by the Company   8,837   10,600 
 Actual benefits paid during the year   (9,696)  (3,852)
 Remeasurements: Actuarial (loss) on plan assets   (956)  (744)
 Closing fair value of plan assets   33,982   32,906  
 Actual return on plan assets is 5.48% as at 31 December 2017. 

32.9 Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income, 
 expense / (income) during the year 
 
 Remeasurements: Actuarial loss / (gain)on obligation: 
 Loss / (Gain) due to change in financial assumptions   3,801   (99)
 Loss / (Gain) due to change in demographic assumptions   -     -   
 Loss / (Gain) due to change in experience adjustments   1,040   (609)
 Total actuarial loss / (gain) on obligation carried forward   4,841   (708) 
 Remeasurements: Actuarial gain on assets: 
 Actual net return on plan assets   1,785   1,502 
 Less: Interest income on plan assets   2,891   2,482 
     1,106   980 
 
 Opening difference   150   236 
 
 Net return on plan assets   956   744 
 
 Total Remeasurements recognized in OCI during the year  5,797   36
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201 7 2016
(Rupees in '000)

32.10 Disaggregation of fair value of plan assets 
 
 Quoted: 
 Cash and cash equivalents - after adjusting for current liabilities   3,962   819 
 Debt instruments   -     28,622 
     3,962   29,441
 Unquoted: 
 Debt instruments  30,020   3,465 
 Total (Quoted and Unquoted)   33,982   32,906 
 
    2017  2016 
32.11 Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation   Years   Years 
 
 Weighted average duration of the present value of defined benefit obligation   9.94   8.44 
 

 Benefit Payments
 Distribution of timing of benefit payments 
      Years 
         1   1,807   1,491
         2  5,565   14,770
         3   2,623   2,396
         4   3,052   2,108
         5   3,498   2,338
     6-10   25,683   18,571
 
32.12 Sensitivity analysis on significant actuarial assumptions: Actuarial liabilityy 
 
 Base 
 Discount rate +0.5%   36,219   30,620
 Discount rate -0.5%   40,010   33,318
 Future salary increases +0.5%  40,046   33,363
 Future salary increases -0.5%   36,170   30,567

 
33. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN  
 The Company operates an approved provident fund scheme for all its permanent employees to which both the Company and 
 employees contribute at 10% of basic salary in equal monthly contributions. 
 

 Contribution from the Company during the year   7,785   9,216 

 Contribution from the employees during the year   7,785   9,216  

 Employees covered under the plan    50   47  

2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)
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34. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

  
 Fees  -     -     2,342   2,182   -     -   
 Managerial remuneration  20,547   26,222   -     -     48,212   47,630 
 Contribution to defined     -     -     
      contribution plan  2,054   2,622   -      4,821   5,313 
 Rent and house maintenance  -     -     -     -     19,285   19,052 
 Utilities  2,018   1,272   -     -     4,821   9,207 
 Medical  183   374   -     -     6,027   5,954 
 Others  30,530   33,687   -     -     42,486   37,225 
   55,332   64,177   2,342   2,182   125,652   124,381 
      
 Number of persons *2 1 * 5 * 7 *30 *28
 
 The Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer is provided with free use of the Company maintained cars. All non-executive 
 directors are given traveling allowance of Euro 5,000 per meeting for attending the board meeting held during the year. 
 *This also includes outgoing MD/CEO, directors & executives during the year. 
 

Managing Director /
Chief Executive Officer

2017 2016 2017 20172016 2016
(Rupees in ' 000)

Directors Executives

2017

Book value Fair value
(Rupees in ' 000)

2016

Book value Fair value
(Rupees in ' 000)

35. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

35.1 On balance sheet financial instruments 

 Assets 
 Cash and balances with treasury banks  37,870   37,870   64,205   64,205 
 Balances with other banks  91,727   91,727   432,783   432,783 
 Lendings to financial institutions 970,000   970,000   -     -   
 Investments  11,078,483   11,044,299   11,730,196   11,842,973 
 Advances  4,652,932   4,652,932   5,424,351   5,424,351 
 Other assets  330,103  330,103   313,599  313,599
   17,161,115   17,126,931   17,965,134   18,077,911
 
 Liabilities 
 Borrowings from financial institutions 6,370,738   6,370,738   6,549,981  6,549,981 
 Deposits and other accounts  1,814,001   1,814,001   2,079,728   2,079,728 
 Other liabilities  245,594   245,594   518,803    518,803 
  8,430,333 8,430,333 9,148,512 9,148,512 
  8,730,782   8,696,598  8,816,622   8,929,399 
 
 Off-balance sheet financial instruments  -     -     -     -   
 
 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an 
 arm's length transaction. Fair value of financial instruments is based on:    
  
 Government securities   PKRV rates (Reuters page) 
 Term finance certificates and Sukuk bonds (other than government)   MUFAP rates 
 Listed securities   Market rates 

 In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities is not significantly different from 
 their carrying values. 
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35. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

35.1 On balance sheet financial instruments 

 Assets 
 Cash and balances with treasury banks  37,870   37,870   64,205   64,205 
 Balances with other banks  91,727   91,727   432,783   432,783 
 Lendings to financial institutions 970,000   970,000   -     -   
 Investments  11,078,483   11,044,299   11,730,196   11,842,973 
 Advances  4,652,932   4,652,932   5,424,351   5,424,351 
 Other assets  330,103  330,103   313,599  313,599
   17,161,115   17,126,931   17,965,134   18,077,911
 
 Liabilities 
 Borrowings from financial institutions 6,370,738   6,370,738   6,549,981  6,549,981 
 Deposits and other accounts  1,814,001   1,814,001   2,079,728   2,079,728 
 Other liabilities  245,594   245,594   518,803    518,803 
  8,430,333 8,430,333 9,148,512 9,148,512 
  8,730,782   8,696,598  8,816,622   8,929,399 
 
 Off-balance sheet financial instruments  -     -     -     -   
 
 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an 
 arm's length transaction. Fair value of financial instruments is based on:    
  
 Government securities   PKRV rates (Reuters page) 
 Term finance certificates and Sukuk bonds (other than government)   MUFAP rates 
 Listed securities   Market rates 

 In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities is not significantly different from 
 their carrying values. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2017

PAÏR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 Related parties comprise of major shareholders, directors and key management personnel and their close family members and 
retirement benefit funds 

 Transactions with employees as per the terms of employment and transactions with other related parties are executed 
substantially on the same terms, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated parties and do not 
involve more than a normal risk. 

  
 The details of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in the financial 

statements are as follows: 

36.1 The Key Management Personnel  / Directors' compensation are as follows:

 
 Loans and advances to key management personnel  
 Balance at beginning of the year   26,626   29,818 
 Loans granted during the year   1,939   1,369 
 Repayments during the year   (6,006)  (4,561)
 Balance at end of the year   22,559   26,626 
 
 Deposits from the key management personnel 
 Balance at beginning of the year   120   60 
 Deposits received during the year   -      360 
 Deposits redeemed during the year   (40)  (300)
 Balance at end of the year   80   120 
 
 Disposal of Fixed Assets to Key Management Personnel **   12,013   26   
 
 Mark-up earned on loans and advances   1,597   1,341 
 
 Salaries and benefits   121,087   138,333 
 
 Contribution to defined contribution plan  4,855   6,104 
 
 Non-executive directors' remuneration  2,393   2,182 
 
36.2 Receivable from Iran Foreign Investment Company (net)   1,865   2,664 
  
36.3 Dividend payable to Iran Foreign Investment Company  -       300,000 
 
36.4 Deposit from PAIR Investment Co. Ltd. Employees Gratuity Fund   6,020   3,400 
 
36.5 Deposit from Pak Iran Joint Inv. Co. Ltd. Staff Provident Fund   16,855   12,500 
 
36.6 Receivable/ (Payable) from PAIR Investment Employee Gratuity Funds   -       986 
 
36.7 Amount transferred to provident fund   7,695   17,205 
 
36.8 Amount transferred to gratuity fund   5,600   10,600 
 
36.9 Dividend paid to Ministry of Finance - Govt. of Pakistan  150,000   150,000 
 
36.10 Dividend paid to  Iran Foreign Investment Company  450,000 -      

36.11 Certificate of Investment issued to Iran Foreign Investment Company ***  433,809 -       

36.12 Interest Accrued on Certificate of Investment issued to Iran Foreign Investment Company 221 -       

36.13 Markup expensed on deposit from Iran Foreign Investment Company  7,231 -      
 

*Directors are also given travelling allowance of Euro 5,000/- per meeting for attending the board meetings held during the period.
** The amount represents sale of fixed assets to ex MD of the Company as per employment contract.
*** The deposit carries markup at the rate 6.2% and will mature on March 29, 2018. 

2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)
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Corporate Finance 
& Commercial 

Banking

Trading & Sales 
(other than 

Capital Market)

Capital
 Markets Others Total

37. SEGMENT ANALYSIS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES     

 The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows:  

 
 

  
 Total income - Gross  531,428   550,373   69,773   22,053   1,173,627 
 
 Total mark-up / return / interest expense  82,689   304,669   -     -     387,358 
 Segment provision / (reversal) / impairment 5,298   -     61,293   -     66,591 
   87,987   304,669   61,293   -     453,949 
 
 Net operating income  443,441   245,704   8,480   22,053   719,678 
 
 Administrative expenses and other charges     351,464  
 
 Profit before taxation      368,214 
 
 Segment assets  7,796,323   8,742,530   649,347   497,465   17,685,665 
 Segment impaired assets / non performing loans  1,039,061   -     207,994   -     1,247,055 
 Segment provision required and held (875,748)  -     (61,293)  -     (937,041)
 Segment liabilities 1,875,966   6,428,528   -     125,839   8,430,333 
 Segment return on assets -% 7.46% 7.04% 19.96%  7.07%
 Segment cost of funds -% 5.10% 8.41%   5.28%
 

--------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------

2017

Corporate Finance 
& Commercial 

Banking

Trading & Sales 
(other than 

Capital Market)

Capital
 Markets Others Total

  
 Total income - Gross   348,737   999,479   126,423   (177,703)  1,296,936  
 
 Total mark-up / return / interest expense  77,906   455,368   -     -     533,274 
 Segment provision / (reversal) / impairment  (199,497)  -     (23,400)  (192,959)  (415,856)
  (121,591)  455,368   (23,400)  (192,959)  117,418 
 
 Net operating income 470,328   544,111   149,823   15,256   1,179,518 
 
 Administrative expenses and other charges     318,427 
 
 Profit before taxation     861,091
 
 Segment assets  7,373,918   9,870,133   261,401   1,093,019   18,598,471 
 Segment impaired assets / non performing loans  1,222,674   -     -     -     1,222,674 
 Segment provision required and held  870,452   -     -     -     870,452 
 Segment liabilities  1,534,734   7,094,975   -     518,803   9,148,512 
 *Segment return on assets -% 8.94% 4.81% 29.08%     6.49%
 *Segment cost of funds -% 5.79% 6.29%        6.21%
 
 * These are based on average balances of assets and liabilities. 
37.1 Under the Company's policy capital market department assets are financed through equity funds

--------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------

2016
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38. CAPITAL ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY - BASEL III SPECIFIC    

38.1 Capital adequacy 
 
 The objective of capital management is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it could 

continue to manage risk and provide adequate returns to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurate with the 
level of risk.

  
 It is the policy of the Company to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to  
 sustain future development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on shareholders’ return is also recognised and the   
 Company recognises the need to maintain a balance between the higher returns and manage acceptable risk appetite that might  
 be possible with greater gearing and the advantages and security supported by a sound capital position.

 Goals of managing capital        

 The goals of managing capital of the Company are as follows:     
 - To ensure availability of adequate capital at a reasonable cost so as to enable the Company to grow accordingly.        
 - To achieve a low cost of capital with appropriate mix of capital elements.        
  - To be an appropriately capitalized institution, as prescribed by regulatory authorities from time to time.   
 - To maintain highest quality ratings and to protect the Company against unexpected events.   

 The Capital of the Company is managed keeping in view the minimum “Capital Adequacy Ratio” required by SBP through BPRD   
 Circular No. 06 dated August 15, 2013 read with BSD Circular No. 08 dated June 27, 2006.. The adequacy of the capital is tested   
 with reference to the Risk Weighted Assets of the Company.  
 
 The Company's operations are categorized as at trading book and banking book and risk-weighted assets are determined according  
 to specified requirements of State bank of Pakistan in order to seek and reflect the varying levels of risk attached to assets and   
 off-balance sheet exposures. The total risk-weighted exposures comprises of credit, market and operational risk.
  
 The calculation of Capital Adequacy enables the Company to assess its long-term soundness. It is critically important to 

continuously monitor the exposure across the entire organization and create an aggregate view on the same by generating 
management level information trial to manage risk and return trade-offs. 

  
 The Company is in compliance of the Minimum Capital Requirement, set by the State Bank of Pakistan. 
 
 Scope of Applications 
 
 The Company has implemented a standardized approach of Basel III on a standalone basis. The objectives of Basel III aims to 

further  strengthen the existing capital framework by amending certain provisions of Basel II and introduction of new requirements. 

 The Company at present does not have any overseas operations, subsidiary / associate or engage in joint ventures with any other entity. 

38.1.1 Leverage Ratio 
 
 The leverage ratio of the Company as on 31 December 2017 is  40.96% (2016: 42.12%). 

 The ratio has been computed as prescribed by State Bank of Pakistan through Instructions for Basel III implementation in Pakistan. 
  

 As on 31 December 2017, Total Tier 1 capital of the Company amounts to Rs. 6.817 billions (2016: Rs. 8.26 billions) whereas the 
total exposure amounts to Rs. 16.643 billions (2016: Rs. 19.59 billions).       

 
 Shift in leverage ratio is primarily due to decrease in eligible capital



79 | PAÏR Investment Company Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2017

PAÏR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

38.2 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RETURN AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 38.2 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RETURN AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

Amount Amount
Rows # Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves 

1 Fully Paid-up Capital/ Capital deposited with SBP  6,000,000   6,000,000 

2 Balance in Share Premium Account   

3 Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares  

4 Discount on Issue of shares  

5 General/ Statutory Reserves  840,066   794,107 

6 Gain/(Losses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge   

7 Unappropriated/unremitted profits/ (losses)  2,452,552  2,572,774 

8 bank subsidiaries (amount allowed in CET1 capital of the consolidation group)   

9 CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments  9,292,618  9,366,881 

10 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 (Note 38.2.1)  (2,474,732) (1,110,599)

11 Common Equity Tier 1  6,817,886  8,256,282

  Tier 2 Capital 

22 Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel III plus any related share premium   

23 Tier 2 capital instruments subject to phaseout arrangement issued under pre-Basel 3 rules   

24 Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third parties by consolidated subsidiaries (amount allowed in group tier 2)   

25 of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out  

26 General provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to maximum of 1.25% of Credit Risk Weighted Assets   

27 Revaluation Reserves (net of taxes)  

28 of which: Revaluation reserves on fixed assets   

29 of which: Unrealized gains/losses on AFS  -    64,801 

30 Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves  

31 Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any)   

32 T2 before regulatory adjustments  -    64,801 

21 Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1) (11+20)  6,817,886  8,256,282

 Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital 

12 Qualifying Additional Tier-1 capital instruments plus any related share premium  

13 of which: Classified as equity    

14 of which: Classified as liabilities  

15 Additional Tier-1 capital instruments issued to third parties by consolidated subsidiaries (amount allowed in group AT 1

16 of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out  

17 AT1 before regulatory adjustments  -    -   

18 Total regulatory adjustment applied to AT1 capital (Note 38.2.2)  (293,015) -   

19 Additional Tier 1 capital after regulatory adjustments   

20 Additional Tier 1 capital recognized for capital adequacy  -     -       
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2017 2016
(Rupees in '000)

Amount Amount
33 Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital (Note 38.2.3)  (1,563,778) (64,801)

34 Tier 2 capital (T2) after regulatory adjustments  -    -   

35 Tier 2 capital recognized for capital adequacy  -    -   

36 Portion of Additional Tier 1 capital recognized in Tier 2 capital  -    -   

37 Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy  -    -   

38 TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2) (21+37)  6,817,974  8,256,282 

 Capital Ratios and buffers (in percentage of risk weighted assets)   

40 CET1 to total RWA  59.26% 76.38%

41 Tier-1 capital to total RWA 59.26% 76.38%

42 Total capital to total RWA 59.26% 76.38%

43 Bank specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 requirement plus capital conservation buffer plus any other bufferrequirement) 11.275% 10.65%

44 of which: capital conservation buffer requirement   

45 of which: countercyclical buffer requirement   

46 of which: D-SIB or G-SIB buffer requirement   

47 CET1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 47.99% 65.73%

39 Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) {for details refer Note 38.5}  11,505,338   10,809,837 

 National minimum capital requirements prescribed by SBP  

48 CET1 minimum ratio 6.00% 6.00%

49 Tier 1 minimum ratio 7.50% 7.50%

50 Total capital minimum ratio 11.275% 10.65%
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 Amount  Amount 

 Amounts 
subject to Pre- 

Basel III 
treatment*

 Amounts 
subject to Pre-

Basel III
treatment*

38.2.1

1 Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability)

2
All other intangibles (net of any associated
deferred tax liability)

406 274

 37,286 

3 Shortfall in provisions against classified assets

4

5 Defined-benefit pension fund net assets 

6

7 Cash flow hedge reserve
8 Investment in own shares/ CET1 instruments
9 Securitization gain on sale 

10 Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries 

11 Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's holdings
of fixed assets/ AFS

12 170,948 42,736 39,882 26,587

13

14

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments 

2017 2016
Rupees in '000

Regulatory Adjustments and
Additional Information

15 Amount exceeding 15% threshold 

16

17

18

19 409,215 - -

-

281,991

20

21  1,856,790  788,452

22  2,474,644  1,110,599

Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability 
excluding those arising from temporary differences 
(net of related tax liability)

Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments 
of banking, financial and insurance entities

Investments in the capital instruments of banking, 
financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope 
of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own 
more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 
10% threshold)

Significant investments in the common stocks of 
banking, financial and insurance entities that are 
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount 
above 10% threshold)

Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences 
(amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax 
liability)

    of which: significant investments in the common 
stocks of financial entities

    of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary 
differences

National specific regulatory adjustments applied to 
CET1 capital

Investments in TFCs of other banks exceeding the 
prescribed limit 

Any other deduction specified by SBP
(mention details)

Adjustment to CET1 due to insufficient AT1 and Tier 2 
to cover deductions
Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1
(sum of 1 to 21))
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23
Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed
limit [SBP specific adjustment]

24 Investment in own AT1 capital instruments

-

788,452-

-

25
Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier
1 capital instruments of banking, financial and
insurance entities

26

27

28

Investments in the capital instruments of banking, 
financial and insurance entities that are outside the 
scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does 
not own more than 10% of the issued share capital 
(amount above 10% threshold)

Significant investments in the capital instruments of 
banking, financial and insurance entities that are 
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier-1 and Tier-2 
capital based on pre-Basel III treatment which, during 
transitional period, remain subject to deduction from 
additional tier-1 capital

Adjustments to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 
2 to cover deductions 

Total regulatory adjustment applied to AT1 capital 
(sum of 23 to 29)

29

30 293,012 -

Additional Tier-1 & Tier-1 Capital: regulatory adjustments

 Amount  Amount 

 Amounts 
subject to Pre- 

Basel III 
treatment*

 Amounts 
subject to Pre-

Basel III
treatment*

2017 2016
Rupees in '000

Regulatory Adjustments and
Additional Information

Note
38.2.2

293,012 73,253

31

32

 853,253

64,801 1,563,778

 568,837 1,563,778 390,945

33

34

35

36

Tier-2 Capital: Regulatory adjustmentsNote
38.2.3

Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier-1 and Tier-2 
capital based on pre-Basel III treatment which, during 
transitional period, remain subject to deduction from 
tier-2 capital

Investments in the capital instruments of banking, 
financial and insurance entities that are outside the 
scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does 
not own more than 10% of the issued share capital 
(amount above 10% threshold)

Significant investments in the capital instruments 
issued by banking, financial and insurance entities that 
are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital (sum 
of 31 to 35)

Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments of 
banking, financial and insurance entities

Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument 
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2017 2016

(Rupees in '000)

Amount AmountNote
38.2.4 Additional Information

Risk Weighted Assets subject to pre-Basel III treatment

Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier-2

     Risk weighted assets in respect of deduction items (which during the transitional period will be
risk weighted subject to Pre-Basel III Treatment)

           of which: deferred tax assets

           of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

           of which: Recognized portion of investment in capital of banking, financial and insurance
entities where holding is less than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity

           of which: Recognized portion of investment in capital of banking, financial and insurance
entities where holding is more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity

Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial entities

Significant investments in the common stock of financial entities

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability)

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier-2 in respect of exposures subject to standardized approach
(prior to application of cap)

Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier-2 under standardized approach
Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier-2 in respect of exposures subject to internal ratings-based
approach (prior to application of cap)

Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier-2 under internal ratings-based approach

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

586,297 605,880

586,297 605,880

260,554 238,128

Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)

Table: 38.3.1
Balance sheet of the
published financial

statements

Under regulatory
 scope of

consolidation

(in thousand PKR) As at period end As at period end

Assets (1) (2) (3)

Cash and balances with treasury banks  37,870   37,870 

Balance with other banks  91,727   91,727 

Lendings to financial institutions    970,000  970,000 

Investments   11,044,299   11,044,299 

Advances  4,652,932  4,652,932 

Operating fixed assets 198,003  198,003 

Deferred tax assets  260,554  260,554 

Other assets  430,280  430,280 

Total assets  17,685,665  17,685,665 

38.3         Capital Structure Reconciliation
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Liabilities & Equity

Bills payable  -     -   

Borrowings   6,370,738   6,370,738 

Deposits and other accounts 1,814,001   1,814,001 

Sub-ordinated loans  -     -   

Deferred tax liabilities -     -   

Other liabilities  245,594   245,594 

Total liabilities  8,430,333   8,430,333 

Share capital / Head office capital account  6,000,000   6,000,000 

Reserves  840,066   840,066 

Unappropriated / Unremitted profit / (losses)  2,452,552   2,452,552 

Minority Interest -     -   

Surplus on revaluation of assets  (37,286)   (37,286) 

Total liabilities & equity  9,255,332   9,255,332 

Table: 38.3.2

As at period end As at period end

Assets (1) (2) (3) (4)

Balance sheet as 
in published 

financial 
statements

Under regulatory 
scope of 

consolidation
Reference 

  37,870   37,870  
  91,727   91,727  
  970,000     -    
  11,044,299   11,044,298  
 
 
  3,460,165   3,460,165  a
  -     -    b
 
 
  -     -    c
  -     -    d
 
  -     -    e
  4,652,932   4,652,932  
  -     -    f
 
  -     -    g
  198,003   198,003  
  260,554   260,554  
  -     -    h
 
 
  -     -    i
  430,280   430,280  
  -     -    j
  405   405  k
  -     -    l

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks
Lendings to financial institutions 
Investments
       of which: Non-significant investments in the capital instruments of 
banking, financial and insurance entities exceeding 10% threshold

       of which: Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by 
banking, financial and insurance entities exceeding regulatory threshold

     of which: Mutual Funds exceeding regulatory threshold
     of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument (separate
     for CET1, AT1, T2)
    of which: others (mention details)
Advances
          shortfall in provisions / excess of total EL amount over eligible 
provisions under IRB
         general provisions reflected in Tier-2 capital
Fixed Assets
Deferred Tax Assets
    of which: DTAs that rely on future profitability excluding those arising 
from temporary differences
   of which: DTAs arising from temporary differences exceeding 
regulatory threshold
Other assets
     of which: Goodwill
     of which: Intangibles
     of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

Total assets     16,715,665   16,715,665 
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Table: 38.3.2

As at period end As at period end

Liabilitics & Equlity (1) (2) (3) (4)

Balance sheet as 
in published 

financial 
statements

Under regulatory 
scope of 

consolidation
Reference 

  -     -    
  6,370,738   6,549,981  
  1,814,001  1,814,001  
  -     -    m
  -     -    n
  -     -    
  -     -    
  -     -    o
  -     -    p
  -     -    q
  -     -    r
  245,594   245,594  
  8,430,333   8,430,333  

Bills payable
Borrowings 
Deposits and other accounts
Sub-ordinated loans
     of which: Eligible for inclusion in AT1
     of which: Eligible for inclusion in Tier-2

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax liabilities
     of which: DTLs related to goodwill
     of which: DTLs related to intangible assets
     of which: DTLs related to defined pension fund net assets
     of which: Other deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

  6,000,000   6,000,000  
  6,000,000   6,000,000  s
  -     -    t
  840,066  840,066   
  840,066   840,066   u
  -     -    v
  2,452,552   2,452,552  w
  (37,286)  (37,286) aa
  -     -    ab
 9,255,332   9,255,332 

Share capital
     of which: Amount eligible for CET1
     of which: Amount eligible for AT1
Reserves
     of which: Portion eligible for inclusion in CET1(provide break-up)
     of which: Portion eligible for inclusion in Tier-2
Unappropriated profit / (losses)
     of which: Unrealized Gains/Losses on AFS
    In case of Deficit on revaluation (deduction from CET1)
Total Liabilities & Equity
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Table: 38.3.3

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves

Basel III Disclosure Template (with added column)

Component of 
regulatory 

capital reported 
by Bank 

Source based on 
reference 

number from 
step 2

   6,000,000  
   -    (s)
   -    
   840,066  

(u)   -    
   2,452,552  (w)
 
   -    (x)

   9,292,618  

1 Fully Paid-up Capital / Capital deposited with SBP 
2 Balance in Share Premium Account
3 Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares
4 General / Statutory Reserves
5 Gain / (Losses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge
6 Unappropriated / unremitted profits / (losses)
7 Minority Interests arising from CET1 capital instruments  
 issued to third party by consolidated Bank subsidiaries  
 (amount allowed in CET1 capital of the consolidation   
 group)
8 CET1 before Regulatory Adjustments

 Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments
9 Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability)
10 All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax  
 liability)
11 Shortfall of provisions against classified assets
12 Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding  
 those arising from temporary differences (net of related tax  
 liability)
13 Defined-benefit pension fund net assets 
14 Reciprocal crossholdings in CET1 capital instruments
15 Cash flow hedge reserve
16 Investment in own shares / CET1 instruments
17 Securitization gain on sale 
18 Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries 
19 Deficit on account of revaluation from Bank's holdings of fixed  
 assets / AFS
20 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and  
 insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory  
 consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of  
 the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)
21 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by  
 banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the  
 scope of regulatory consolidation (amount above 10%  
 threshold)
22 Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences  
 (amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability)
23 Amount exceeding 15% threshold 
24     of which: Significant investments in the common stocks of  
 financial entities
25     of which: Deferred tax assets arising from temporary  
 differences
26 National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1  
 capital
27     of which: Investment in TFCs of other banks exceeding the  
 prescribed limit 
28     of which: Any other deduction specified by SBP (mention  
 details)
29 Regulatory adjustment applied to CET1 due to insufficient AT1  
 and Tier-2 to cover deductions
30 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 (sum of 9 to 29)
31 Common Equity Tier 1

S.No.

  -    (j) - (o)

  405  (k) - (p)
  -    (f)

  -    {(h) - (r} * x%

  -    {(l) - (q)} * x%
  -    (d)
  -    
  -    
  -    
  -    

  37,286 (ab)

  170,948  (a) - (ac) - (ae)

  -    (b) - (ad) - (af)

  -    (i)
 
  -    

  -    

  -    

  409,215  

  -    

 1,856,790  
  2,474,664  
  6,817,974  

where 'x' depends on 
transitional arrangement for 
capital deduction (e.g. 0%, 
20% etc.), Section 2.4.11

Portion of amount above the 
threshold that is to be deducted 
from CET1, whereas "ad" is the 
portion to be deducted from AT1 
and "af" is the portion to be 
deducted from T2
Portion of amount above the 
threshold that is to be deducted 
from CET1, whereas "ad" is the 
portion to be deducted from AT1 
and "af" is the portion to be 
deducted from T2



Additional Tier 1 (AT1) Capital
   -    

   -    (t)
   -    (m)
   -    (y)

   -     

32 Qualifying Additional Tier-1 instruments plus any related share  
 premium
33     of which: Classified as equity 
34     of which: Classified as liabilities
35 Additional Tier-1 capital instruments issued by consolidated  
 subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in group  
 AT1)
36     of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out
37 AT1 before regulatory adjustments

Tier-2 Capital

   -    (n)

   -    

   -    (z)
   -    
   -    (g)

   -    
   -                  portion of (aa)
   -  
   -    (v)
   - 
  -  
 

49 Qualifying Tier-2 capital instruments under Basel III plus any  
 related share premium
50 Capital instruments subject to phase out arrangement from  
 Tier-2 (Pre-Basel III instruments)
51 Tier-2 capital instruments issued to third party by consolidated  
 subsidiaries (amount allowed in group Tier-2)
52     of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out
53 General Provisions or general reserves for loan losses - up to  
 maximum of 1.25% of Credit Risk Weighted Assets
54 Revaluation Reserves
55      of which: Revaluation reserves on fixed assets
56      of which: Unrealized Gains/Losses on AFS
57 Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves
58 Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any)
59 T2 before regulatory adjustments

Additional Tier 1 Capital: Regulatory adjustments

   -    
   -    
   -    

   (293,012)    (ac)

   -    (ad)

   -    

        - 

   -    

   -    
   -    

38 Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit (SBP  
 specific adjustment)
39 Investment in own AT1 capital instruments
40 Reciprocal crossholdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments 
41 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and  
 insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory  
 consolidation, where the Bank does not own more than 10% of  
 the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)
42 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by  
 banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the  
 scope of regulatory consolidation
43 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and  
 supplementary capital based on pre-Basel III treatment which,  
 during the transitional period, remains subject to deduction  
 from Tier-1 capital
44 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier-1 due to  
 insufficient Tier-2 to cover deductions
45 Total of Regulatory Adjustment applied to AT1 capital (sum of  
 38 to 44)
46 Additional Tier-1 capital 
47 Additional Tier-1 capital recognized for capital adequacy

Tier-1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1) (31+47)  6,817,974 48
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Tier-2 Capital: Regulatory adjustments

   -    

   -    
   -    

   (1,563,778) (ae)

   -    (af)

  (1,563,778) 

   -    
   -    
   -    
   -    
   6,817,974  

60 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and  
 supplementary capital based on pre-Basel III treatment which,  
 during transitional period, remains subject to deduction from  
 Tier-2 capital
61 Reciprocal crossholdings in Tier-2 instruments
62 Investment in own Tier-2 capital instrument 
63 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and  
 insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory  
 consolidation, where the Bank does not own more than 10% of  
 the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)
64 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by  
 banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the  
 scope of regulatory consolidation
65 Amount of Regulatory Adjustment applied to T2 capital (sum of  
 60 to 64)
66 Tier-2 capital (T2)
67 Tier-2 capital recognized for capital adequacy
68 Excess Additional Tier-1 capital recognized in Tier-2 capital
69 Total Tier-2 capital admissible for capital adequacy
70 TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2) (48+69)

Main Features Common Shares Instrument - 2 Inst.- 3 & so
on

Explanation

1 PAÏR Investment Company
Limited Identifies issuer legal entity.

2 Not Applicable 

3 Specify the governing law(s) of the instrument

4 Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 5

6 Solo

7 Ordinary Shares

8 Specifies amount recognized in regulatory capital

9 Par value of instrument

10

11 Specifies date of issuance.

12 Specifies whether dated or perpetual.
Enter: [Perpetual/ no Maturity] [Dated] 

13 For dated instrument, specifies original maturity date.

14

15
Not Applicable 

16 Not Applicable 

Disclosure template for main features of regulatory capital instruments

Specifies the regulatory capital treatment during Basel III 
transitional phase (i.e. the component of capital that the 
instrument is being phased-out from).                                                                                    
Enter: [Common Equity Tier 1] [Additional Tier 1] [Tier 2] 

Specifies regulatory capital treatment under Basel III rules not taking into 
account transitional treatment.
Enter: [Common Equity Tier 1] [Additional Tier 1] [Tier 2] [Ineligible]

Specifies the level(s) within the group at which the instrument is included 
in capital. Enter: [Solo] [Group] [Solo and Group]

Enter: [Ordinary shares] [Perpetual non-cumulative preference 
shares] [perpetual debt instruments] [Other Tier 2] (others: 
please specify)   

Specifies subsequent call dates, if applicable. Helps to assess 
permanence.

For instrument with issuer call option, specifies first date of 
call if the instrument has a call option on a specific date (day, 
month and year) and in addition mention if the instrument has 
a tax and/or regulatory event call. Also specifies the 
redemption price. Helps to assess permanence

Specifies accounting classification. Helps to assess loss 
absorbency. Enter: [Shareholders' equity] [Liability - amortized 
cost] [Liability - fair value option] [Non-controlling interest in 
consolidated subsidiary]

Specifies whether there is an issuer call option. Helps to assess 
permanence. Enter: [Yes] [No]

Issuer

Unique identifier (eg KSE Symbol or Bloomberg identifier etc.)

Governing law(s) of the instrument

Regulatory treatment

Transitional Basel III rules

Post-transitional Basel III rules

Eligible at solo/ group/ group & solo

Instrument type

Amount recognized in regulatory capital
(Currency in PKR thousands, as of reporting date) PKR 6,000,000

Par value of instrument PKR 10

Accounting classification
Shareholders's 

equity

Optional call date, contingent call dates and
redemption amount

Original date of issuance 2007

Perpetual or dated Perpetual

Original maturity date No Maturity

Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval No

Subsequent call dates, if applicable

"Laws of Islamic Republic of
Pakistan"

37.4 Main Features Template of Regulatory Capital Instruments 
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17

18 Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

19 No

20 Fully discretionary

21 No

22 Not Applicable 

No

23 Non-convertible

24

Specifies the conditions under which the instrument will 
convert, including point of non-viability. Where one or more 
authorities have the ability to trigger conversion, the authorities 
should be listed. For each of the authorities it should be state 
whether it is the terms of the contract of the instrument that 
provide the legal basis for the authority to trigger conversion (a 
contractual approach) or whether the legal basis is provided by 
statutory means (a statutory approach)

Specifies whether instrument is convertible or not. Helps to 
assess loss absorbency. Enter: [Convertible] [Nonconvertible]

Specifies whether dividends / coupons are cumulative or 
noncumulative. Enter: [Noncumulative] [Cumulative]

Specifies whether there is a step-up or other incentive to 
redeem. Enter: [Yes] [No]

Enter: [fully discretionary] [partially discretionary] [mandatory]

Enter [fixed], [floating], [fixed to floating], [floating to fixed]

Specifies whether the non payment of a coupon or dividend on 
the instrument prohibits the payment of dividends on 
common shares (i.e. whether there is a dividend stopper)
Enter: [yes], [no]

Coupons / dividends

Fixed or floating dividend/ coupon

Coupon rate and any related index/ benchmark

Existence of a dividend stopper

Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory

Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem

Non-cumulative or cumulative

Convertible or non-convertible

If convertible, conversion trigger (s)

27

26

29

30

28

No

31 Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

25 Not Applicable 

Not Applicable

36 No

37
If there are non-compliant features, specify which ones. 
Helps to assess instrument loss absorbency.

Specifies whether there are non-compliant features.
Enter: [Yes] [No]

35 Not Applicable

34 Not Applicable

33 Not Applicable

32 Not Applicable

Specifies instrument to which it is most immediately 
subordinate. Helps to assess loss absorbency on 
gone-concern basis. 

For instrument that has a temporary write-down, 
description of write-up mechanism.

For write down instrument, specifies whether write down 
is permanent or temporary. Helps to assess loss 
absorbency. Enter: [Permanent] [Temporary] [NA]

For each write-down trigger separately, specifies whether 
the instrument will (i) always be written-down fully, (ii) 
may be written down partially; or (iii) will always be 
written down partially. Help assess the level of loss 
absorbency at write-down

Specifies the trigger at which write-down occurs, 
including point of non-viability. Where one or more 
authorities have the ability to trigger write-down, the 
authorities should be listed. For each of the authorities it 
should be state whether it is the terms of the contract of 
the instrument that provide the legal basis for the 
authority to trigger write-down (a contractual approach) 
or whether the legal basis is provided by statutory means 
(a statutory approach)

Specifies whether there is a write down feature. Helps to 
assess loss absorbency. Enter: [Yes] [No]

If convertible, specify issuer of instrument into which it 
converts.

For convertible instruments, specifies instrument type 
convertible into. Helps to assess loss absorbency.
Enter: [Common Equity Tier 1] [Additional Tier 1] [Tier 2] 

For convertible instruments, specifies whether conversion 
is mandatory or optional. Helps to assess loss absorbency.
Enter: [Mandatory] [Optional] [NA]

Specifies rate of conversion into the more loss absorbent 
instrument. Helps to assess the degree of loss 
absorbency.

Specifies whether the instrument will: (i) always convert 
fully, (ii) may convert fully or partially; or (iii) will always 
convert partially Enter: one of the options

If convertible, fully or partially

If convertible, conversion rate

If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion

If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into

If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into

Write-down feature

If write-down, write-down trigger(s

If write-down, full or partial

If write-down, permanent or temporary

If temporary write-down, description of
write-up mechanism

Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation
(specify instrument type immediately senior to instrument

Non-compliant transitioned features

If yes, specify non-compliant features



38.5 Risk Weighted Assets

  The capital requirements for the Company as per major risk categories are given below:

 Credit risk (Rupees in '000)  (Rupees in '000)   
 Claims on:    
 Banks  42,397   376,024   12,120   113,803 
 Corporate  614,278   5,448,138   592,551   5,563,857 
 Retail portfolio  500   4,435   358   3,365 
 Secured by residential property  1,536   13,624   1,496   14,046 
 Past due loans  68,171   604,619   89,020   835,871 
 Listed equity investments  79,216   702,509   123,169   1,156,518 
 Unlisted equity investments 35,007  310,478   -       -     
 Investments in fixed assets  22,279  197,598   18,849   176,982 
 All other assets  93,178  826,410   78,055   732,908 
   956,562   8,483,909   915,618   8,597,350 
  
    
 
 Market risk     
 Interest rate risk  72   635   12,988   162,350 
 Equity risk  168,881   1,497,832   39,163   489,538 
   168,953   1,498,467   52,151   651,888 
      
 
 Operational risk  171,714   1,522,962   124,848   1,560,599   

   1,297,229   11,505,338   1,092,837   10,809,837

 Capital adequacy ratio       
 
 Total eligible regulatory capital held (a)  6,817,974    8,256,282 
        
 Total risk weighted assets (b)  11,505,338    10,809,837 
        
 Capital adequacy ratio (a) / (b)*100  59,26%  76.38% 

2017 2016

Capital
requirements

Risk weighted
assets

Capital
requirements

Risk weighted
assets

59.26% 76.38%
59.26% 76.38%
59.26% 76.38%Total capital to total RWA 11.28% 10.65%

CET1 to total RWA 6.00% 6.00%
Tier-1 capital to total RWA 7.50% 7.50%

Actual
Capital Adequacy Ratios

2017
Required Actual

2016

Required
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39. RISK MANAGEMENT   
 
 The primary risks associated with the Company's exposure are:  
   
 Credit Risk: the risk of loss resulting from client or counterparty default.  
 
 Market Risk: the exposure to market variables such as interest rates and equity prices.  
 
 Operational Risk: the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external 

events, and therefore includes legal risk.  
   
 The Company's Credit & Risk Management Department has BASEL Compliant, Credit, Market, Liquidity and Operational Risk 

functions.    
   
 The Company's portfolio and exposures are governed through relevant policies, procedures and various risk measurement 

techniques by adopting Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and Stress Testing with a purpose to achieve 
efficiency, effectiveness and compliance. Internal Risk Rating mechanism and transaction level risk analytics have been 
adopted in order to have ongoing risk sensitive assessment and reporting. The Company is more focused towards 
implementing system based risk assessment by acquiring risk systems in order to have more efficiency in overall risk 
management processes.  

   
39.1 Credit risk  
   
 Credit risk is the risk of loss to the Company as a result of failure by a client or counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. 

It is inherent in loans, commitments to lend, traded products, repurchase agreements (reverse repos), placements and other 
lending transactions. The role of Credit Risk Management particularly includes:  

   
 - Participation in portfolio planning and management.           
           
 - Establishment of credit policies and standards that conform to regulatory requirements and the Company’s overall          

  objectives.           
           
 - Working with Business Units in keeping aggregate credit risk exposure within the Company’s risk appetite.            
           
 - Organizing portfolio reviews focusing on quality assessment, risk profiles, industry concentrations.           
           
 - Setting systems to identify significant portfolio indicators, problem credits and level of provisioning required.            
           
 The Company has designed an Internal Risk Rating Models and methodology to gauge credit risk elements in the banking book 

of the Company.             
    
 The credit products mainly comprise of Fund based & Non-Fund based, including short term and long term financing, project 

finance, term lending, reverse repurchase, bridge finance, investment in TFCs , sukuk bonds and placements with financials 
institutions, etc. Exposures are collateralized by cash equivalents, fixed assets, and current assets including property plant and 
equipment, land and building, hypothecation, pledge on stocks and receivables  as the case may be. The Company manages 
limits and controls concentrations of credit risk as identified, in particular to individual counterparties and groups, and to 
industries, where appropriate.  

   
 Concentrations of credit risk exist if clients are engaged in similar activities, or are located in the same geographic region or 

have comparable economic characteristics such that their ability to meet contractual obligations would be similarly affected 
by changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Company sets limits on its credit exposure to counterparty, to 
groups, and to industry, which are in line with SBP standards.  

   
 Stress testing on credit portfolio is being carried out on regular basis to assess the impact of defaults on Company's earning 

and capital adequacy. Credit concentration, rating migration, default shocks and risk aggregation of large exposures are few of 
the main shocks used to gauge the strength of Credit risk standing of the Company.



39.1.1 Credit Risk – General Disclosures Basel II/ III specific       
   

 The Company is more focused on the intent of Basel II/ III rather than just treating it as a regulatory requirement. 
Therefore, in addition to the adoption of  Standardized approach and reporting to SBP, the Company has already adopted 
the practice of ongoing assessment as required under the advanced approaches of Basel II .The Company has adopted 
Pillar II ICAAP requirements duly approved by the Board of Directors.      
    

39.1.2 Credit Risk: Disclosure for portfolio subject to the Standardized Approach      
    

 For the calculation of Risk Weighted Assets under Standardized Approach, external credit ratings have been used for all 
exposures, where available, against banks lending, corporate lending and debt instruments. The external ratings are further 
mapped with SBP ratings scale to arrive at risk weights of each transaction.      

 
 Types of exposures and ECAI's used    

 Credit exposures subject to standardised approach
 Exposures

 Corporate 1  391,148   -     391,148 
  2  1,931,655   -     1,931,655 
  3,4  -        -     -      
  5,6  -        -    -      
  Unrated 1  1,639,738   -     1,639,738 
  Unrated 2  2,211,474   -     2,211,474 
 Banks 1  5,057,381   3,935,781   1,121,600 
 Sovereigns   5,871,100   -     5,871,100 
 Retail Portfolio   5,913   -     5,913 
 Residential Mortgage Finance   38,925   -     38,925 
 Past Due Loans   761,812   -     761,812 
 Listed Equity Investments   702,580  -     702,580
 Unlisted Equity Investments  206,988  -     206,988 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents   1,291  -     1,291 
 Others   633,177  -     633,177
    19,453,182  3,935,781   15,517,401
 CRM = Credit Risk Mitigation 

Exposures JCR-VIS PACRA

Banks  

Corporate  

Rating 
Category

Amount 
Outstanding

 Deduction  Net Amount 

-----------------------(Rupees in '000)-----------------------
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38.1.2.1 Credit Risk: Disclosure with respect to Credit RiskMitigation for Standardized approach - Basel II specific          
           
 The credit policy of the Company covers credit risk mitigation process and requirements for all secured transactions. Key 

elements include:          
           
 - Collateral type;          
 - Collateral quality and ranking;          
 - Collateral valuation process, and          
 - Margin requirements          
           
 Equitable Mortgage, Token Registered Mortgage, Hypothecation Charge Over Fixed Assets , Current Assets, Pledge of Shares, 

Lending against Government Securities (for repo style transaction), GOP Guarantee and Pledge of stocks are the main type of 
collaterals taken against the exposure.          

           
39.1.3 Segmental information

39.1.3.1 Segments by class of business

Alternative Power  337,015  6.1%  -        -      -       -     

Automobile Parts & Accessories  353,804  6.4%  -        -      -       -     

Beverage Production and Distribution  11,250  0.2%  -          -      -       -     

Cables and electric goods  200,000  3.6%  -        -      -       -     

Cement  75,000  1.4%  -        -      -       -     

Chemical  33,954  0.6%  -        -      -       -     

Commercial Banks -       -       -          -      -       -     

Construction and Real Estate 284,860  5.2%  -        -      -       -     

Dairy   42,178  0.8%  -        -      -       -     

Food and Personal Care Products  125,000  2.3%  -        -      -       -     

Infrastructure & Processing  3,294  0.1% -        -      -       -     

Leasing  123,529  2.2%  -        -      -       -     

Livestock and Poultry 95,250  1.7%  -        -      -       -     

Micro Finance Banks & Institutions 171,429  3.1% 733,837     40%  -       -     

Oil and gas marketing companies  -       -      -        -      -       -     

Others   129,377  2.4%  32,600   2%  -       -     

Pharmaceutical  84,912  1.5%  -        -      56,028  38%

Power generation  214,264  3.9%  -        -      92,782  62%

Services   325,524  5.9% 447,564   25%  -       -     

Steel   773,449  14.0%  -        -      -       -     

Sugar and Allied Industries  744,821  13.5%  -        -      -       -     

Textile   1,237,843 22.4%  -        -      -       -     

Transportation  140,425  2.7%  600,000   33%  -       -     

   5,507,178 100%  1,814,001   100%  148,810  100%

Contingencies and
CommitmentsDeposits

Rupees
 in '000

Percent Rupees
 in '000

Percent Rupees
 in '000

Percent

2017

Advances - Gross



Alternative Power  342,845  5.5%  -        -      -       -     

Automobile Parts & Accessories  141,250  2.2%  -        -      -       -     

Beverage Production and Distribution  52,009  0.8%  -          -      -       -     

Cables and electric goods  -       0.0%  -        -      -       -     

Cement  75,000  1.2%  -        -      -       -     

Chemical  799,857  12.7%  -        -      -       -     

Commercial Banks 250,000  4.0%  -          -      -       -     

Construction and Real Estate 284,860  4.5%  -        -      -       -     

Dairy   128,372  2.0%  -        -      -       -     

Food and Personal Care Products  160,000  2.5%  -        -      -       -     

Infrastructure & Processing  214,542 3.4% -        -      -       -     

Leasing  70,588  1.1%  -        -      -       -     

Livestock and Poultry 95,250  1.5%  -        -      -       -     

Micro Finance Banks & Institutions 257,143  4.1% 825,000     40%  -       -     

Oil and gas marketing companies  360,000  5.7%  -        -      -       -     

Others  74,795  1.2%  273,260   13%  58,734  26%

Pharmaceutical  60,000  1.0%  -        -      -       -     

Power generation  346,157  5.5%  -        -      163,658  74%

Services   282,992  4.5% 981,468   47%  -       -     

Steel   696,478  11.1%  -        -      -       -     

Sugar and Allied Industries  801,225  12.8%  -        -      -       -     

Textile   773,150  12.3%  -        -      -       -     

Transportation  15,719  0.3%  -        -      -       -     

   6,282,232  100%  2,079,728   100%  222,392  100%

Contingencies and
CommitmentsDeposits

Rupees
 in '000

Percent Rupees
 in '000

Percent Rupees
 in '000

Percent

2016

Advances - Gross
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39.1.3.2 Segment by sector 
 

 Public / Government               -  -                - -        -    -       
 Private  5,507,178  100%  1,814,001  100%  148,810   100%
   5,507,178  100%  1,814,001  100%  148,810  100%
 

 
 Public / Government    - -      -    -      -       -   
 Private  6,282,232  100%  2,079,728  100% 222,392  -   
   6,282,232  100%  2,079,728  100%  222,392  -   
 
39.1.3.3 Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by class of business 
 

 
 
 Cement 75,000   75,000   75,000   75,000 
 Construction  218,000   218,000   218,000   218,000 
 Textile  500,000   500,000   500,000   500,000 
 Infrastructure  -         -         204,672   35,288 
 Sugar  70,000   61,246   75,416   29,591 
 Others  95,250   -     95,250   -     

   958,250   854,246   1,168,338   857,879 
 
39.1.3.4 Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by sector 
  
 Public / Government  -     -     -   - 
 Private  958,250   854,246   1,168,338   857,879 
   958,250   854,246   1,168,338  857,879 

 

Contingencies and
CommitmentsDeposits

Rupees
 in '000

Percent Rupees
 in '000

Percent Rupees
 in '000

Percent

2017

Advances - Gross

Contingencies and
CommitmentsDeposits

(Rupees
 in '000)

Percent (Rupees
 in '000)

Percent (Rupees
 in '000)

Percent

2016

Advances - Gross

Classified
Advances

Specific
Provisions

Held

Classified
Advances

Specific
Provisions

Held

20162017
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39.1.3.5 Geographical segment analysis 
 
 
 
 

 Pakistan  368,214   17,685,665   9,255,332   148,810 
 

 
 Pakistan  861,091   18,598,471   9,449,959                      222,392

 
39.2 Equity position risk in the trading book-Basel II / III specific 
 
 Equity position risk in trading book arises due to changes in prices of individual stocks or levels of equity indices. The Compa-

ny’s equity trading book comprises of Treasury Capital Market’s (TCM), Held for trading (HFT) & Available for Sale (AFS) 
portfolios. 

 
 As of 31 December 2017 the equity portfolio of the Company comprised of investment in  equities Majortiy of listed and 

unlisted equities are classified in Held for trading (HFT) and  Available for Sale (AFS) while some unlisted equities are 
classified in Held to Maturity (HTM) category. The marked to market valuation on the listed equities  is done on daily basis 
and any unrealised gain / loss is booked in the profit and loss account and the statement of financial position respectively. 

 
39.3 Market risk 
 
 Trading activities are executed in the Treasury & Investment Unit (T&IU). Major equity holdings are held to earn capital gain 

and dividend to support the Company’s business activities while some of the investment positions of equity holding are 
made for revenue generation as part of strategic initiatives. The Company is active in the Money Market, Fixed Income and 
Equity market that carry interest rate and equity price risk on both trading and banking book respectively. Management level 
Market Risk Committee has been invoked to ensure specific & general risk assessment of all Market related products on 
timely basis 

 
 Controls are also applied to prevent any undue risk concentrations in trading books, taking into account variations in price 

volatility and market depth and liquidity. They include controls on exposure to individual market risk variables, such as 
individual interest or equity price ('risk factors'), and on positions in the securities of individual issuers.

  
 Market risk measures and controls are applied at the portfolio level, and concentration limits and other controls are applied 

where necessary to individual risk types, to particular books and to specific exposures. Portfolio risk measures are common 
to all market risks, but concentration limits and other controls are tailored to the nature of the activities and the risks they 
create. 

 
 The Company has developed Market Risk Policy, which covers the techniques to gauge, monitor and report the impact of 

interest rate and price risk implications. 

Profit Before
Taxation

Total Assets
Employed

Net Assets
Employed

Contingencies
& Commitments

Rupees in ‘000

2017

Profit Before
Taxation

Total Assets
Employed

Net Assets
Employed

Contingencies
& Commitments

Rupees in ‘000

2016
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39.3.1 Foreign Exchange Risk 
 
 Foreign Exchange Risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in exchange rates. The Company does not carry any 

product specific Foreign Exchange Risk. 
 
 

 

 
 Pakistan Rupees  17,694,056   8,424,512   148,810   9,418,354 
 US Dollars  7,825       -                        -  7,825 
 Euros  610                        5,279  -  (4,669) 
   17,702,491   8,429,791  148,810   9,421,510 
 

 
 

 Pakistan Rupees  18,590,647   9,148,512                            222,392  9,664,527 
 US Dollars  7,515                            -  -     7,515 
 Euros  309                            -  -     309 
   18,598,471   9,148,512                            222,392  9,672,351 

 

39.3.2 Equity Position Risk 
 
 The objective of 'Held for Trading' portfolio is to take advantages of short-term capital gains, while the 'Available for Sale' 

portfolio is maintained with a medium-term view of capital gains and dividend income. The Company has also invested in 
mutual funds categorize as "Available for Sale". Investment policy has been developed to discuss in detail the objectives / 
policies, risks / mitigates, limits / controls for exposures against price risk. 

 
39.3.3 Yield / Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (IRRBB) - Basel II/III Specific 
 
 The Company's Banking Book consists of significant amount of Interest Rate sensitive assets. The investment portfolio 

comprises of floating interest rate TFCs and Sukuk that are mainly linked to six month KIBOR. Therefore, the overall  
frequency of banking book interest rate is around six months. Interest rate position for on-balance sheet instruments is 
based on the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity date, the instrument’s repayment nature varies from monthly 
payments to bullet maturity. 

 
 Capital Adequacy Stress test exercise has been conducted by using duration method for measuring the upward and down-

ward shocks of interest rate. This provides the Company risk taking and absorption capacity and its implication on capital 
adequacy in the worst case scenarios. 

 Assets  Liabilities 
Off-balance
sheet items

Net currency
exposure

-----------------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)-----------------------------------

2017

 Assets  Liabilities 
Off-balance
sheet items

Net currency
exposure

-----------------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)-----------------------------------

2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2017

PAÏR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

39.4.2 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)   
 
 During the Year, State Bank of Pakistan implemented two liquidity standards under its Basel III reforms i.e. Liquidity Coverage 

Ratio (LCR) and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR). LCR aims to augment the short-term resilience of the liquidity risk profile of 
banks/DFIs by ensuring that they have  sufficient stock of unencumbered high-quality liquid assets (HQLA) to endure a significant 
stress scenario for 30 calendar days. While, NSFR aims to decrease the funding risk over a longer time horizon by requiring banks 
to fund their activities with adequately stable funding sources on continuing basis.

   
  Liquidity Risk at PAIR Investment Company Ltd (PICL) is managed with an objective to ensure that even the remote possibility of 

liquidity risk is managed by the company by maintaining desirable level of liquidity. The Board is responsible for the overall 
direction /formulation of policies and procedures and liquidity risk strategy. 

 
 During the Year, PICL endeavored to diversify its funding sources. PICL major borrowing arises from Short-term lines. However, 

PICL enhanced its Long term borrowing through Deposits/CoIs along with Long Term Borrowing from Central Bank and 
Commercial Bank. PICL deploys centralized funding strategy.  

 
 To manage its liquidity risk considering its level of liquidity, PICL uses various tools / risk management procedures including Cash 

Flow Projections/ Maturity Gap Ladder, Liquidity Ratios/Limits and Stress Testing apart from SBP defined limits of CRR/SLR and 
LCR/NSFR.  

   
 PICL maintains a Contingency Funding Plan which outlines response to liquidity stress and uses stress tests across multiple 

scenarios across various time horizons to set forth a course of action. Notably, In order to maintain adequate liquidity, PICL 
maintains sufficient stock of High Quality Liquid Assets which primarily consists of Unencumbered Government Securities.   

  

21
22
23

1

2
2.1
2.2
3

3.1
3.2
3.3
4
5

5.1
5.2
5.3
6
7
8

9
10
11
12

HIGH QUALITY LIQUID ASSETS
(Rupees in '000) 

TOTAL UNWEIGHTEDa

VALUE (avarage)
TOTAL WEIGHTEDb

VALUE (avarage)

CASH OUTLFLOWS

CASH INFLOWS

TOTAL HQLA
TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS
LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO

TOTAL ADJUSTED VALUE

18,787

1,937,555

756,437

711,035

2,051,268

1,879

1,879
1,249,264

1,249,264

66.923

66,923

1,318,066

553,080

553,080

2,051,268
785,842

2.61

Total high quality liquid assets (HQLA)

Retail deposits and deposits from small business cusmtomers of which:
 stable deposit
 Less stable deposit
Unsecured wholesale funding of which:
 Operational deposits (all counterparties)
 Non-operational deposits (all counterparties)
 Unsecured debt
Secured wholesale funding
Additional requirements of which:
 Outflows related to derivative exposures and other collateral requirements 
 Outflows related to loss of funding on debt products 
 Credit and Liquidity facilities 
Other contractual funding obligations 
Other contingent funding obligations
TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS

Secured lending
Inflows from fully performing exposures 
Other Cash inflows
TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 

a unweighted values are calculated as outstanding balances maturing or callable within 30 days ( for inflows and outflows)
b Weighted values are calculated after the application of respective haircuts (for HQLA) or inlfow and outlfow rates ( for inflows and 

outflows)  
c Adjusted values are calculated after the application of both (i) haircuts and inflow and outflow rates and (ii) any applicable caps (ie 

cap on level 2B and level 2 assets for HQLA and cap on inlfows  
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39.4.3   Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) unweighted value by residual maturity

No Maturity < 6 months > 1 yr6 months to
<1 yr

weighted value

(Amount in PKR in thousands)
ASF item

RSF item

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

Capital:

 Regulatory capital

 Other capital instruments

Retail deposits and deposit from small business customers:

 Stable deposits 

 Less stable deposits 

Wholesale funding: 

 Operational deposits

 Other wholesale funding

Other liabilities: 

 NSFR derivative liabilities

  All other liabilities and equity not included in othercategories 

 Total ASF

9,255,332

32,500 100 29,340

1,502,572 146,344 824,458

1,038,119 153,900 232,668

4,998,882 1,749,935 1,749,935

2,729,964 2,320,469

103,046 66,980

2,475,279225,648

1,046,940 1,442,036 3,186,097944,630

85,497 142,684 15,409

8,581,747

138%

80,000

1,105,120

2,295,787

11,859,065

464,337

9,255,332
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17

18

19

20

21

22
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24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Total NSFR high-quality liquid assets (HQLA)

Deposits held at other financial institutions for operational purposes

Performing loans and securities:

 Performing loans to financial institutions secured by Level 1 HQLA

 

Other assets:

 Physical traded commodities, including gold

 Assets posted as initial margin for derivative contracts

 NSFR derivative assets

 NSFR derivative liabilities before deduction of variation margin posted

 All other assets not included in the above categories

Off-balance sheet items

Total RSF

Net Stable Funding Ratio (%)

Performing loans to financial institutions secured by non-Level 1 HQLA 
and unsecured performing loans to financail institutions

Performing loans to non- financial corporate clients, loans to retail and small 
business customers, and loans to sovereigns, central banks and PSEs, of which:

With a risk weight of less than or equal to 35% under the Basel II 
Standardised Approach for credit risk

Securities that are not in default and do not qualify as HQLA including 
exchange-traded equities.
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39.5. Operational risk    
 
 Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and system or from external 

events. PAIR Investment Company, in the light of SBP guidelines on Operational Risk Framework via BPRD Circular No. 04-2014 
dated 20 May 2014, developed Operational Risk Management Framework considering the regulatory guidelines and best practices 
in the market. PAIR Investment Company is adequately monitoring & reporting the operational risk data as per regulatory 
guidelines and BoD approved Operational Risk policy. With the implementation of Operational Risk Framework, the Company is 
being able to manage operational risks in a more systematic way that includes analyzing current systems for data collection, 
migration, validation and retention for current and historical reference and calculation..

  
39.5.1 Operational risk disclosure - Basel II/III specific    
  
 Basic Indicator approach of Basel II/ III has been used to calculate Operational Risk charge of the Company.   

40. GENERAL

40.1 These financial statements were authorized for issue on ___________________________ by the Board of Directors of the Company.

40.2 The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has maintained the long term entity rating to AA (Double A) and the short 
term rating at A1+ (A one plus) of the Company.

40.3 The Board of Director of the Company has proposed cash dividend of ______________ (2016: Rs. 300 million) for the year ended 
31 December 2017 in their meeting held on ________________. These financial statements do not include the effect of this 
appropriation which will be accounted for subsequent to the year end.    

Chairman Chief Executive &
Managing Director

DirectorDirector

4th of March 2018

Rs. 150 million

4th March 2018
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